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Parkson Retail Group Limited (the "Company”) is a leading
nationwide lifestyle retail operator in the People's Republic of
China ("the PRC"). The Parkson brand was introduced to the
Beijing market in the early 1990's and has now operated and
managed a diversified collection of retail formats, including
department stores, shopping malls, city outlets, "Parkson
Beauty" concept stores and supermarkets. As at 31 December
2023, through the Company's subsidiaries and associates
(hereinafter collectively referred to as the "Group”), the Group
operated and managed 43 stores and 2 Parkson Newcore City
Malls in 29 cities in PRC and Laos.

Localisation and consistent market positioning are the key
strategies for the continuous growth and success of Parkson.
We are tailoring our merchandise assortments, brand mix
and floor space allocation on a store-by-store basis to better
serve our targeted middle to middle-upper end consumers in
every city that we operate. The Group offers a wide range of
internationally renowned brands of fashion and lifestyle related
merchandises focusing on four main categories of merchandise
namely, Fashion & Apparel, Cosmetics & Accessories, Household
& Electrical, and Groceries & Perishables, targeting the young
and contemporary market.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
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AS OF THE DATE OF THIS REPORT

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem (Chairman)
Juliana Cheng San San

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR:
Dato' Sri Dr. Hou Kok Chung

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Dato’ Fu Ah Kiow
Yau Ming Kim, Robert
Datuk Koong Lin Loong

REGISTERED OFFICE
Third Floor, Century Yard,
Cricket Square, P.0. Box 902
Grand Cayman, KY1-1103
Cayman Islands

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

5th Floor, Metro Plaza

No. 555 Loushanguan Road
Changning District
Shanghai 200051

China

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Room 1010, 10th Floor
Harcourt House

39 Gloucester Road
Wanchai, Hong Kong

COMPANY SECRETARY
Yuen Wing Yan, Winnie, FCG, HKFCG(PE)

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem
Yuen Wing Yan, Winnie

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Dato' Fu Ah Kiow (Chairman)
Yau Ming Kim, Robert

Dato’ Sri Dr. Hou Kok Chung
Datuk Koong Lin Loong
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Yau Ming Kim, Robert (Chairman)
Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem
Datuk Koong Lin Loong

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem (Chairman)
Yau Ming Kim, Robert
Dato' Fu Ah Kiow

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Services (Cayman Islands) Limited
Third Floor, Century Yard,

Cricket Square, P.0. Box 902

Grand Cayman, KY1-1103

Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Investor Services Limited

17/F, Far East Finance Centre

16 Harcourt Road

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS IN THE PRC
China Zheshang Bank

Bank of China

Agricultural Bank of China

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China
China Construction Bank

China Merchants Bank

Bank of Communications

PRINCIPAL BANKERS IN HONG KONG

BNP Paribas Hong Kong Branch

Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

The Hong Kong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
Bank of China (Hong Kong)

AUDITOR

Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited
Certified Public Accountants

WEBSITE

www.parksongroup.com.cn
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The Board is pleased to present the Group's annual results for the year
ended 31 December 2023. The overall performance of the Group has
improved as compared to 2022. During the year under review, PRC has
fully lifted the country's pandemic prevention and control measures after
successfully getting through the pandemic. The people have gradually
resumed normalcy in their work and daily life.

ECONOMIC REVIEW

2023 was a year full of challenges and uncertainties in the global market.
The world economy is still in a state of slow recovery with insufficient
growth momentum. It is facing multiple pressures and challenges, such
as the continued impact of post-pandemic era, the risk of inflation,
expectations of tighter monetary policy, technological innovation
breakthroughs accelerating industrial transformation and etc. In addition,
international political instability and geopolitical tensions have also added
uncertainties to the economic development.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

These significant challenges have led to consumption segmentation,
consumer stratification and changes in consumption pattern, resulting
in slower than expected recovery in consumer spending. In 2023, PRC
macroeconomics have seen many twists and turns, and the current
economy has not recovered to pre-pandemic levels. The PRC economy
is expected to stabilise in 2024 with policies geared towards economic
recovery, but it also faces various difficulties and uncertainties.

In the face of these changes and challenges, the Group's extensive
business experience and management talents will adapt to the changing
development needs of the industry. While the Group is maintaining
the traditional lean management, it is integrating new industry needs
and continuing to innovate. The consumer market is huge in PRC, with
uneven regional development. Nevertheless, the overall economy is still
growing and has vast market growth potential. At the same time, the
consumers are constantly evolving and generating new demands. Retail
and service industry integration and innovation have created numerous
non-standard, differentiated business models. The Group will adopt the
flexible, customer-centered and cost-conscious approach to overcome
these challenges. In the process, the Group will leverage the integration
capabilities to become innovators and operators, and promote the
sustainable growth strategy of the Group.

According to the latest data released by the National Bureau of Statistics
of China, PRC's GDP reached RMB126.06 trillion in 2023, representing an
increase of 5.29% from 2022. In addition, the total retail sales of consumer
goods in PRC in 2023 increased by 7.2% year-on-year.

BUSINESS REVIEW

For the year under review, the Group recorded gross sales proceeds of
RMB10,093.9 million (including value-added tax), representing an increase
of 9.5% over last year. This increase was mainly due to the increase in
rental income and the growth in Same Store Sales ("SSS") with the lifting
of COVID-19 prevention and control measures. SSS increased by 7.1%
during the year under review. The merchandise gross margin of the Group
remained stable at 13.59% as compared to 2022. The total operating income
of the Group increased by RMB428.8 million or 11.4% to RMB4,177.5
million, whilst operating profit was RMB505.5 million as compared to an
operating loss of RMB11.0 million in 2022.

During the year under review, the Group successfully opened two Parkson
shopping malls, namely Yichun store and Nanchang Liantang store.
Yichuan store and Nanchang Liantang store are the Group's third and
fourth stores in Jiangxi Province. The Group is implementing “Multiple
Stores in a City" and "Model Innovation" strategies to meet the changing
consumption pattern.
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Yichun store officially commenced operations in January 2023. As the first
Parkson Mall in Yichun city, it has drawn widespread attention from the
region due to its prime location in the core area of Yichun City. The store
is positioned as “"the region's first fashion and entertainment cum social
center” and will serve as a new commercial landmark and social center that
integrates art, fashion, entertainment and various elements in the North
City Business District.

Nanchang Liantang store officially commenced operations in December
2023 and is positioned to be a “regional quality life-social center” It
focuses on the core community, integrating multiple businesses and
functions to become a new community landmark.

As of 31 December 2023, the Group operated and managed 43 Parkson
stores, including department stores, shopping malls, city outlets, the
"Parkson Beauty" concept store and supermarkets, as well as 2 Parkson
Newcore City Malls, across 29 cities in PRC and Laos.

FOCUSING ON MAIN BUSINESS

In the face of ongoing market changes and intense competition, the Group
is focusing on its main business and striving to become a leading fashion
commercial space operator. The Group continuously evaluates and adjusts
its resources in a timely manner, in line with its business development plan.
By diversifying its income sources and exploring various business models,
the Group aims to drive sustainable development.

The Group believes that its strategies of "Multiple Stores in a City" and
"Model Innovation” will attract customers with different consumption
levels and habits, ultimately enabling the Group to gain greater market
share in the long run.

The Group plans to open two stores in Mianyang City, Sichuan Province.
In June 2023, the Group's wholly-owned subsidiary, Mianyang Fulin
Parkson Plaza Co., Ltd. entered into a Tenancy Agreement with Mianyang
Kefa Construction Group Co., Ltd to open a supermarket which is formally
opened in January 2024. Besides this, Mianyang Fulin Parkson Plaza Co.,
Ltd., entered into a Tenancy Agreement with Mianyang New Investment
Industrial Co., Ltd. earlier, in April 2023. This store is expected to be opened
in 2026. These two new stores will be the Group's fourth and fifth stores in
Mianyang City, Sichuan Province.

2023 ANNUAL REPORT fE[ERE
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Additionally, the Group's wholly-owned subsidiary, Shanxi Parkson
Retail Development Co., Ltd., entered into a Parkson Outlet Cooperation
Agreement with Datong Dezhiyuan Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.
in January 2023. To implement the Cooperation Agreement, the Group
and the Landlord entered into a Tenancy Agreement and Entrusted
Management Agreement on the same date. The Group plans to open its
third store in Datong City which is expected to be opened in 2025.

The Group's beauty concept store, namely “Parkson Beauty" specializes
in premium cosmetics, skincare products and beauty services offering
fashionable products and personalized beauty service to esteemed
customers. The Group closely monitors the beauty market's development
trends and promptly launches targeted strategies for the beauty
sector, aiming to attract the younger generation of consumers through
customized service experiences.

OUTLOOK AND FUTURE PLANS

Looking ahead, with one store opened in January 2024 and two new
stores in the pipeline, the Group is well-positioned to capture growth
opportunities in markets that we are very familiar with. As an excellent
commercial space operator, our mission is to provide our customers with
an exceptional shopping and lifestyle experience. These new stores will
enable us to offer our customers an even wider range of high-quality
products.

We believe that with the Group's business strategies and extensive
experience in the retail market over the past three decades, we can achieve
stable and sustainable performance despite the challenging environment,
and create long-term value for our shareholders. The Group will also
closely monitor the post-pandemic changes in consumption behavior and
adjust its strategy accordingly.

| would like to take this opportunity to express our gratitude to our
employees, customers, shareholders, suppliers and business partners for
their unwavering support throughout the year. We look forward to working
with them closely in the years to come.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
B HAE

(restated)

(R E5))
Operating Results (RMB'000) Laxe ARBTT)
Gross sales proceeds' WEFESERE 12,560,987 10,026,893 10,667,264 8,262,172 9,080,998
Total operating revenues <«MLBuﬁ ek 5,026,018 4,428,349 4,738,502 3,748,667 4,177,490
Profit/(Loss) from operations waFE,) (58) 474,484 348,959 323,550 (10,993) 505,481
Profit/(Loss) for the year EERE/ (518 (203,680) (236,920) (170,630) (385,423) 70,502
Profit/(Loss) attributable to KATFIBAA

owners of the Company EEFE/ (5518 (222,751) (250,114) (175,979) (383,599) 66,413
Basic earnings/(loss) per share SRELRR/ (F8)

(RMB? (NRET)? (0.085) (0.095) (0.067) (0.146) 0.025
Interim dividends per share (RMB) SETHERE (AEET) - - - - 0.01
Final dividends per share (RMB) SRFHES (AEBT) - - - - -
Full year dividends per share RMB)  SR2ERE (AR D) - - = = 0.01

2022
2T
(restated)
(4= 51)
Summary of consolidated GOMBERREEE
statement of financial position AREFm)
(RMB000) o
Non-current assets FERBEE 10,769,810 1,112,119 9,436,636 8,539,727 8,041,711
Current assets MBBE 4,776,190 3,317,112 2,881,452 3,012,123 3,035,072
Total assets mEE 15,546,000 14,429,231 12,318,088 11,551,850 11,076,783
Current liabilities PEI=RE 4,007,043 3,957,162 4,628,155 2,816,118 2,841,805
Non-current liabilities FErREaE 7,192,624 6,271,059 3,633,259 5,417,453 4,917,831
Total liabilities Har 11,199,667 10,228,221 8,261,414 8,233,571 7,759,636
Net assets BERE 4,346,333 4,201,010 4,056,674 3,318,279 3,317,147
Represented by TR BIERT
Equity attributable to owners of the XA BIFTA AFELS
Company Ei 4,230,661 4122,700 3,983,874 3,249,384 3,244,942
Non-controlling interests RS 115,672 78310 72,800 68,895 72,205
Total equity Brgn 4,346,333 4,201,010 4,056,674 3,318,279 3,317,147
NOTES: MieE )
1. GSP (excluded value-added tax) represent the sum of sales proceeds from 1. SHEFTSAIRMRER (T AIEER) 15K B
direct sales and concessionaire sales, income from providing consultancy BEEIHE KT EMEN &R HE TS
and management services, rental income, credit service income and other B EHEAREERSBEA R U
operating revenues. %\ BB ARFE WA I E A A8 & I 75 RO 48
D o
2. The calculation of basic earnings per share for the year ended 31 December 2. BHE_BE_=F+"H=+—H JJ:J*ZIEJ\ET
2023 is based on the net profit attributable to ordinary equity holders E?ﬁﬁy%$§%‘]ﬂ*§?§%@ /NI RS
of the Company for the year of approximately RMB66,413,000 and the BERFAEABLHNEEENARE
weighted average number of 2,634,532,000 shares in issue during the year. 66,413,0007C K S N B AT INEFI9HE
2,634,532,0008% 51 & ©
The calculation of basic loss per share for the year ended 31 December HE_ZT-_F£+_H E‘I’—EHJ:J*:EJ\ET
2022 is based on the net loss attributable to ordinary equity holders of the E’Jﬁﬁy%zkﬁﬁ?ﬁfﬂﬁﬁéifﬂ KRB EBE
Company for the year of approximately RMB383,599,000 (restated) and the BRERFAARGEERFENARE
weighted average number of 2,634,532,000 shares in issue during the year. 383,599,0007T (& E7!) KEANBEITM
1198 5 2,634,532,00002 5+ & o
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Total GSP and operating revenues

During 2023, total GSP (inclusive of value-added tax) increased by 9.5%
to RMB10,093.9 million, mainly due to increase in rental income and total
merchandise sales. Rental income increased by 72.0% and SSS increased by
7.1% in 2023.

ElRET R RO

HA 7% [0l g8
HERSRIEEEREE NG
TEC-FEHEMSRIESEE (BiLE
2) EFto5mZE AR KE10093.98 8T JhE
EHRESAKRE mIEELEEEME -
R_E_=FE > HEWA _EFH72.00k[E
[EHE EFH7.1000

TOTAL MERCHANDISE SALES HonidE4azs
2022 Year-on-
- — year change
RMB'000 9% of total RMB'000 % of total (%)
fL4RZERY {L4R%EN)  [RILLEH)
AREBTFT BRk) AREFT Btk (%)
Concessionaire sales RS 5,661,107 72.7% 5,218,396 70.9% 8.5%
Direct sales BIZHE 2,130,142 27.3% 2,139,942 29.1% (0.5%)
7,791,249 100.0% 7,358,838 100.0% 5.9%

Total merchandise sales (net of value-added tax) increased by RMB432.4
million or 5.9% to RMB7,791.2 million in 2023. Concessionaire sales which
constituted 72.7% of the Group's total merchandise sales in 2023 increased
by 8.5% as compared to 2022 while direct sales decreased by 0.5% as
compared to 2022. The increased in total merchandise sales in 2023 was
mainly due to gradual recovering from the pandemic during the year.

Merchandise gross margin

The Group's merchandise gross margin (the combination of concessionaire
commission rate and direct sales margin) remain stable at 13.5% in 2023
and 2022.

Total operating revenues

Total operating revenues of the Group increased by RMB428.8 million
or 11.4% to RMB4,177.5 million in 2023. The increase in total operating
revenues was mainly due to the recognition of rental income from
investment property located in Beijing Financial Street.

Revenue from contracts with customers consists of sales of goods from
direct sales, commissions from concessionaire sales and consultancy and
management service fees and constituted 69.4% of the total operating
revenues in 2023. Revenue from contracts with customers increased by
RMB43.8 million or 1.5% compared to 2022.
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13.5% °
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Operating expenses
Purchase of goods and changes in inventories

Purchase of goods and changes in inventories represent the cost of
sales for direct sales, which decreased by RMB14.4 million or 0.8% from
RMB1,850.1 million in 2022 to RMB1,835.7 million in 2023. The slight
decrease was primarily due to decrease in procurement of goods from third
party vendors, resulting from the slight decreased in direct sales.

Staff costs

Staff costs decreased by RMB50.8 million or 9.5% to RMB485.8 million
in 2023 from RMB536.6 million in 2022, mainly due to closure of
underperforming business. On a same store basis, staff costs decreased by
4.2%.

Staff costs as a percentage of GSP was 5.4% in 2023, as compared to 6.5%
in 2022.

Depreciation and amortisation

Depreciation and amortisation decreased by 7.6% from RMB604.3 million
in 2022 to RMB558.5 million in 2023. The decrease was primarily due
to decrease in depreciation expense for the right-of-use assets of the
properties as a result of changed in lease term for certain stores and
closure of underperforming business. In 2023, depreciation expense on
the right-of-use assets of RMB346.1 million was recognised as compared
to RMB402.9 million in 2022. On a same store basis, depreciation charges
decreased by 9.20%.

Depreciation and amortisation as a percentage of GSP was 6.2% in 2023,
as compared to 7.3% in 2022.

Rental expenses

Rental expenses increased by RMB74.9 million to RMB90.1 million in 2023
from RMB15.2 million in 2022. The increased in rental expenses was mainly
due to RMB57.2 million in 2022 was deducted in rental expenses to reflect
changes in lease payments that arise from rent concessions to which the
practical expedient under IFRS 16 is applied where not applicable in 2023.
On a same store basis, rental expenses increased by 384.1%.

Rental expenses as a percentage of GSP was 1.0% in 2023, as compared to
0.2% in 2022.
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Other operating expenses

Other operating expenses, which consist primarily of (a) utilities cost; (b)
marketing, promotional and selling expenses; (c) property management
expenses; (d) general administrative expenses; and (e) city development
and educational surcharge, decreased by 6.9% to RMB701.9 million in 2023
from RMB753.5 million in 2022. Assets impairment of RMB67.1 million
was provided in 2023 while RMB103.3 million was provided in 2022 due
to COVID-19 pandemic. On a same store basis, other operating expenses
decreased by 4.7%.

Other operating expenses as a percentage of GSP was 7.7% in 2023, as
compared to 9.1% in 2022.

Profit/(Loss) from operations

The Group recorded profit from operations of RMB505.5 million for 2023
while recorded loss from operations of RMB11.0 million in 2022.

Profit from operations as a percentage of GSP was 5.6% in 2023 and loss
from operations as a percentage of GSP was (0.1%) in 2022.

Finance income/costs

The Group incurred net finance costs of RMB442.8 million in 2023
which represented an increase of RMB43.8 million or 11.0% compared to
RMB398.9 million in 2022. The increase in finance cost mainly resulted
from the increase in interest on interest-bearing bank loans which increase
from RMB114.9 million in 2022 to RMB200.5 million in 2023.

In 2023, interest expense on lease liabilities of RMB297.6 million was
recognised as compared to RMB344.1 million in 2022 and interest income
on the net investments in sublease of RMB22.7 million was recognised in
2023 as compared to RMB26.5 million in 2022.
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Share of profit/(loss) of a joint venture

This is the share of profit/(loss) from Xinjiang Youhao Parkson Development
Co., Ltd., a joint venture of the Group. The share of profit was RMB11.1
million in 2023 and share of loss was RMB1.7 million in 2022.

Share of profit/(loss) of associates

The share of profit from associates was RMB12.8 million in 2023 and share
of loss from associates was RMB1.5 million in 2022. The increase was
mainly due to gradual recovering from the pandemic during the year.

Profit/(Loss) before tax

Profit before tax is RMB86.6 million in 2023, compared to loss before tax
of RMB413.2 million in 2022. The increase in profit before tax in 2023 was
primarily due to gradual recovering from the pandemic during the year.

Profit before tax as a percentage of GSP was 1.0% in 2023 and loss before
tax as percentage of GSP was (5.0%) in 2022.

Income tax (expense)/credit

The Group's income tax expense of RMB16.1 million in 2023 as compared
to income tax credit of RMB27.7 million (restated) in 2022, primarily due to
increase in earnings in 2023.

Profit/(Loss) for the year

The Group's recorded profit of RMB70.5 million in 2023 as compared to
loss of RMB385.4 million (restated) in 2022.

Profit/(Loss) attributable to owners of the Company

Profit attributable to the owners of the Company was RMB66.4 million in
2023 as compared to loss attributable to the owners of the Company was
RMB383.6 million (restated) in 2022.
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Liquidity and financial resources

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had cash and bank balances of
RMB1,583.4 million (2022: RMB1,464.1 million), time deposits of RMB43.8
million (2022: RMB34.6 million), financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss of RMB57.5 million (2022: RMB108.3 million) and restricted
cash of RMB100.2 million (2022: nil).

The Group's cash and bank balances are mainly denominated in Renminbi
with the remaining denominated in United States dollars, Hong Kong
dollars and others.

Total debt to total assets ratio of the Group was 22.5% (2022 (restated):
21.99%) as at 31 December 2023.

Current assets and net assets

The Group's current assets as at 31 December 2023 was RMB3,035.1
million. Net assets of the Group as at 31 December 2023 was RMB3,317.1
million.

Information on the financial products

The Group's financial assets at fair value through profit or loss consisted of
non-principal-preservation type wealth management products managed by
licensed financial institutions in the PRC. As at 31 December 2023, the fair
value of these products was RMB57.5 million.

Pledge of assets

As at 31 December 2023, the Group has pledged trade receivables of
RMB207.9 million, pledged buildings, investment properties and leasehold
land with a net carrying amount of approximately RMB1,370.6 million,
RMB544.7 million and RMB318.5 million respectively to secure general
bank loans. The Group has pledged unrealised receivables of RMB78.9
million which will be due within 48 months to secure the general
interest-bearing bank loans. In addition, the Group has pledged deposits
of RMB27.1 million held in designated bank accounts for performance
guarantee.

Other than the aforesaid, no other assets are pledged to any bank or lender.
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Segment information

For management purposes, the Group has one major operating segment,
which is "Retail”. The Group operates department stores, shopping malls,
outlets and supermarkets mainly in the PRC. Revenues arising from
this segment include sales of goods in direct sales, commissions from
concessionaire sales, consultancy and management service fees and rental
income from tenants. Besides, the Group provides consumer financing
business which is carried out by Parkson Credit Sdn. Bhd. ("Parkson Credit")
in Malaysia.

The revenue and results of retail and financing business are disclosed in
Note 4 to the consolidated financial statements.

Revenue from external customers are mostly generated in the PRC and
almost all significant operating assets of the Group are located in the PRC.
Since revenue from external customers and non-current assets excluding
financial instruments and deferred tax assets of overseas companies
outside the PRC are not material to the Group's consolidated revenue
and non-current assets excluding financial instruments and deferred tax
assets, management believes there is no need to disclose geographical
information.

Employees

As at 31 December 2023, total number of employees for the Group was
3,826. The Group ensures that all levels of employees are paid competitively
within the standard in the market and employees are rewarded on
performance related basis within the framework of the Group's salary,
incentives and bonus scheme.

Treasury policies

The business transactions of the Group were mainly denominated in
Renminbi. Therefore, except for the capital market transactions for
funding needs, there is limited exposure in foreign exchange risk. Hedging
instruments including swaps and forwards have been used in the past
and would be used in the future, if necessary, to ensure that the Group's
exposure to the foreign exchange rate fluctuation and the interest rate
fluctuation is minimized.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem, aged 81, is an Executive Director and
Chairman of the Company. Tan Sri Cheng is also the Chairman of the
Nomination Committee and a member of the Remuneration Committee
of the Company. He has more than 60 years of experience in the business
operations of the Lion Group of Companies (“Lion Group") encompassing
retail, financial services, steel, mining, property and industrial parks,
agriculture, tyre manufacturing, motor vehicle assembly, brewery and
computer industries. He oversees the operations of Lion Group and is
responsible for the formulation and monitoring of the overall corporate
strategic plans and business development of the Group.

Tan Sri Cheng was the President of The Associated Chinese Chambers of
Commerce and Industry of Malaysia ("ACCCIM") and The Chinese Chamber
of Commerce and Industry of Kuala Lumpur and Selangor ("KLSCCCI")
from 2003 to 2012 and is now a Life Honorary President of ACCCIM and
KLSCCCI. He was also the President of Malaysia Retailers Association
("MRA") from May 2016 to May 2018, and was its Honorary President
from June 2018 to July 2020. He was again appointed the President of
MRA from July 2020 to May 2022 and in June 2022, he was appointed an
Honorary President of MRA. He was the Chairman of the Federation of
Asia-Pacific Retailers Associations from October 2017 to September 2019,
and was its Vice Chairman from September 2019 to November 2022. He is
a Trustee of ACCCIM's Socio-Economic Research Trust and the President of
Malaysia Steel Association.

Tan Sri Cheng's other directorships in public companies are as follows:

- Chairman and Managing Director of Parkson Holdings Berhad

- Chairman of Lion Posim Berhad

- Managing Director of Lion Industries Corporation Berhad

- Executive Chairman of Parkson Retail Asia Limited

- Director of Lion Asiapac Limited
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- A Founding Member and a Permanent Trustee of The Community
Chest, a company limited by guarantee established by the private
sector for charity purposes

Save for The Community Chest, all the above companies are public listed
companies in Malaysia whilst Parkson Retail Asia Limited and Lion Asiapac
Limited are public listed companies in Singapore.

Tan Sri Cheng is the father of Juliana Cheng San San, the Executive Director
of the Company.

Juliana Cheng San San, aged 54, was appointed as an Executive Director
of the Company on 28 August 2015 and in 2022, Ms. Cheng is entrusted
with additional responsibilities for audit, legal and public relations of the
Company.

Ms. Cheng started her career with the Lion Group in 1995 with stints in
Singapore and Malaysia. During her tenure from 1995 to 2004, she held
various positions in finance, human resource, administration and business
development. In 2004, Ms. Cheng was seconded to Parkson China as
Cosmetics Manager and thus, began her career in the retail industry. She
left Parkson China in May 2006 and joined Chanel (China) Co Ltd as the
National Accounts Manager for business development in the PRC. In June
2010, she re-joined Parkson China as Regional Director overseeing its
retail operations in the PRC. She is also a director of various subsidiaries
of the Company. During her more than 25 years with Lion Group, Parkson
China and Chanel (China) Co Ltd, she has accumulated vast experience
and knowledge of the retail and branding industry which enables her to
contribute to the Group.

Ms. Cheng graduated with a Bachelor's Degree in Commerce (Management)
from University of Western Sydney, Australia in 1994 and completed a
Program for Global Leadership from Harvard Business School in year 2000.

Ms. Cheng is the daughter of Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem, the Executive
Director and Chairman of the Company. From 24 May 2002 to 30 June
2014, Ms. Cheng was an alternate director to Tan Sri Cheng in LTC
Corporation Limited (formerly known as “Lion Teck Chiang Limited"), a
public listed company then listed in Singapore.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dato' Sri Dr. Hou Kok Chung, aged 61, was appointed as a Non-executive
Director and a member of the Audit Committee of the Company on 13
November 2014. Dato’ Sri Dr. Hou was a Member of Parliament and the
Deputy Minister of Higher Education Malaysia from 2008 to 2013. He holds
the Bachelor and Master of Arts from University of Malaya, while his Ph.D
was received from the School of Oriental and African Studies, University of
London.

Dato’ Sri Dr. Hou served at University of Malaya from 1990 to 2008
as a lecturer and lastly as Associate Professor. During his tenure in
the university, he had been appointed and held positions as Head of
Department of East Asian Studies, and Director of Institute of China
Studies. He was appointed as an independent non-executive director of
Furniweb Holdings Limited, a public listed company on the main board of
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on 20 September 2017.

Dato' Sri Dr. Hou was a member of the Senate in the Parliament of
Malaysia. He resigned as the Vice President of the Malaysian Chinese
Association (MCA) and Chairman of the Institute of Strategic Analysis
& Policy Research (INSAP) on 2 December 2018. Dato' Sri Dr. Hou is the
Council Member of Tunku Abdul Rahman University of Management and
Technology (TAR-UMT) and a Guest Professor at Xiamen University China.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dato' Fu Ah Kiow, aged 75, was appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director on 13 November 2014. Dato’ Fu was appointed as
Chairman of the Audit Committee on 29 February 2016 and is a member
of the Nomination Committee of the Company. Dato’ Fu holds a Master
Degree in Industrial Engineering specialising in Management Science, Post
Graduate Diploma in Education and a B.Sc. (Hons) degree in Physics. Dato'
Fu has 13 years of distinguished services since 1995 in the Parliament
and Malaysian Government as member of the Parliament, Parliamentary
Secretary and Deputy Minister. Before joining the Government, Dato' Fu has
worked in a few multinational companies. After retirement from politics
in 2008, Dato' Fu was appointed as independent director cum chairman in
several listed companies.

Dato’ Fu is currently the non-independent and non-executive chairman
of Tiong Nam Logistics Holding Berhad, public listed company in Bursa
Malaysia Berhad.
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Yau Ming Kim, Robert, aged 85, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director on 1 January 2007, and is the Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee and a member of the Audit Committee and
Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr. Yau was the Chief Executive
or Managing Director of many major international and local apparel
companies since 1971. From 1998 to 2004, he was appointed as the Vice
Chairman of Hong Kong Exporters’ Association, a member of the Executive
Committee of The Hong Kong Shippers' Council and the Garment Advisory
Committee of The Hong Kong Trade Development Council.

Mr. Yau is currently an independent non-executive director of Alltronics
Holdings Limited and Tungtex (Holdings) Company Limited respectively,
which shares are both listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited.

Mr. Yau has been censured by the Listing Committee of the Stock Exchange
on 28 June 2021 in connection with the disciplinary action against
Alltronics Holdings Limited (stock code: 833), a company listed on the main
board of the Stock Exchange, and its 10 directors, of whom Mr. Yau is one
of the independent non-executive directors. Details as per announcement
of the Company made on 2 July 2021.

Datuk Koong Lin Loong, aged 59, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director on 22 February 2021 and is the member of Audit
Committee and Remuneration Committee of the Company. Datuk Koong is
qualified as member of ASEAN Chartered Professional Accountants (ASEAN
CPA), the Malaysian Institute of Accountants (MIA), the Certified Practising
Accountants Australia (CPA Australia), the Malaysian Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (MICPA), the Institute of Internal Auditors Malaysia
and Kampuchea Institute of Certified Public Accountants and Auditors
(KICPAA), and fellow member of Chartered Tax Institute of Malaysia
(CTIM) and Chartered Institute of Management Accountants in the United
Kingdom (CIMA), associate member of Malaysian Association of Company
Secretaries.

Datuk Koong is an independent non-executive director of Parkson Retail
Asia Limited (stock code: SG2D81975377 - Q9E), a company listed on the
Mainboard of Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited, which is an
associated corporation of the Company.
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Datuk Koong is the practising Auditor of Ministry of Finance in Malaysia,
Treasurer General of Associated Chinese Chambers of Commerce and
Industry of Malaysia (ACCCIM): Chairman of ACCCIM Small & Medium
Enterprises (SMEs) Committee. He is also a Board member of SME
Corporation Malaysia under the Ministry of Entrepreneur & Cooperatives
Development (MECD), Board member of The Credit Counselling and Debt
Management Agency (AKPK) under the Central Bank of Malaysia, Customs
Oversight Committee and Sales & services Tax Technical Committee of
Royal Malaysian Customs Department. Currently, Datuk Koong is the
Managing Partner and director of Reanda LLKG International, Chartered
Accountants. He is also the President of Southeast Asia & South Asia
Region of Reanda International Network and the Chairman of its
International Tax Panel. He is also a member of the Practice Review
Committee of MIA.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Juliana Cheng San San, aged 54, was appointed as the Executive Director
of the Company on 28 August 2015. Ms. Cheng oversees the Financial
Division, Public Relationship Division, New Business Division and the Risk
Control Center of the Group. Her other biographical details are set out
under the paragraph headed "Executive Directors" above.

Zhou lJia, aged 52, has been re-designated from the Acting Chief Executive
Officer to the Chief Executive Office of the Group ("CEQ") in July 2022. Mr.
Zhou obtained his bachelor degree in Business Administration from Yuzhou
University (Currently known as Chongging Technology and Business
University). In 1995, he joined the Merchandising Division of Chongging
Wanyou Parkson and was promoted to the Assistant General Manager of
Kunming Parkson in 2002. Mr. Zhou was promoted as the head of Kunming
Parkson in 2004, the Regional General Manager in 2010, the Group's Senior
Operating Officer in 2014 and the Group's Chief Operation Officer in 2016.

Li Bing, aged 67, has been re-designated from the Acting Chief Operating
Officer to the Chief Operating Officer of the Group in July 2022. Mr. Li
owned 15-year-working experience in large state-owned enterprises,
graduated from Chongging University with a bachelor's degree in
mechanical engineering. Mr. Li joined Parkson in 1996. In 2005, he was
promoted as the head of Nanning Parkson. Then he was promoted as
the head of Parkson in both Guangxi and Guangdong provinces in 2011
and worked as the Chief Operating Officer of the two regions in 2014.
After three years, he took charge of the regions of Guangdong, Guangxi,
Hunan and Jiangxi provinces. In 2019, he was appointed the Deputy Chief
Operating Officer of the Group as well as Senior Operating Officer of
Southeast Region.
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Yoong Kang Chee, aged 43, has been appointed as the Chief Financial
Officer of the Group in February 2023, heading up the finance department
that oversees accounting, reporting, tax, investment, treasury, capital
management and offshore compliance management functions, etc.
Mr. Yoong holds a Bachelor Degree from Tsinghua University, School
of Economics and Management, majoring in Management Information
Systems. He is also a Chartered Financial Analyst (CFA) charterholder. Mr,
Yoong has more than 15 years of wide-ranging experience spanning retail,
consumer, infrastructure, environmental protection and manufacturing
industries, and has gained extensive exposure in financial and business
management. He also served as Vice President and Treasurer at Shanghai
Singapore Business Association for a one-year term in 2017, the precursor
to SingCham Shanghai.

Zhang Ji Ning, aged 50, has been appointed as the General Manager of
the Qingdao Lion Mall and the General Manager of Qingdao region since
2014. Mr. Zhang has more than 25 years of retail operation experience.
He obtained his Master of Arts in International Relations in Economy and
Trade from Nankai University. The program was a partnership between the
Flinders University from South Australia and Nankai University.

Li Zhong Hui, aged 52, has been appointed as General Manager of Risk
Control Center and auditing director of the Group since August 2018. He
graduated from Shandong University with a bachelor degree in Economic
Law in 1992. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Li served as the chief risk
officer, general manager of risk control division and auditing director in
NVC Lighting, Tsinghua Unigroup Ltd. and Cedar Holdings.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company recognises the importance of good corporate governance
to the Company's healthy growth and has devoted considerable efforts in
identifying and formulating corporate governance practices appropriate
to the Company's records. The Company's corporate governance practices
are based on the principles and code provisions as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the "CG Code"), which contained in Appendix C1 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the "Listing Rules").

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Company has fully complied
with the CG Code (to the extent that such provisions are applicable). The
Company will continue to enhance its corporate governance practices
appropriate to the conduct and growth of its businesses and to review such
practices from time to time to ensure that they comply with the CG Code.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix C3 of the Listing Rules
(the "Model Code"). Specific enquiry has been made to all the Directors and
all Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the standard as
set out in the Model Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2023.

The Company has also established written guidelines no less exacting
than the Model Code (the "Employees Written Guidelines") for securities
transactions by employees who are likely to be in possession of
unpublished price-sensitive information of the Company.

No incident of non-compliance of the Employees Written Guidelines by the
employees was noted by the Company.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

As of the date of this report, the Board comprised 6 Directors, including
2 executive Directors, 1 non-executive Director and 3 Independent non-
executive Directors. Below is the list of all Directors.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem (Chairman)
Juliana Cheng San San

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Dato’ Sri Dr. Hou Kok Chung

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dato’ Fu Ah Kiow
Yau Ming Kim, Robert
Datuk Koong Lin Loong

The Directors’ biographical information and the relationships between the
members of the Board are set out in the "Biographies of Directors and
Senior Management" section on pages 17 to 22 of this report.

Save as disclosed in this annual report, there is no financial, business,
family or other material/relevant relationship among the Directors and
senior management.

CORPORATE CULTURE

As a leading national lifestyle retail operator, we believe that a healthy
corporate culture and sound governance are the foundation for sustainable
development and building trust with all stakeholders. Our core values
are dedication, integrity & honesty, team spirit, customer orientation,
and mutual respect. We adhere to the principles of fairness, impartiality,
integrity and honesty, and focus on innovative services and responsible
operations as our main business strategy. Through specialised training
and daily publicity, the Company continuously strengthens its employees'
awareness of business ethics and anti-fraud, and creates a clean business
ecosystem. The Company emphasises intellectual property protection,
develops compliant marketing, and builds a responsible supply chain in
order to ultimately provide consumers with better service and high quality
products.

As of the date of this report, the Board has reviewed and considered that
the corporate culture of the Company is consistent with the mission,
values and strategies of the Group. Details of the corporate culture and
related initiatives of the Company can be found in the section headed
“Environmental, Social and Governance Report" of this annual report.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

As of the date of this report, the Chairman of the Company is Tan Sri
Cheng Heng Jem and CEO of the Group is Mr. Zhou. The Chairman provides
leadership and is responsible for the effective functioning and leadership
of the Board. The CEO focuses on the Company's business development and
daily management and operations generally.

There is a clear division of responsibilities between the Chairman and the
CEO to ensure that there is a balance of power and authority. The Chairman
is primarily responsible for the orderly conduct and working of the Board
whilst the CEO is responsible for the overall operations of the Group and
the implementation of the Board's strategies and policies.

Management is responsible for the day-to-day operations of the Group
under the leadership of the Chairman and the CEQ.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has met the Listing Rules requirements regarding the
sufficient number of Independent Non-executive Directors with one
Independent Non-executive Director with appropriate qualifications.
The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-executive
Directors an annual confirmation as regards independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the
Independent Non-executive Directors are independent.

BOARD INDEPENDENCE EVALUATION

The Company has established a Board Independence Evaluation Mechanism
which sets out the processes and procedures to ensure a strong
independent element on the Board, which allows the Board effectively
exercises independent judgment to better safequard Shareholders'
interests.

The objectives of the evaluation are to improve Board effectiveness,
maximise strengths, and identify the areas that need improvement or
further development. The evaluation process also clarifies what actions
of the Company need to be taken to maintain and improve the Board
performance, for instance, addressing individual training and development
needs of each Director.

Pursuant to the Board Independence Evaluation Mechanism, the Board
will conduct annual review on its independence. The Board Independence
Evaluation Report will be presented to the Board which will collectively
discuss the results and the action plan for improvement, if appropriate.

As of the date of this report, all Directors has completed the independence
evaluation in the form of a questionnaire individually. The evaluation
results were presented to the Board and considered satisfactory.
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APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Code Provision B.2.2 of the CG Code stipulates that every director,
including those appointed for a specific term, should be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years. Under the Articles
of Association of the Company, at each annual general meeting, one-third
of the Directors for the time being, or if their number is not three or a
multiple of three, the number nearest to but not less than one-third shall
retire from office by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject
to retirement by rotation at least once every three years. The Company's
Articles of Association also provides that all Directors appointed to fill a
casual vacancy or as addition to the Board shall hold office until the first
annual general meeting after appointment. The retiring Directors shall be
eligible for re-election.

Each of the Non-executive Director and the Independent Non-executive
Directors of the Company are appointed for a term of three years
respectively. All the Directors are subject to renewal and retirement
by rotation once every three years in accordance with the Articles of
Association of the Company and the CG Code.

RESPONSIBILITIES, ACCOUNTABILITIES AND CONTRIBUTIONS
OF THE BOARD AND MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the Company and
oversees the Group's businesses, strategic decisions and performance and
is collectively responsible for promoting the success of the Company by
directing and supervising its affairs. The Board take decisions objectively in
the interests of the Company.

The Board directly and indirectly through its committees, leads and
provides direction to management by laying down strategies and
overseeing their implementation, monitors the Group's operational and
financial performance, and ensures that sound internal control and risk
management systems are in place.

All Directors, including Non-executive Directors and Independent Non-
executive Directors, have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business
experience, knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its efficient
and effective functioning.

All Directors have full and timely access to all the information of
the Company as well as the services and advice from the company
secretary and senior management. The Directors may, upon request, seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the
Company's expenses for discharging their duties to the Company.
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The Directors shall disclose to the Company details of other offices held by
them and the Board regularly reviews the contribution required from each
Director to perform his responsibilities to the Company.

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters relating to policy
matters, strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management,
material transactions (in particular those that may involve conflict of
interests), financial information, appointment of Directors and other
significant operational matters of the Company. Responsibilities relating
to implementing decisions of the Board, directing and coordinating the
daily operation and management of the Company are delegated to the
management.

The Board as a whole is also responsible for reviewing its composition,
developing and formulating the relevant procedures for nomination and
appointment of Directors, monitoring the appointment and succession
planning of Directors and assessing the independence of Independent Non-
executive Directors.

The Board reviewed its own structure, size and composition regularly to
ensure that it has a balance of expertise, skills and experience relevant to
the Company's business.

Where vacancies on the Board exist, the Board will carry out the selection
process by making reference to the skills, experience, professional
knowledge, personal integrity and time commitments of the proposed
candidates, the Company's needs and other relevant statutory requirements
and regulations. An external recruitment agency may be engaged to carry
out the recruitment and selection process when necessary.

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT OF DIRECTORS

Directors keep abreast of responsibilities as a Director of the Company and
of the conduct, business activities and development of the Company.

Every newly appointed Director will receive formal, comprehensive and
tailored induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment to ensure
appropriate understanding of the business and operations of the Company
and full awareness of Director's responsibilities and obligations under the
Listing Rules and relevant statutory requirements.

Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure
that their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.
Internally-facilitated briefings for Directors will be arranged and reading
material on relevant topics will be issued to Directors where appropriate.
All Directors are encouraged to attend relevant training courses at the
Company's expenses.
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During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Directors have complied
with Code Provision C.1.4 to participate in continuous professional
development and receive trainings.

Record of training received by the Directors for the year ended 31
December 2023 are summarised as follows:
Directors Type of Training Note

Executive Directors

Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem A/B
Juliana Cheng San San A/B
Non-executive Directors

Dato’ Sri Dr. Hou Kok Chung A/B
Independent Non-executive Directors

Dato' Fu Ah Kiow A/B

Yau Ming Kim, Robert A
Datuk Koong Lin Loong A/B

Note:

Types of Training

A. Attending training sessions, including but not limited to, briefings,
seminars, conferences and workshops

B. Reading relevant news alerts, newspapers, journals, magazines and relevant
publications

In addition, relevant reading materials including legal and regulatory
update have been provided to the Directors for their reference and
studying.

BOARD MEETINGS AND ATTENDANCE

Regular board meetings are held at least four (4) times a year with
additional meetings to be convened as and when necessary to determine
the overall strategic directions and objectives of the Group and approve
quarterly, interim and annual results and other significant matters.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXERES

During the year ended 31 December 2023, four(4) board meetings were HREE_E_=-F+_B=+—HIF

held and the Directors' attendances are listed below: B rBROTNWREZEEH EFZ2HE
BRUT -

Number of

Board Meetings

Held During
the Director's Number of
Term of Office Meetings
in 2023 Attended

AT

ZEEREHA

BITZ2EFE

Name of the Directors BEXH
Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem (Chairman) B EiEEs (/E) 4 4
Juliana Cheng San San 25 I 3 4 4
Dato’ Sri Dr. Hou Kok Chung EENEMEEEL 4 4
Dato' Fu Ah Kiow =EEPER 4 4
Yau Ming Kim, Robert FEH#E % 4 3
Datuk Koong Lin Loong =EEALSHEE 4 4

The Chairman had met with the Independent Non-executive Director HE_ZT_=F+_B=+—HLEFE"
without the presence of the other Directors during the year ended 31 ETREBHEITEEMEEEFE BT FEE
December 2023. TIEHITESEE-

Code Provision C.1.6 stipulates that Independent Non-executive SFRMEXEECI6MERTE  BIUIERITES
Directors and other Non-executive Directors should attend the issuer's MREMIEHTEEHBAEEZRTAREKR
general meetings and develop a balanced understanding of the views of &> UHREEEBALEMT R
shareholders.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Directors' attendances atthe MREE_E_=F+_A=+—H1&E

Company's general meeting are listed below: EBEZHEARBREAGZBERWT:
Annual General Number of
Meeting on Meeting
18 May 2023 Attended
B =

HA+N\H

BITZRE

Name of the Directors HEXRE
Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem (Chairman) FREEEER (F/E) 1 1
Juliana Cheng San San 28 Tt 5 1 1
Dato' Sri Dr. Hou Kok Chung EEHEMERIEL 1 1
Dato’ Fu Ah Kiow EEHDHE 1 1
Yau Ming Kim, Robert E#Zal 1 0
Datuk Koong Lin Loong =ELSBE 1 1
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EXERRS

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an Audit Committee. It currently comprises
four (4) members, three (3) are Independent Non-executive Directors,
namely Dato' Fu Ah Kiow (Chairman of the Audit Committee), Mr. Yau Ming
Kim, Robert and Datuk Koong Lin Loong, and the other member is a Non-
executive Director, namely, Dato' Sri Dr. Hou Kok Chung.

The Audit Committee is required: (i) to advise the Board on the
appointment and retention of external auditor; (i) to review the external
auditor's independence and objectivity; (iii) to review quarterly, interim
and annual accounts of the Group; (iv) to access the adequacy and
effectiveness of internal control; and (v) to review the internal audit
function and internal control procedures.

The Audit Committee shall meet at least twice a year and the Chief
Financial Officer, Chief Internal Auditor, In-House Counsel, the Compliance
Officer and a representative of the external auditors of the Company shall
normally be invited to attend the meetings. The Company Secretary or her
nominee shall be the secretary of the Audit Committee.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Audit Committee held four
(4) meetings and the attendances are listed below:

Name of the Audit Committee Member

Dato’ Fu Ah Kiow EEHPDHE
Yau Ming Kim, Robert 8%

Dato' Sri Dr. Hou Kok Chung
Datuk Koong Lin Loong 2EEASCHE
During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Audit Committee had met
with the executive Directors and management of the Company to review
the quarterly, interim and annual results, the interim report and annual
report and other financial, internal control, corporate governance and risk
management matters of the Group and made recommendations to the
Board. The Audit Committee had met with the external auditor without the
presence of management and discussed about the interim financial report,
its annual audit of the consolidated financial statements and key audit
issues.

The Group's results for the year 2023 was reviewed by the Audit
Committee.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Pursuant to the requirements of the CG Code, the Company's
Remuneration Committee currently consists of three (3) members, two (2)
of whom are Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Yau Ming
Kim, Robert (Chairman of the Remuneration Committee) and Datuk Koong
Lin Loong, and the other member is an Executive Director, namely Tan Sri
Cheng Heng Jem.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible to review and make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of individual
Directors and senior management, the remuneration policy and structure
for all Directors; develop the Group's policy on remuneration for its
Directors (including Executive Directors) so as to ensure that it attracts
and retains the Directors needed to manage the Company and the Group
effectively and review and approve matters relating to share scheme under
Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules (if any). Directors do not participate in
decisions regarding their own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee shall meet at least once a year and at
such other times as its chairman shall require. During the year ended 31
December 2023, the Remuneration Committee held one (1) meeting and
the attendances are listed below:

Name of the Remuneration Committee Member

Yau Ming Kim, Robert 8%
Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem T EEER
Datuk Koong Lin Loong EX=Fiies

The Remuneration Committee has reviewed the remuneration policy
and the remuneration packages of the individual Directors and senior
management during the year ended 31 December 2023.

Particulars of the Directors' remuneration for the year ended 31 December
2023 is set out in Note 7 to the consolidated financial statement.
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Pursuant to Code Provision E.1.5 of the CG Code, the remuneration paid
to the members of the senior management (excluding Directors) whose
particulars are contained in the section headed "Biographies of Directors
and Senior Management" by band during the year ended 31 December
2023 is set out below:

Remuneration band (HK$)

Nil to 1,000,000 Z %1,000,000

#FEsE (Br)

RIELEERTHTREXE1S BIEZ
B F+_A=+—HIEEEZGFTS
HREEEBAE FEEESR) (HABHEN
EEREREEBRE —&) NREE
B OMEFEEIINOT

Number of

person(s)

A

1,000,001 to 2,000,000 1,000,0012 2,000,000 3

2,000,001 to 3,000,000 2,000,0012 3,000,000 1

3,000,001 to 4,000,000 3,000,0012 4,000,000 1
NOMINATION COMMITTEE e HEe

The Nomination Committee consists of three (3) members, one (1) of whom
is an Executive Director, namely Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem (Chairman of the
Nomination Committee) and the other two (2) members are Independent
Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Yau Ming Kim, Robert and Dato' Fu Ah
Kiow.

The Nomination Committee is responsible to review the structure, size,
composition and diversity (including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional and industry experience, skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board and make recommendations to
the Board on appointment of the directors, review the Board Diversity
Policy and the Director Nomination Policy and assess the independence of
Independent Non-executive Directors, so as to ensure that all nominations
are fair and transparent.

The Nomination Committee will discuss and where necessary, agree on
the measurable objectives for achieving diversity on the Board and make
recommendation to the Board.

The Company has adopted a Director Nomination Policy which sets out the
criteria and process in the nomination and appointment of directors of the
Company with a view to ensure that the Company's board of directors has
a balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to
the Company and to ensure the Company's board of directors' continuity
and appropriate leadership at the board level.
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The nomination process set out in the Director Nomination Policy is as
follows:

Upon receipt of the proposal on appointment of new director and the
biographical information of the candidate, the Nomination Committee will
evaluate such candidate based on the criteria as set out in the Director
Nomination Policy to determine whether such candidate is qualified for
directorship. If the process yields one or more desirable candidates, the
Nomination Committee will rank them by order of preference based on
the needs of the Company and reference check of each candidate before
recommending them to the Board.

When considering the re-election of Director at general meeting, the
Nomination Committee will review and determine the (i) whether the
retiring director continue to meet the criteria as set out in the Director
Nomination Policy: and (ii) the overall contribution and service to the
Company of the retiring director and the level of participation and
performance on the Board.

Where the Board proposes a resolution to elect or re-elect a candidate as
director at the general meeting, the relevant information of the candidate
will be disclosed in the circular to shareholders and/or explanatory
statement accompanying the notice of the relevant general meeting in
accordance with the Listing Rules and/or applicable laws and regulations.

The Board and the Nomination Committee regularly examine the Board's
size and, with a view to determine the impact of the number upon
effectiveness, decide on an appropriate size of the Board, taking into
account the scope and nature of the Group's operations.

The Board comprises a balanced and well diversified members of different
age, cultural background and ethnicity. They provide the Board with the
necessary experience and expertise to direct and lead the Group.

A truly diverse Board will include and make good use of differences
in the skills, region and industry experience, background, race, gender
and other qualities of Directors. These differences will be taken into
account in determining the optimum composition of the Board. All Board
appointments will be based on merit while taking into account diversity.
The Nomination Committee will report annually (if it is necessary) in the
corporate governance report, on the Board's composition under diversified
perspectives, and monitor the implementation of this policy.

The Nomination Committee is satisfied that the Board has the appropriate
mix of expertise to lead and govern the Group effectively and provide a
balance of views.
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The Nomination Committee shall meet at least once a year and at such
other times as its chairman shall require. During the year ended 31
December 2023, the Nomination Committee held one (1) meetings and the
attendances are listed below:

Name of the Nomination Committee Member

Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem P RiEEH
Yau Ming Kim, Robert 8%
Dato' Fu Ah Kiow EEPDH

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Nomination Committee
had reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board and the
independence of the Independent Non-executive Directors, considered the
qualifications of the retiring directors standing for election at the annual
general meeting, and considered and recommended to the Board on the
appointment of Independent Non-executive Director.

BOARD DIVERSITY

The Company has adopted Board Diversity Policy which sets out, among
others, a number of aspects of board diversity in reviewing and assessing
the board composition and nomination of directors, as applicable. The
Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having a diverse board,
and sees diversity at Board level as an essential element in maintaining a
competitive advantage.

Pursuant to the Board Diversity Policy, the Nomination Committee
reviews regularly the structure, size and composition of the Board and
where appropriate, make recommendations on changes to the Board to
complement the Company's corporate strategy and to ensure that the
Board maintains a balanced diverse profile. In relation to reviewing and
assessing the Board composition, the Nomination Committee is committed
to diversity at all levels and will consider a number of aspects, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and regional and industry
experience.
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The Nomination Committee and the Board are of the view that the current
composition of the Board has achieved the objectives set in the Board
Diversity Policy.

Gender Diversity

The Company values gender diversity across all levels of the Group.
The female and male employee gender ratio as at 31 December 2023
is 59.0:41.0. The Group when hiring employees considers a number of
factors, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and education
background, qualification, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service, and the Group will make sure achieving
gender diversity across the workforce.

The Board is satisfied that the Company has achieved gender diversity in its
workforce.

Details on the gender ratio of the Group together with relevant data can be
found in the Environmental, Social and Governance Report on pages 56 to
61 of this Annual Report.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a Dividend Policy on 20 November 2018 which
aims to set out the principles and guidelines that the Company intends
to apply in relation to the declaration, payment or distribution of its net
profits as dividends to the shareholders of the Company.

The Board shall take into account the following factors: (a) the Articles
of Association of the Company; (b) the applicable restrictions and
requirements under the laws of the Cayman Islands; (c) any banking or
other funding covenants by which the Company is bound from time to
time; (d) the investment and operating requirements of the Company; and
(e) any other factors that have material impact on the Company.

The declaration and payment of dividends by the Company shall be
determined at the sole discretion of the Board and shall be subject to
any restrictions under the Companies Act of the Cayman Islands and the
Articles of Association of the Company. The Dividend Policy will continue
to be reviewed from time to time and there can be no assurance that
dividends will be proposed or declared in any particular amount for any
given period.

RAZEER % B EFEEEAN
HREEFEEEZ TCERBER SR

L FIEZS (s

ANBEREAEBREBEENMRZ T
fE-R_E-_=ZFE+_-_HA=+—H &Mk
KB MHE THRIEHA59.0 1 41.00 AEE
EA1E1J%EIB#%FEA-@¢I%’@%TE$BE
RUERFB - N EREEEE EF &
B BELR BE -TNBKRBEER 4
ERRBREEEREETIERMNMRZ e

EFEZ2EMALEERHEEIERDTEIR
MERIZ b e

B B A & B % B LE 5 BY 5% 15 B 48 B &L
?)‘E HNAFHRFCEEFNENIRE L

KERmE -

RS EER
ARFBRZF—N\E+—AZ+HEM
REBE > SHEHIFAFARBEAE R

REIR KT S0k E AR 1F 2R S R
ERARNRAKIES -

EFEREHRUATAR (Q)E2TNA
BIERMA S OREREZERETHNERR
F‘*ﬁJE’Z%ﬁE S(OERB AR ELRER

TREMMERS (DERBANRER
ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁz s RVE R RBBRERT EN
EREMRAE-

AABMREERKKNEHESES 2R
NIBRE NEETHEHRERRETH
ARG REATDHNRABEZERMA KB
BERB#E T LG B RES
AEASEHBEEIE RTASESEE
BIRR S o

PARKSON RETAIL GROUP LIMITED BREBXEEBIRAR

35



36

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

EEERRS

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Executive Committee was established by the Board for performing the
functions set out in the Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Board reviewed the
Company's corporate governance policies and practices, training and
continuous professional development of Directors and senior management,
the Company's policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements, the compliance of the Model Code and Employees
Written Guidelines, and the Company's compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.

AUDITOR'S REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid/payable to the Company's external auditor, Grant
Thornton Hong Kong Limited, in respect of the year ended 31 December
2023 is set out below:
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Fees Paid/

Payable

g1t/

B &R

Service Category BRFSEREY RMB'000
ANEREEFIT

Audit services ZH AR 3,016
Non-audit services IEZBRTS 150
Total Mt 3,166

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
consolidated financial statements of the Group that gives a true and
fair view on a going concern basis and the Board was not aware of any
material uncertainties.

The statement of the auditor on their reporting responsibilities on the

consolidated financial statements of the Group is set out in the Auditor's
Report on pages 103 to 109 of this report.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the risk management
and internal control systems and reviewing their effectiveness at least
annually. The system has been designed for: (i) safequarding assets against
unauthorised user or disposition; (i) ensuring the maintenance of proper
accounting records for the provision of reliable financial information for
internal use or for publication; and (iii) ensuring compliance of applicable
laws, rules and regulations. Such systems are designed to manage rather
than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can
only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.

The Company's risk management and internal control systems have been
developed with the following principles, features and processes:

- Identity significant risks in the Group's operation environment;

- Assess and evaluate the impacts of those risks on the Group's
business and the likelihood of their occurrence;

- Develop necessary measures to prevent, avoid or mitigate the risks;

- Monitor and review the effectiveness of such measures and report
to the Audit Committee and the Board regularly.

The Board has the overall responsibility for evaluating and determining
the nature and extent of the risk that it is willing to take in achieving
the Company's strategic objectives, and establishing and maintaining
appropriate and effective risk management and internal control systems.

The Audit Committee assists the Board in leading the management
and overseeing their design, implementing and monitoring of the risk
management and internal control systems.

The management, in coordination with division/department heads, assesses
the likelihood of risk occurrence, provides treatment plans to mitigate
risks in day-to-day operations, monitors the risk management progress,
and provides confirmation to the Board and the Audit Committee on the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems.
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In order to enhance the Group's system of handling inside information
and to ensure the truthfulness, accuracy, completeness and timeliness of
its public disclosures, the Group has adopted and implemented an inside
information procedure. Certain reasonable measures have been taken from
time to time to ensure that proper safeguards exist to prevent a breach
of a disclosure requirement in relation to the Group, which include the
maintaining of a good control environment with defined organisational
limit of authority, reporting lines and responsibilities
in accordance with the Company's guidelines and the regulatory
requirements.

structure,

The management has confirmed to the Board on the effectiveness of
the risk management and internal control systems for the year ended 31
December 2023.

The Internal Audit Department is responsible for performing independent
review of the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems and provides its findings and recommendations
for improvement to the management and the Audit Committee.

The Board, as supported by the Audit Committee as well as the
management report and the internal audit findings, reviewed the risk
management and internal control systems, including the financial,
operational and compliance controls of the Group, for the year ended
31 December 2023, and considered that such systems are effective and
adequate. The annual review also covered the financial reporting and
internal audit function and staff qualifications, experiences and relevant
resources.

The Company has in place an anti-corruption system within all its
employees, which forms part of the Company's employees staff manual.
Employees are required to act with integrity and to report any suspected
bribery, corruptions and money laundering cases to the Risk Control
Center. The employees are required to declare any conflict of interest when
performing their duties.

Whistleblowing procedures are in place to facilitate employees of the
Company to raise, in confidence, concerns about possible improprieties in
financial reporting, internal control or other matters of the Company.

The Company has developed its disclosure policy which provides a
general guide to the Company's Directors, officers, senior management
and relevant employees in handling confidential information, monitoring
information disclosure and responding to enquiries.

Control procedures have been implemented to ensure that unauthorised
access and use of inside information are strictly prohibited.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Yuen Wing Yan, Winnie ("Ms. Yuen") of Tricor Services Limited, external
service provider, has been engaged by the Company as the company
secretary. Its primary contact persons at the Company are Ms. Juliana
Cheng San San and Mr. Yoong Kang Chee. Ms. Yuen has undertaken not less
than 15 hours of relevant professional training during the year ended 31
December 2023 pursuant to Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholders' interests and rights, a separate resolution is
proposed for each substantially separate issue at shareholders' meetings,
including the election of individual Directors. All resolutions put forward at
shareholders’ meetings will be voted by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules
and poll results will be posted on the websites of the Company and of the
Stock Exchange after each general meeting.

CONVENING AN EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING BY
SHAREHOLDERS

Pursuant to Article 79 of the Company's Articles of Association, the Board
may, whenever it thinks fit, convene an extraordinary general meeting.
General meetings shall also be convened on the written requisition of one
or more members (including a recognized clearing house (or its nominees))
of the Company deposited at the principal office of the Company in Hong
Kong or, in the event the Company ceases to have such a principal office,
the registered office specifying the objects of the meeting and signed by
the requisitionist(s), provided that such requisitionist(s) held as at the date
of deposit of the requisition in aggregate at least one-tenth of the voting
rights at general meetings, on a one vote per share basis, in the share
capital of the Company, and such requisitionists(s) may add resolutions
to the meeting agenda so convened. If the Board does not within 21
days from the date of deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene
the meeting to be held within a further 21 days, the requisitionist(s)
themselves, may convene the general meeting as a physical meeting at
only one location which will be the Principal Meeting Place in the manner,
as nearly as possible, as that in which meetings may be convened by the
Board provided that any meeting so convened shall not be held after the
expiration of three months from the date of deposit of the requisition, and
all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the
failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to them by the Company.
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PUTTING FORWARD ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board of the Company,
shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company.

Under normal circumstances, the Company will not deal with verbal or
anonymous enquiries.

CONTACT DETAILS

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned above to
the following:
Address: 5th Floor, Metro Plaza

No. 555 Loushanguan Road

Changning District

Shanghai 200051

China

(For the attention of Chairman of the Board)
(8621) 6229-8001

(8621) 3258-0520

Telephone:
Fax:

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholders must deposit and send the
original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or enquiry (as
the case may be) to the above address and provide their full name, contact
details and identification in order to give effect thereto. Shareholders'
information may be disclosed as required by the law.

PUTTING FORWARD PROPOSALS AT SHAREHOLDERS' MEETING

A shareholder shall make a written requisition to the Board or the company
secretary at the Company's head office and principal place of business,
specifying the shareholding information of the shareholder, his/her contact
details and the proposal he/she intends to put forward at general meeting
regarding any specified transaction/ousiness and its supporting documents.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTORS

The Company considers that effective communication with shareholders
is essential for enhancing investor relations and investor understanding
of the Group's business performance and strategies. The Company
endeavours to maintain an on-going dialogue with shareholders and in
particular, through annual general meetings and other general meetings.
The Chairman of the Board, all other members of the Board including
Non-executive Directors, Independent Non-executive Directors, and the
Chairmen of all Board committees (or their delegates) will make themselves
available at the annual general meetings to meet shareholders and answer
their enquiries.

The Company has established a Shareholders Communication Policy
which sets out the Company's processes to provide shareholders and
the investment community with ready, equal and timely information on
the Company. An annual review had been undertaken and approved by
the Board and the effectiveness of the policy was confirmed considering
multiple channels were in place and adopted to reflect the current best
practice in communications with shareholders.

On 20 February 2023, the Board announced its proposal to amend the
Articles of Association of the Company in order to bring the Articles of
Association in line with the latest legal and regulatory requirements,
including the amendments made to Appendix 3 (renamed to Appendix A1
effective from 31 December 2023) to the Listing Rules which took effect on
1 January 2022. The adoption of the amended and restated memorandum
and articles of association of the Company has been approved by the
Shareholders at the annual general meeting held on 18 May 2023. Refer to
the announcement of the Company dated 20 February 2023, the circular in
relation to the proposed amendments published on 14 April 2023 and poll
results announcement dated 18 May 2023 by the Company for details.

An up-to-date version of the Company's Articles of Association is also
available on the Company's website and the Stock Exchange's website.

Pursuant to the new Rule 2.07A of the Listing Rules and the Company's
Articles of Association, with effect from 31 December 2023, the Company
will disseminate future corporate communications of the Company to
Shareholders electronically and only send corporate communications
in printed form to Shareholders upon request. Refer to the notice to
Shareholders of the Company dated 31 January 2024 for details on the new
arrangements.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

IRIR « 1B RERERS

Welcome to Parkson's Environmental, Social and Governance ("ESG") (2023)
Report, which provides an overview of Parkson's ESG-related management
measures, practices, progress, and achievements in 2023.

As the global economy continued to recover with the digital economy
thriving in 2023, Parkson has been actively building a holistic business
model, integrating both online and offline operations to bring consumers
quality services, products and a seamless shopping experience. Meanwhile,
the Group has incorporated the concept of sustainability into its long-
term development strategy and remains committed to responsible business
practices. We continue to improve in corporate governance, environmental
protection and social responsibility, actively promote sustainable
lifestyles, and endeavour to build long-lasting sustainable value with our
stakeholders, such as shareholders, investors, consumers, employees and
suppliers.

REPORTING STANDARDS

This report is prepared in accordance with the £SG Reporting Guide set
out in Appendix C2 to the Listing Rules and covers the main businesses
of Parkson in Chinese mainland and Laos. The KPIs in environmental
and social areas cover our department stores, shopping malls, outlets
and supermarkets operated in Chinese mainland and Laos in 2023, and
employee-related KPIs further include Hong Kong, Malaysia, and Singapore.

This report has been prepared in accordance with the Reporting Principles
of the £SG Reporting Guide, which include:

° Materiality: The Group identifies key ESG areas to be concerned
through stakeholder engagement and materiality assessment and
develops specific strategies and improvement plans.

° Quantification: This report presents the key environmental and
social performance indicators in quantitative terms, attaches with
quantitative data descriptions, explains its purpose and impact, and
provides comparative data.

° Balance: This report provides an unbiased picture of the Group's
current performance on ESG management following the principle of
balance.

° Consistency: The data disclosure and statistics methods used for

this report are consistent with those for the 2022 ESG report to
ensure the comparability of information.
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ESG MANAGEMENT STRATEGY

The Group recognises the importance of sustainable development in
our business operations, and we have established an ESG governance
structure consisting of the Board, senior management and ESG working
group to oversee ESG matters from top to bottom and ensure the smooth
development of the Group's ESG work. The Board's statement on ESG
management is as follows:

The Board of Directors takes requlatory responsibility for the Group's
ESG strategy and reporting, formulates ESG management policy and
strategy, reqularly reviews the ESG-related issues of the Group, identifies
and assesses ESG risks and priorities, and ensures that the Group has in
place appropriate and effective ESG risk management and internal control
systems. Meanwhile, based on the ESG-related objectives, the Board of
Directors regularly reviews the performance and the progress of the Group,
and the relevance of ESG objectives to the Group's business, and approve
the disclosures in the ESG report. During the reporting period, as the
Company's authorised board representative, Ms. Juliana Cheng San San,
an executive Director, implements the ESG management on behalf of the
Board of Directors. Her specific responsibilities include establishing relevant
teams, promoting ESG management capacity building, implementing ESG
work and improving ESG information disclosure to ensure the Group's
scientific and efficient decision-making on all ESG matters.

The Group's senior management is responsible for executing ESG risk
management and internal control systems, reporting ESG risks and
opportunities to the Board, and ensuring the effective operation of relevant
ESG systems.

The ESG working group of the Group engages the principal departments of
Parkson, with the head of each department directly reporting ESG-related
risks upward and implementing ESG management policies approved by
senior management. Moreover, the ESG working group designates persons
to take the responsibility for ESG management and reporting.

In addition, we pay attention to the development of professional
knowledge and skills for members of our ESG governance structure. In
2023, we invited experts from external industries to conduct ESG training
to keep abreast of the latest developments in ESG in the retail industry and
to continuously enhance the Group's ESG governance and management
capabilities.
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STAKEHOLDER COMMUNICATION

In 2023, we continued to build up diversified and smooth communication
channels to listen to the concerns, demands and expectations of our
stakeholders in a timely manner, and to take the views of our stakeholders
on the Group's business plans and programmes into consideration. For
various stakeholders such as government and regulators, shareholders
and investors, employees, business tenants, consumers, suppliers, and the
community, we respond to internal and external concerns and expectations
in a timely manner through diversified communication channels and

practical measures.
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Stakeholders

Expectations and concerns

Communication channels

Communication frequency
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MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT BEMERET

In 2023, the Group reviewed material ESG issues and their materiality — & =4 > NERKRE(ESGREIES|INE
assessment results in accordance with the requirements of the £SG SR> ¥ EBESCEHBERHESE M TG4 RE
Reporting Guide. In conjunction with internal communication and  {TOlEE o F 945 & 1 E R FEBEIFE TN
discussion and the judgement of external experts, each ESG issue's ZPERMAY  HRISCGEENEEREE
materiality was assessed and reviewed, and there were no significant  {T5E{H BB 1% > SR 45 R B X 4 4 5 K50
adjustments to the results of the study from last year. o

ESG materiality assessment matrix
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FOCUSING ON CREATIVE SERVICE

We believe that improving high-quality services and comfortable shopping
experiences can constantly bring us consumer trust and loyalty. Sticking
to protecting the legitimate rights and interests of consumers, we listen
to their voices through offline and online channels. We also provide
them with more novel experiences by introducing emerging brands and
diversifying mall functions, so that they can enjoy the fun of shopping.

In the daily operations, the Group strictly complies with the following laws:

1) Product Quality Law of the People’s Republic of China

2) Law of the People's Republic of China on the Protection of
Consumer Rights and Interests

3) Trademark Law of the People’s Republic of China

Stereoscopic Business Landscape

With a keen sense of consumer preferences and an accurate grasp of the
era development, the Group has built a stereoscopic and flexible business
landscape by introducing emerging and national brands, collaborating
closely with popular IPs, and upgrading the mall space.

In 2023, we introduced a series of emerging tea and clothing brands to
our stores in Datong Shanxi, Wuzhou Guangxi, Zhangjiakou Hebei, etc.,
bringing fresh consumption experiences to local consumers. Recognising
the importance and development potential of national brands, we
cooperated with these brands and established high-quality flagship stores
in Sichuan to provide consumers with more excellent local products. At the
same time, we worked closely with popular IPs to launch a series of offline
marketing activities such as pop-ups and marks to fully meet the social
and consumption preferences of young groups. To upgrade the mall space
and diversify marketing activities, we established trendy and cultural and
creative space, introduced escape rooms and tourism visiting sites in some
stores. Together with diverse marketing interactions to cover consumers of
multiple ages, we delivered diversified and interesting offline consumption
experiences to surrounding residents and tourists.
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Trendy space
Tz

Visiting Parkson pavement City-wide street dance pop-up
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Case: Datong Yunzhong Parkson leads the trend for the young
£ KEAEFEERBY PO > 5| BFEERR

Datong Yunzhong Parkson under the Group planned a series of activities to attract young groups, with
nearly 200,000 visits served. From the firework show on Valentine's Day to the rain of cherry blossoms
on Women's Day, Datong Yunzhong Parkson created a happy sense of ceremony for lovers. A series
of splendid activities, such as ACG Carnival, Honour of Kings Challenge and League of Legends World

Championship Watching, were also held at Datong Yunzhong Parkson to create unforgettable memories >

for the new generation in ordinary days.
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ACG carnival
KRB EFE

As part of the commitment to digital retail, the Group improves online
service platforms, including mini programs for members, online malls,
e-commerce channels, and takeaway platforms, to provide consumers with
intimate, seamless and timely consumption experiences. In 2023, the Group
further upgraded the self-developed mini program "Parkson Member Club"
("member mini program”). In addition to such existing functions as member
points and offline activity inquiry, we have included more activities such
as brand trial, point redemption and blind box lottery in the member mini
program to provide more benefits for Parkson members. Meanwhile, the
member mini program is linked to Parkson online malls, providing services
such as in-store pick-up and express delivery. Through cooperation with
takeaway platforms, we have achieved that “online orders are completed
within 30 minutes” to meet the immediate needs of consumers such as
holiday gifts.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
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Stringent Control of Product Quality

The Group is well aware of the importance of quality to the reputation of
a company and therefore continually takes a strict and prudent approach
to control the quality of goods. We have formulated the Product Quality
Acceptance Standards, and Standard Operation Instructions for Store
Management Department and signed the Assurance of Responsibility for
Product Quality with our suppliers to ensure that the goods provided by
our suppliers are of consistent and reliable quality. We constantly check
the quality of our goods during processes like acceptance and sales to
ensure that all goods are properly labelled and supported with qualification
documents.

The Group attaches great importance to the quality of food products,
personal care products and household goods, as they are directly affecting
the safety and health of consumers. Therefore, we have set up detailed
and clear acceptance procedures for these products. For fresh fruits and
vegetables, meat and other live food products, we have set stringent
requirements on sampling and compliance rates, as well as strict timing
control for acceptance. For other food products, we have clearly stipulated
that their labels must display essential information, such as product type
and content. For personal care products, the Group focuses on checking
labels and performance standards to avoid discrepancies between the
actual functions of the products and their labels. For household products,
we focused on checking whether the products comply with the relevant
national safety specifications, so as to avoid the sale of any uncertified
or non-compliant products in Parkson. Similarly, we conduct targeted
inspections for other types of products, including apparel, gold and silver
jewellery, and imported goods.

Based on strict control of product quality, the Group attaches great
importance to the treatment of substandard products. We have formulated
Instructions for the Treatment of Substandard Products to standardise
the treatment process of substandard products. We have set up quality
assurance personnel and quality and safety management specialists in our
stores, who are responsible for the judgement and handling of substandard
products as well as follow-ups. We adopt an approach of active
investigation and rapid response to deal with suspected non-compliant
or substandard goods found in various manners such as government
inspections, the Group's self-inspection and consumer feedback. We also
confirm the authenticity of the product information and the extent of
its impact as soon as we are informed. If the information is proven to be
accurate, we will immediately take the substandard goods off shelves and,
if necessary, take punitive measures against the corresponding suppliers or
terminate contracts with them.

As of 31 December 2023, there were no products recalled due to safety and
health reasons caused by the Group.
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Providing Quality Service

The Group makes great efforts to build safe and comfortable mall facilities,
and actively responds to consumer demands. We have implemented
the Shopping Mall Facilities Maintenance and Safe Operation Policy.
Specifically, we inspect the firefighting equipment, security system and
hardware facilities of our malls on a regular basis. We also carry out
detailed inspections to ensure that lifts are safe and free of jams, air-
conditioning and ventilation systems are functioning properly, washrooms
are supplied with clean and warm water, and the malls are kept at a
comfortable temperature and circulated with fresh air. During holidays, in
view of the high customer flow in food and beverage premises, the Group
will focus on the inspection of fire hazards over these premises in advance.
By integrating daily inspections with special inspections during holidays,
we are able to safeqguard consumers' safety and comfortable service
experience throughout the year.

As consumers' demands for communication methods evolve, we bear
consumers in mind and endeavour to provide timely, high-quality
and professional guidance and responses when needed. In 2023, the
Group established a new corporate WeChat customer service team and
other corporate accounts on social media platforms in addition to the
traditional channels such as phone calls and the online mini program for
customer services. This further increases the communication channels
with consumers and allows us to receive and respond to consumers'
advice, comments and complaints in time. In 2023, the Group established
hundreds of corporate WeChat service groups, serving nearly 10,000
customers on a one-to-one basis. In addition, we understand that our
staff play a vital role in ensuring consumer satisfaction with our services.
Therefore, in addition to the daily product and service skills training for
our staff, we also provide targeted knowledge training for service staff
and floor managers related to cosmetics and technology products. By
doing so, we continue to improve consumer satisfaction by enhancing the
professionalism and service quality of our staff.

The Group regards consumer complaints as a critical basis for improving
service standards. For example, we have formulated institutional policies
such as the Complaints Handling Procedure and created a graded
processing flowchart based on types of complaints to improve the
overall efficiency of complaints handling. We also developed processes to
authorise our employees a reasonable amount of discretion to prioritize
and ensure that consumer complaints are handled in a positive, timely and
efficient manner. Meanwhile, we have formulated a flexible return and
exchange policy titled Delivery, Return and Exchange FPolicies of Parkson
Online Platform based on the reasons for return and consumer demands.
The policy requires stores and suppliers to respond to return requests
within 24 hours and to provide a 7-day unconditional return and exchange
service. For other after-sales issues, we communicate with consumers on a
one-to-one basis and provide corresponding solutions and compensation
proposals to guarantee consumers' service experience. In 2023, we
received a total of 7 online complaints, and the resolution rate was 100%.
Meanwhile, we received 3,241 complaints from offline customers with a
resolution rate of more than 99.8%.
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Reinforcing Information Security

We recognise the importance of consumers' personal information and
privacy, therefore we have made it an utmost responsibility of the Group
to continuously reinforce the security management of consumers' personal
information. We strictly comply with the following relevant laws and
regulations in our daily operations:

1) Cybersecurity Law of the People's Republic of China

2) Personal Information Protection Law of the People’s Republic of
China

We have established the Consumers’ Privacy Protection Policy to protect
consumers' privacy by regulating the management process of getting
and using their information. We have formulated the Parkson User
Privacy Policy to explicitly inform consumers of the Group's purpose, way
and scope of collecting, using and handling personal information, and
added the clauses concerning third-party shared information handling
and protection of minors. During operation, we also encrypt consumers'
sensitive information such as name and contact. Meanwhile, we have
signed confidentiality agreements with suppliers. We also advocate and
urge our employees to use email and system passwords with greater
confidentiality to avoid any misuse and leakage of consumer information.
In addition, in 2023, we upgraded our information security system,
formulated a data backup strategy, and designed a disaster recovery
plan. We also conducted data centre penetration testing and vulnerability
detection, and continuously updated the system with security patches
based on the test results. The Group has completed black-box penetration
testing for all our core domain names and analysed potential threats in
detail to formulate targeted solutions. In parallel, we conduct regular
information security audits with both administrative and technical means
to assess the security and compliance of our systems. We are committed
to building a secure and trustworthy shopping space and providing
consumers with a reassuring service experience.

ADVANCING WITH EMPLOYEES
The Group's philosophy on human resources

Dedication, integrity & honesty, team spirit, customer orientation,
and mutual respect

Employees are the backbone of the Group. We strictly comply with laws
and regulations and effectively protect the legitimate rights and interests
of our employees. To fully attract and retain diversified talents, we also
provide attractive remuneration and benefits and create a talent-nurturing
system for our employees. In addition, we strive to create an inclusive
and diverse workplace that values teamwork and mutual respect for our
employees in line with the Group's human resource philosophy.
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Protecting Employees’ Rights and Interests

The Group strictly adheres to the following labour laws and regulations in
its daily operations:

1) Labour Law of the People’s Republic of China

2) Labour Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China

3) Law of the People's Republic of China on Work Safety

4) Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Protection of Minors
5) Provisions on the Prohibition of Using Child Labour

The Group has a comprehensive and detailed procedure for processes like
employee recruitment, onboarding and promotion. We have formulated and
enforced the following policies and management measures to fully inform
our employees of their basic rights and responsibilities, including details

of remuneration, performance appraisal, employee benefits, employee
training, promotion and reassignment:

1) Compilation of Standardised System for Human Resources
2) Administrative Measures for Onboarding and Dismission
3) Leave Management

4) Administrative Measures for Staff Attendance

5) Measures of Employee Discipline Violations

6) Staff Manual

The Group is founded on the principles of fairness, impartiality and fitness.
We prohibit discrimination against any applicant or employee on the
grounds of gender, age, marital status, religion, nationality, disability, etc.
In the recruitment process, we always decide on the employment based
on the comprehensive compatibility between business needs, job profile
and applicant’s ability. In our daily work, we have developed an open and
smooth channel for complaints and handling. Employees are entitled to
lodge complaints and express opinions on inappropriate behaviours such
as harassment and discrimination in the workplace. Upon receipt of the
complaint, the Human Resource Department will conduct the investigation
and verification in a timely, objective and comprehensive manner, and
introduce external counsel or investigation team for assistance, if
necessary. Upon completion of the investigation, the Human Resource
Department will report to management immediately and will promptly
apply appropriate disciplinary measures on relevant employees according
to the severity of the case and the rules and regulations. The punishments
include compensation and apology, transfer, demotion, warning and
termination of the labour contract.
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Recognising the role of female employees in promoting diversity and FRFIBEELEETHEBIZTENERES

inclusion in the workplace, we strongly support their career development MIZEMN AR > FILRMABERTITL

and encourage them to excel at work and create unique value. METHHRESER SEZUEETEREA
FENERBIERAEE

Case: Sharing “she-power"”

6 NEAE

14

In March 2023, the “She Era' - Honouring She-Power Forum" organised by Kunming Parkson was

successfully held. Many female managers at Parkson shared their unique perspectives on "she-power"

around the four keywords of “independence”, "breakthrough”, “confidence” and “courage” They also
encouraged women to remain hopeful, stay confident and strive for lifelong learning. At Kunming Parkson,

< 70% of the employees and management are women, which is a strong testament to the impact of “she- >

power" and demonstrates Parkson's solid support for them.
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Case: “"March 8th Red-Banner Pacesetter” driving team growth

6 T= \AEFIGEEBRR R
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In 2023, an outstanding female employee from Mianyang Parkson was awarded the title of “Mianyang
March 8th Red-Banner Pacesetter”. During her six years at Parkson, she has always kept the “customer-
oriented” corporate philosophy in mind, learning video editing on her own and constantly improving her
aesthetic professionalism and service skills under the influence of the digital wave. She led her team to
share dressing tips on various social platforms to drive online traffic to the brand, and her sincere and
professional image has attracted and accumulated a large number of loyal fans. As an outstanding female
employee, she has not only demonstrated professional competence at work but also pursued continuous
progress in her personal growth. Her success story has inspired more females to believe that they can
achieve their dreams with hard work and continual learning.
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As at the end of 2023, the Group had 3,826 employees, of which 59000 HE_ZE_=—FF&K ' AEBHEEE L
were female. 3826 A Hep 1 8 T 145 £E59.000
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In remuneration respect, we provide competitive benefits for all
employees. We set the base salary by specific positions and conduct
regular performance appraisals to comprehensively assess the employees
in terms of values, job skills, leadership, performance, etc. We give out
monthly, annual and special performance bonuses based on the assessment
results and increase the base salary of exceptional employees or give
them promotion opportunities to stimulate their initiative. In addition, we
provide employees with benefits such as marriage and maternity grants,
burial condolence money, and birthday gifts or cash, to enhance their sense
of belonging and satisfaction. We are also very concerned about the health
of our employees and arrange free regular physical examinations for them.

While supporting the development of diverse talents, we see fulfilling
social responsibilities and safequarding the rights and interests of children
and workers as an essential prerequisite for achieving sustainable growth.
We prohibit all forms of child labour and forced labour. During the
recruitment process, we ask candidates to provide identity information
and verify its authenticity to avoid hiring candidates under the age of
16. In case of detecting and verifying child labour, we will immediately
terminate the labour contract and return the employee to his/her original
place of residence in his/her parents' or other legal guardians' custody.
When confirming employment relations, we enter labour contracts with
employees in accordance with laws, in which the responsibilities and
liabilities are stipulated. As to the avoidance of forced labour, the Group
implements the standard working hours system, the irregular working
hours system and the comprehensive working hours system according
to the different nature of various positions, so as to avoid forced labour
against employees’ will. Overtime work of employees due to increased
workload or operational needs is subject to prior written approval from
responsible persons, and work hours shall not exceed the statutory work
hours limit. In 2023, the Group had no violations involving child labour or
forced labour.

During 2023, the turnover rate of the Group's employees was 22.0%.
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Turnover rate by gender
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Turnover rate by age group
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Leading Employee Development

Smooth promotion channels and rich training resources are important
guarantees for employees to achieve career development and growth. We
are committed to realising sustainable development of both the Company
and our people, and therefore, we have established a complete promotion
system and created a variety of training programmes for our staff to
provide them with clear career prospects and development paths.

We have designed a development path for promotion by level, including
the employee level, the supervisor/team leader level, the director level, the
manager level, the deputy general manager level and the general manager
level. Meanwhile, we encourage employees' horizontal development by
allowing them to apply for job transfers among different businesses and
functions according to their individual will. Employees will be promoted
or transferred after passing the comprehensive skills assessment and
performance indicator assessment for the position at the corresponding
level.

To enhance employees' ability to adapt to change and their innovation
capacity, and to improve organisational performance, we encourage all
employees to keep improving through training and practice. We have
established a trainer management system to promptly update our training
knowledge system and talent development programmes. The trainers
will design customised courses, covering practical knowledge and skills,
for staff members at all levels by considering different job competency
requirements and learning needs. In 2023, we built special talent training
camps for managers and above to help them improve their management
skills. Meanwhile, to promote cross-regional and cross-functional employee
exchanges and broaden employees' horizons, the Group organised
outstanding employees to visit the front line. A total of 19 outstanding
employees from the Parkson Mianyang region participated in the Group's
talent development programmes at all levels, and were assigned for
study visits in Chengdu, Shanghai, Xi'an, Zhengzhou, Xinxiang, and other
cities. We hope this can enhance employees' comprehensive quality and
competitiveness and lay a solid foundation for the sustainable development
of the Company.

Case: Four talent training camps and a four-tier talent pool

SIRE THE
BENEARBNEENEIEREET
EREBELERNARNEZRE HMAS
RHETHERT ZBNENRANS TN
JIst8 > A8 T 2R BMIBIEEF =AM
ERERE RONBEREABDMEIFER
RESHAKRS -

HPAEIRFTHRBRASANERR
B OER T EHESUT B HEHR

TR AEIRAR - BB AR AR B RS TRAR
AR RMXFEINERER ETH

RIFEARFERBEAREZBNBAER S

CEETEBMARRANBASGEREE
EZBREBRIERESZE TUESAH AR
B o

RATRABIEERS{EMAITNES R
FHE®EYN > RPBE2EE THEEIK
BEEPAEEABR - HMEZLHFIE
EEGE  UREFEHEINEERDA
FERER -HMBESTEMUENEN
HBRBI HRBRELRERHY
MRRE RHEAEEREENNHER
fEe —E T =F  HARKEERRA LR
MMBTIETEBNAS ERANGRE

BhETIRAECERE -BR AT RE
sE s BRENE ISR IEEE TR

FoAEBEREEFET —BERE
foERFEHEEEETNAUBFTETEA
%.mn ANTEREBEE  ZHERE L
ENET NN AT BT EZR IR
BTNGEERENRF N AR ENTEF
BERITTEREEM

(14 \ e ok e )
E  HBOARAT ERIGRE 2R IUERA AR
The Group has built four talent development training camps (“the Four Camps") for reserve talents at
manager level and above. We help each employee participating in the training camps improve their
< management skills and leadership through various forms of learning, such as online courses, book reading, >
practical exercises, and experience sharing.
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Name

Training purpose

Training pattern

8 EEEN BEAR
Pilot camp Improve on-the-job ability Online courses, book reading, and practice
EfmE RAEREEND BLERE SERBR-BR

New hire camp
EHE

Successor camp
PR

High-Potential (HIPO) camp
=78 AT HPOE

Acquire essential knowledge and skills

EREENCE

Develop successors to General Manager

BERKEBEEANS

Develop High-Potential talents for stores in
each region

EEEEEMIENSEN AT

Online courses, book reading, and internal
materials learning

BERE SHERAB - RNEABEHES

Online courses, job rotation and individual
development plan

MERE W BAZERESE

Online courses and individual development
plan

M ERE - BALRESTE

Online course training

5 LR

In 2023, the proportion of the Group's employees trained was 78.9%, and

Hands-on rotational training
B8 ==

the total training hours for the year were 37,486.7 hours.

60 2023 ANNUAL REPORT $EERE

—E = AEBREINTIILEAS
78.9% > & 4B I H)IIRF 81 43 37,486.7/ \FF o



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
IRIR » 1B RERHS

Percentage of employees trained by gender
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Average training hours completed per employee
by gender (hours/person)
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Male
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Female
BT 10.3

Percentage of employees trained by employee category
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Average training hours completed per employee
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In addition to our internal training programmes, we attach great
importance to the ongoing professional development and personal
growth of our employees and provide support for them to pursue external
professional qualifications or continuing education. To ensure that
employees can complete relevant exams successfully, we coordinate shifts
or offer paid exam leave to enable them to strike a balance between work
and study. Employees who succeed in obtaining professional certificates
will be given allowances based on the level and importance of the
certificates. We believe that continuous learning and development will
enable employees to better cope with the challenges at work and make a
greater contribution to the sustainable development of the Group. In 2023,
eight employees obtained relevant professional certificates or continuing
education degrees with the support of the Group.

Safeguarding Employee Health and Safety

It is the responsibility of an enterprise to safequard the safety and
occupational health of its employees. The Group strictly abides by laws
and regulations such as the Fire Protection Law of the People's Republic
of China and the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Prevention
and Control of Occupational Diseases and has formulated a series of
management policies to ensure the occupational health and safety of
employees. Besides, we have made an annual work plan for work safety
to effectively protect the safety and health of our employees, which
covers safety awareness training, fire safety management, prevention of
occupational hazards, etc.

The management policies related to work safety formulated and
implemented by the Group include:

1) Work Safety Training Policy
2) Production Safety Inspection Policy

3) Safety Management Policy of Place of Business, Equipment, and
Facilities

4) Personal Protective Equipment Provision and Management Policy
5) Accident Reporting and Handling Policy

We adhere to the principle of "putting safety first and placing emphasis
on prevention" to ensure employee safety and adopt various approaches
to enhance employee safety awareness. To make sure that employees fully
understand and comply with the relevant safety regulations, the Group has
developed a safety education and training programme. Each new employee
is required to undergo three levels of safety education at company,
department and crew levels, which includes the Group's policies on work
safety, basic knowledge of firefighting, safety responsibilities of the
working environment and job-related hazardous factors. In addition, the
Group conducts safety training, and fire and explosion drills to improve the
speed and ability of employees to respond to emergency safety incidents.
For the use of new equipment, we carry out specialised skills training and
assessment. In the meantime, we also encourage employees to report
hidden dangers or other unsafe factors, so that we can deal with them as
soon as possible.
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Fire safety is crucial to ensure a safe working environment. We have
developed the Mandatory Provisions of Fire Safety Requirements for
Engineering and Property Management and have a fire safety management
organisation and a volunteer fire brigade to ensure fire safety. Regarding
the accountability structure, the General Manager of each store is the first
person responsible for fire protection, and suppliers are required to sign
a Fire Safety Responsibility Letter, which defines responsibilities for fire
safety at each operation site. We build the Fire Prevention Table for Key
Areas and update it every quarter to ensure that safety measures for water,
electricity and gas are in place, the fire warning system is functioning
properly, and the fire exits are unobstructed. In addition, to improve the
response speed of employees to safety incidents, the Group has formulated
the Fire Prevention and Emergency Evacuation Contingency Plan and
conducted relevant drills. We have also employed a qualified third-party
agency to inspect the Group's fire extinguishing system to enhance safety.

In 2023, the Group made targeted efforts to introduce self-checks on
equipment and facilities in each store, along with group-level inspections.
Based on the self-inspection results, we categorised the stores into stores
with hidden danger, stores with doubtful issues, and stores with issues
to be confirmed depending on the condition of equipment and facilities.
To comprehensively prevent and control risks, in the second half of 2023,
the Engineering and Property Department conducted on-site spot checks,
group-level inspections and assessments for stores with hidden danger and
stores with doubtful issues in terms of engineering, fire safety, security
and cleaning, and urged them to make rectifications to prevent safety risks
from the source.

In addition, we require employees engaged in hazardous duties and
operators of special key areas to obtain relevant certificates before
work, including working-at-heights certificate, high voltage electrician
certificate, and fire safety certificate. Besides, the store must be equipped
with articles for labour protection, such as safety ropes, dielectric footwear,
and gloves, to provide employees with adequate occupational safety
protection. In 2023, there were no working days lost due to work injury in
the Group, and there was no employee who died due to work.
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Fire drill at Qingdao Lion Mall
EEEHERHEER

Explosion drill at Chengdu Shishang Parkson
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CONDUCTING RESPONSIBLE OPERATIONS

We are well aware that corporate sustainability is built upon responsible
operation practices. The Group upholds the principle of fairness,
impartiality, integrity and honesty, and makes every effort to promote
a culture of integrity with compliant and ethical business practices at
Parkson. In addition, we are committed to providing consumers with better
products and services by implementing responsible sourcing initiatives and
working with our partners to promote a sustainable supply chain.

Commitment to Business Ethics

Parkson has always regarded integrity and compliance as the cornerstone
of our sustainable development and business operations. As a member
of the Enterprise Anti-Fraud Autonomous Cooperation Organisation,
Enterprise Anti-Fraud Alliance and Trust and Integrity Enterprise Alliance,
we are keen to get involved in forums and training with external
organisations on anti-fraud, audit and supervision matters and share
respective experiences in anti-fraud remediation, working jointly to create
a transparent and incorruptible business environment.

We strictly comply with the following anti-corruption laws and regulations
in its daily operation:

1) Criminal Law of the People’s Republic of China
2) Anti-Unfair Competition Law of the People’s Republic of China

3) Interim Provisions on Banning Commercial Bribery

We take a "zero-tolerance” stand on any form of bribery and corruption,
and have established a comprehensive risk control framework and
operation system. The Group has built lines of defence comprising the
Audit Committee, the Risk Control Centre and other departments and
stores. The Risk Control Centre is comprised of Audit Group I, Il and Il
and holds joint meetings on risk control every month for internal sharing
of supervision cases and applying them in daily work. In this way, we
rigorously minimise the risk of fraud. We have specifically set up a Store
Audit Team under the Audit Department, with a focus on reqular and
special audits, and raising awareness of the potential risks of corruption in
daily operations of our stores.
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To reduce potential legal risks in our internal operations, we release the
Legal Risk Tips for typical legal risk events via our Office Automation
(OA) system. In this way, we provide references for the operation of all
departments and further enhance the awareness of legal risk prevention
and control. The Group is committed to promoting anti-fraud awareness
for all employees. For senior management, we have mandatory anti-fraud
training for all newly hired senior managers and recorded anti-fraud
related course videos for the Board of Directors and staff members at all
levels to watch and learn. For stores, we have an anti-fraud training system
covering all stores under which each store is required to conduct an annual
anti-fraud campaign.

Case: Audit training of Parkson
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On 1 July 2023, we conducted a special audit training for managers above the level of store leader
across the Group. The training focused on four aspects: management related audit issues, typical case
analysis, tips on business risks, and recommendations for enhancement and optimisation. During the
training, the Group stressed its firm commitment to combating fraudulent behaviours by analysing
cases and identifying the room for improvement of store internal control management. As a result, the
training has further reinforced the risk management awareness of the management personnel in each
business operation, and promoted a collaborative effort to create a transparent and incorruptible working
environment.
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To ensure that the Group's anti-fraud procedure applies to all businesses,
we demand and enforce anti-fraud compliance for our employees and
suppliers:

Employees E T

RERFAEERBEEAEZABEQAE
X RMABETRHERRHREEN
R EE R REVEEEHE ¢

«

«

e All employees are required to sign the Prohibition of Employment and promise not to receive or
demand benefits from suppliers in any name or manner other than those specified in the contract and
not take advantage of work to offer and accept bribes or accept gifts.
o ABEBTHESII(ERER)  RFFABURAKEMARNEHREFRWE - RESRZE
BN w > AR B T EZ EITHEXHE EXEE-
N »
e All suppliers are required to sign the Letter of Commitment of Integrity for Supplier to follow the
principles of fairness, impartiality, integrity and honesty, and abstain from engaging in improper
transactions to secure trading opportunities or seek illegitimate benefits.
s EXMEMEREZE(HERRZAHES) EXHEFREEAT AE -BRZ -#AENR
A PRENR SR G RNAEENTMESFAEERS
e |f a supplier violates the requirements of integrity and honesty, the Group has the right to add such
supplier to the internal channel blacklist, as well as the shared inquiry system of Enterprise Anti-Fraud
Alliance and Trust and Integrity Enterprise Alliance.
s EMEBRERBHAREMENRE AEBBERARANRRERREURFRTE
REBEIGE G EHMBERLZEHRMR »
N

We have developed the Parkson Group Whistle-blowing System and
Procedures and designated the Disciplinary Inspection Committee as the
main responsible body for reported violations, in an effort to provide an
open and smooth reporting channel for consumers, suppliers, business
partners and employees. When a report is received and sufficient evidence
is present, the Disciplinary Inspection Committee will appoint an inspection
team to carry out appropriate investigations and collect evidence within
two weeks and closely follow up on the audit progress each month.
After the audit, the Disciplinary Inspection Committee will issue an audit
report with suggestions for rectification (including penalties) and inform
the whistle-blower of the findings. Meanwhile, we have established
comprehensive protection measures for whistle-blowers, including but not
limited to assigning dedicated personnel for documenting and encrypting
tip-offs, and maintaining strict confidentiality of the whistle-blower. We
offer appropriate financial rewards to eligible whistle-blowers.

2023 ANNUAL REPORT (E[E#RE

BABET(ERERRRFIERERF)
TREEECHEEEFSEREHIE
BEME HEE HER BESFER
HFREIREAFERGHNERRE -
WEIRBEERHSERENERT &
REE R EMEREBEEEKRHRES
BTRRESE EGRRERDTEE-
EEERELCHREZEERHAEERST
ft EAERERAIERZR (BEEIELR) -1
EREEERRERERA B KM
BRABRIEZENRERLR SEEBRIR
RERRBERHEARBEEMNZEE Y
BHRERARBLHNBEBEES - HUGHRMGH
BRA HMRHBENSERER-



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
IRIR » 1B RERHS

Reporting e-mail

BRI

e Anti-Fraud@ 139.com
® Personal email address of the Chairman of the Group Audit Committee: akfu28@gmail.com

o SEEBEZZE I EM@ AT akfu28@gmail.com

Reporting hotline

SHRE

® Phone No.: +86 21-3258 0566

o [EEEEE ©+86 21-3258 0566

* Mobile phone No.: +86 137 9535 5237 or +86 137 9520 2119
o TEENESE 1+86 137 9535 52373 +86 137 9520 2119

Postal address

ERIE St

® The Risk Control Centre of Parkson Retail Group Limited, 6th Floor, Metro Plaza, No. 555 Loushanguan Road, Changning
District, Shanghai, China, 200051
o ME LEMEEERERNKSSEREEFESGEAREEEBRBIR AR BZEA O EB4R - 200051

During 2023, there were no concluded legal cases regarding corruption, —ZE_=FR > HAREEHAEEKE
bribery, extortion, fraud or money laundering brought against the Group or BIEH I BEEANE S ~ FRR& ~ BT ~ BiGF
its employees. W E IR o
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Intellectual Property Protection

The Group is committed to protecting its intellectual property rights and
those of others in its daily operations. We strictly abide by the Trademark
Law of the People’s Republic of China and other laws and regulations,
and have established a comprehensive process for confirming ownership
and approving the use of the Parkson trademark. This process includes
comprehensive management of trademark registration and renewal,
similar trademark monitoring, disagreements and dispute cases, store
trademark authorisation and legal use of corresponding brand trademarks
by suppliers. Take store trademark authorisation as an example, each
new store upon establishment is required to sign the Trademark License
Agreement and issue a trademark authorisation before using the Group's
trademark. If a store sets up online platform accounts, it must also obtain
the Group's trademark authorisation and provide relevant platforms with
the authorised qualification, so as to effectively maintain and implement
intellectual property protection.

We safeguard the intellectual property rights of others. The Group has
developed specifications for photos and articles used in the WeChat official
account to requlate and ensure the compliant use of copyrighted materials
by Parkson stores when publishing online information. Before releasing
any original content, all relevant departments and stores must verify the
legality of the materials used like trademarks, images, videos, and music.
If the materials are provided by the partner, they must provide necessary
documents to prove their right to use such materials and grant a third-
party permission to use them and sign a written Letter of Commitment
to ensure that the materials we used do not infringe the intellectual
property rights of others. In 2023, we launched a special awareness
campaign and reminder of legal risks for our stores on the theme of Lega/
Risk Tips Related to Infringement Risks of Advertising and Marketing to
prevent image infringement in advertising and marketing. In addition, we
provided necessary support to stores including consultation on copyright
infringement to further strengthen the protection and management of
intellectual property protection.
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Case: Trademark right protection =

RO EREESA

In September 2023, we found that the Group's name and registered trademarks were illegally used, posing
a risk of serious damages to Parkson's goodwill and legitimate rights and interests. In response, the Group
issued an Official Statement immediately, and exposed the incident on official platforms such as Weibo and

-

Compliance Marketing

The Group strictly complies with the Advertising Law of the People's
Republic of China. We also strictly examine our advertisements to ensure
that they do not contain false or misleading content and comply with
applicable laws and regulations. By doing so, we regulate our marketing
activities.

Responsible Supply Chain

Building a responsible supply chain is crucial for the Group's sustainable
development. We have formulated the Supplier Management FPolicy,
the Purchaser and Supplier Management System and other important
documents. On this basis, we have built a complete management system
covering all suppliers. We rigorously review the qualification of suppliers
in the selection process, and conduct comprehensive assessment from
such aspects as quality control, production technology, environmental
management, and occupational health. For suppliers of special categories
such as food, healthcare food, medicine and tobacco, we only select
suppliers with necessary business licenses. Meanwhile, we give priority
to suppliers who have passed the ISO 9001 Quality Management
System Certification and ISO 14001 Environmental Management System
Certification to offer consumers a trustworthy shopping experience as a
responsible enterprise.

In daily supplier management, we assess the performance of suppliers of
different categories on an annual basis in terms of their supply quality, on-
time delivery, after-sales services, information communication competence,
etc. At the same time, we keep optimising the supplier system by providing
incentives, improvements and assistance to suppliers and eliminating
unqualified ones based on the annual performance assessment.
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WeChat official account. We then reported the incident to local market requlators to safequard the Group's
< goodwill and protect the legitimate rights and interests of consumers. >
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At the same time, the Group is committed to safequarding a high-quality
and sustainable supply chain, and strengthening the ESG risk management
in the supply chain to help the industry achieve ecologically sustainable
development. We have established the Environmental and Social Risk
Management System for Suppliers and Business Tenants to manage
environmental and social risks through the assessment for suppliers and
business tenants. By this means, we provide consumers with high-quality,
healthy and safe goods and services. Meanwhile, to maintain the normal
social and economic order and oppose unfair competitions in business
practice, we require suppliers and business tenants to clearly mark prices
in their daily operations. They shall not deceive consumers by providing
discounts or special prices after intentionally raising prices in marketing
activities. In this way, we protect the legitimate rights and interests of
consumers, and ensure to provide them with fair, transparent and honest
shopping experiences.

As of 31 December 2023, there were 25,329 suppliers cooperating with
Parkson in China, and 294 suppliers cooperating with Parkson in Laos.

GUARDING THE GREEN ENVIRONMENT

We have always been committed to reducing the environmental impact
of our operations by setting environmental goals of reducing emissions,
reducing waste, and improving water and energy efficiency. We continue
to strengthen the management of greenhouse gas emissions in our
operations, promote the recycling of resources within the Group and
actively explore ways to conserve water and energy. In daily operations,
the Group strictly complies with the following environmental management
related laws and requlations:

—

) Environmental Protection Law of the People's Republic of China
2) Law of the People's Republic of China on Energy Conservation

3) Law of the People's Republic of China on the Prevention and
Control of Water Pollution

4) Law of the People's Republic of China on the Prevention and
Control of Atmospheric Pollution

5) Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and
Control of Environmental Pollution Caused by Solid Waste
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Responding to Climate Change

The issue of climate change is changing the business landscape for market
competition, so the Group is taking a proactive approach to addressing the
potential risks of climate change. As part of the Group's risk assessment
and management, we have considered potential risks from climate change
and made constant efforts in extreme weather warnings and responses. For
example, we have adopted effective control measures for extreme weather
events such as typhoons, floods and extreme changes in temperature to
enhance our climate resilience in coping with different extreme weather
conditions.

We continue to monitor the possibility of extreme weather conditions
in various regions and promptly notify our stores of weather warnings
and prevention requirements in advance. We have formulated the Flood
Prevention Plan, which specifies the principal person in charge of the
emergency response procedures, the workflow and the specific job
requirements. Also, we have set up relevant command groups for flood
and typhoon preventions in each store to improve the emergency response
management of each store and minimise possible damage of floods to the
safety of personnel and property.
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Case: The flood control drill at Qingdao Lion Mall
0 5 EEMES BT ESR

On 26 May 2023, a flood control drill was held at Qingdao Lion Mall. During the drill, we organised the
evacuation of personnel and vehicles from the underground parking lot in an orderly manner. The staff
from the Logistics Department placed the sandbags in time, and then the equipment in the emergency
response area was activated. Following that, the staff from the Emergency Response Engineering
Department of the store, armed with the submersible pumps and other flood control equipment, cleared
standing water on site. This activity strengthened the store's ability to organise and command in
emergency response to flood emergencies, improved the efficiency of emergency response, and tested the

feasibility and effectiveness of the flood control plan.

TEC-FRRT+ARB EEEMESENRINESR BFEBASNM TEEIFHER
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The flood control drill at Qingdao Lion Mall
BERESEHRIRES

Promoting Green Operation

The Group actively practises the management concept of green operation.
Specifically, we have established the Stores Facilities Maintenance and Safe
Operations Policy and the Parkson Retail Group Engineering and Property
Management Policy to regulate and optimise the consumption of energy
and resources for lifts, air-conditioning and other electrical equipment, as
well as water consumption during the operation of malls. Also, we require
each store to report the quarterly energy consumption to the Group in
time. In 2023, we continued to monitor the daily energy consumption of
our stores, promote energy conservation and renovation of equipment,
optimise water management and recycle idle assets. Meanwhile, we have
been promoting the concept of environmental protection to our employees
and consumers, and striving to foster a new trend of green shopping with
the efforts of Parkson.
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Enhancing energy efficiency & F+BE TR

® We optimised the daily supervision process, and regularly tracked energy consumption of each store. If any abnormal
value is detected, we timely communicate with the store to understand the situation, and follow up the improvement.
BIEAREERE HEFEETEMNEERN SEAHEREE AFEFMEEBETHRIBN  WRE
Era=p

* We requlate the use of energy-intensive equipment such as air conditioners. We have made a clear switch-on and switch-
off schedule for stores to follow. In 2023, we upgraded the lighting equipment in the public areas of our Wuxi Parkson to
a clock-controlled mode to reduce unnecessary energy consumption and improve energy efficiency.

RETRE SFEEREAGER - HMH ERENRABAMEARMRERERIERNT  ZE-=F  WMHEEH
BREAHRIEAREARE A RSREZEGE FEIFLEREEEL  RASEREA NG -

e \We renovated the old equipment timely in response to the call for "Energy Saving, Environmental Protection and Low
Carbon”. As of the end of 2023, the Group had 26 stores with 100% LED light coverage and 8 stores with 90% LED light
coverage.

RIBERE TEIRE  IRR BB MR A RSEREERFE -BE_S_=Fx AEBEEH26KPIELEDIE
BEFIZF1000% > 82X PIIELED)E 8 25 K Z F/9000 ©

®* We employ a low-carbon data centre. We work with data centre service providers with advanced, low-carbon cooling
systems and intelligent energy management strategies for continuous optimisation of energy efficiency.
KABRKRBEBER O BMERNBBERORBEAEFELEBRKNSARKNEENEREERE 51X

"\ BIRAERAAMENFEEL-

Practising water resource management EE{T/KE R EIE

The store maintenance team checks and repairs water valves, pipelines and other related facilities reqularly to avoid
leakage and other unnecessary waste of resources.

EFERNEE NVEERH KR EERSERFEETREREE  HIER B B RIS KERRER|EE -
We posted water conservation signs in the office's public area to raise the employees' awareness of water saving and to
integrate the promotion of water conservation into our daily operations.

EPARERAHBERMEANAKRE  BRABIHNAKER RO KEETFRARBBEENMBETR -

n

Resource recycling 2 J& B UL F H

e We allocate the assets among the stores within the Group. In 2023, we distributed the Group's idle office supplies to our
stores in Beijing, Harbin and Shanghai, respectively. This allows us to enhance resource utilisation and reduce resource
waste by recycling and reusing available assets.

EEABFIEZABREERAR - — S5 HMAREERENRABAD BB EILR - BEAEAM L
- BEFIE BRNAEEETRIRREERER BABERMNBX  BLERRE-

Fostering green consumption habits IE &4 BHE T E

® We select biodegradable catering equipment in our stores to build an environmentally friendly catering business and
guide consumers to develop green dining awareness.

ERrRRIRERAERAFIENENRERE BRI ERERFNENRRGER SIS HEEBME
BREEH-

e We advocate environmentally friendly shopping and encourage consumers to bring their own shopping bags. By the end
of 2023, we had 80% of stores using biodegradable shopping bags and non-woven bags. In this way, we continue to
reduce the use of plastic bags and advocate a new trend of green shopping.
REBRRBYISEHESEERYS BE S _—FK AMERIRBRBEYRREHHRNME

\ BEXES W TEIR VD ERRNEH BEGEBYHER -

i
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T -FEREARETEMARERIER

2023 KPIs on the Aspect: Use of Resources —_F=

HiRER

Type of resources

Energy consumption in total (in MWh)' BEJRHFEARE JKEES) ' 295,435 285,085 295,146
- Direct energy consumption in total — BEIZAERHEES
(in MWh)! KRB 20,322 25,482 34,706
- Indirect energy consumption in total — RIIZAETRIHFE/EE
(in MWh)? KRB 275,113 259,603 260,440
Intensity of energy consumption RERHERE
(in MWh per square meter) CKERE /75 K) 0.182 0.170 0.177
Water consumption in total (in tonne)? 4237k & (W) 2 1,838,302 1,619,894 1,715,683
Intensity of water consumption FERBE
in total (in tonne per square meter) (Mg /I 75 3K) 1.131 0.963 1.027
Packaging materials used for finisned AL RFTASEM4ERS
products in total (in tonne)? (Wg) 3 27 26 32
Notes: E
1. The energy sources consumed by the Group mainly include electricity, 1. AEBRGHANFEEZRRSEE - XAR

natural gas, and heating energy during winter. Total energy consumption is
accounted according to electricity consumption, natural gas consumption,
heating energy consumption, and the default value of parameters related
to fossil fuel as listed in Annex 1 of the Guidelines on Accounting Methods
and Reporting of Greenhouse Gas Emissions of Public Building Operators
issued by the National Development and Reform Commission. The total
energy consumption of the Group includes the total direct energy
consumption and the total indirect energy consumption, wherein the total
direct energy consumption includes natural gas, and the indirect energy
consumption includes electricity consumption and heating energy;

2. The Group's water consumption is mainly for domestic use, and the water 2.
is sourced from municipal water supply system, which can meet the water
demand of daily operation;

3. The Group's stores use paper and plastic packages. As the Group is nota 3.

production-oriented enterprise, the packaging material used for finished
products per unit produced is not applicable to the Group.
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Practising Compliant Emissions

The Group aims to reduce the amount of emissions generated and strictly
regulates the emissions generated during our operations. Qur emissions
mainly include greenhouse gases, wastewater and non-hazardous
wastes. The Group has formulated and implemented the Parkson Group
Environmental Protection Policy to regulate the management of emissions
generated in the course of the Group's operations.

For wastewater management, the Group strictly comply with the /ndustry
Standard of Urban Construction of the People’s Republic of China:
Wastewater Quality Standards for Discharge to Municipal Sewers (CJ 343-
2010). Our office and domestic wastewater have met the sewage discharge
standards and eventually discharged into the municipal sewage system
for unified treatment. Meanwhile, pursuant to the relevant regulations
of the local governments, non-hazardous wastes produced by us in our
daily operations are categorised and subjected to collection and integrated
treatment by respective property management companies. In our daily
store operations, we demand our staff to separate and dispose of waste
by category. We also put up posters of kitchen waste classification and
recycling in the dining areas of the stores to guide consumers to develop
an environmental protection awareness of waste classification and
recycling.

BRITE R

FEBUEEHBRYNEERER HE
ERENELENHFRDETHRRRL -
PR ERETEZAEAZERE  BEK
REZEEEY AEBCHELERESE
(BRERRERERNE)  REAEERE
EREREENFRYEE-

EREKEESHEH ~EBBERET(PE
ARFEMBEIMIRZRITERE [ J5KEEA
ISR N KB K EARZE (CJ 343-2010) ) > Fff
BYME 2 B R EE KT B B HE AR ZE > I
REBFATBSKERETR—RE R
R I RPTE M BT AR E > IR
HEEZEMEENESERYIHEHS
MEEERATETOE - H—ORTEGRS
RIEB-EAEMEEZED ZMERETL
HAPENRETHERE  WAPIEE
&SRB AR ER IR D BRI N EEE
w51 EHEERMIUR D ERDWRIR
R

Designated collection points for waste separation in Shanghai Parkson and Panzhihua Parkson

LBBERMBRACHRIIR D BIEE R
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2023 KPIs on the Aspect: Emissions —E=FHRYEmRMRERIEE
Type of emissions 34 HEr gL
Waste water in total (in tonne) BE7k 4B (M) 1,658,113 1,459,827 1,559,106
Non-hazardous waste emissions BEBEEYHIREE (M)
in total (in tonne) ! 12,090 11,709 17,553

Intensity of non-hazardous waste BEBEEVEE M,/ F5HK

(in tonne per square meter) 0.007 0.007 0.0Mm
Greenhouse gas emissions in total BERBHRES

(in tCO2) 2 (M _|EIREE) 2 181,606 172,951 180,250
- Direct (Scope 1) greenhouse gas —B#% @EENVEEREIERE

emissions (in tCOze) M| ERES) 4,063 5,095 6,939
- Indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse gas ~ — &% (BE2) B EREENE

emissions (in tCOse) (M _FEiRES) 177,543 167,856 173,311

Intensity of greenhouse gas emissions ;& %= R A2 BE R E

(in tCO2e per square meter) (ME—|EREEFHK) 0.112 0.103 0.108

Notes: %

1. Non-hazardous wastes include engineering waste, domestic waste, grease 1 MEREEYEE TRNIR EE0R
in grease traps, food waste, and recyclable waste (wastepaper, scrap iron [ S St EE S ~ ERFHIR A 5] @ Uk hi iR (BF
and plastic waste, etc.); 4E EEE A BB 55

2. Based on the nature of the Group's business operation, the greenhouse 5 HPREBRELSEMN AEBWEE K2
gas emissions of the Group include direct emissions resulting from natural B E sk B R AR R E P IS AR B
gas combustion and indirect emissions resulting from energy consumed B WU R MBS A INE S HFF S A
through consumption of heating energy and purchased electricity, By AESE RS s HE R Rt B = S AL S5 B (8
so greenhouse gases include only carbon dioxide (CO2). Greenhouse aE -G R BT aEgEm a1
gas emissions are presented as COze (carbon dioxide equivalent). The WMEEEY) LEHENIINBEEFE
greenhouse gas emissions of purchased electricity in Shanghai region were SR E SRR A REEBEBER
calculated based on the electricity emission factor announced by Shanghai 2023 FE B EHEE A it e 218
Ecological Environment Bureau in 2023 and the greenhouse gas emissions BN E N EL NSRS SRR
of purchased electricity in Laos were calculated based on the electricity R A5 SE 2 B 4 (92023 4E B HBE A F 5+
emission factor published by International Energy Agency in 2023, g R E R R R E R R R
while other greenhouse gas emissions were calculated according to the NELEEERHHN(ALRRBELS Y
Accounting Methods and Reporting Guide for Greenhouse Gas Emissions BESREH AR E S E RIS ) &
from Public Building Operators issued by the National Development and ThrE
Reform Commission;

3. According to the management's assessment results, the Group does not 5 RSB B AEBETERES DR
generate a large amount of hazardous waste during its business operation, EEAEEEEEY AILAMIEZEE
therefore KPI A1.3 hazardous waste does not apply; YRS IS E RN EAAER

4. Except for the content disclosed above, our business operation does not 4 e b EEIESN RETES D F S
cause any other significant impact on the environment or consume other ERHME KIS S S A ST HEEM
natural resources during our course of operation. B RIRE R o
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PRACTISING PHILANTHROPY

The Group is firmly engaged in philanthropy with the aim of delivering
caring and positive forces to society. We have formulated the Parkson
Group Charity and Public Welfare Activities Management Policy, and
actively organised and participated in various community and public
welfare activities, including cultural communication, community service,
environmental protection, knowledge dissemination and social assistance.
In 2023, we were active in making charitable donations and participating
in public service activities:

Case: New Year Fundraising Fair hosted by Hefei Parkson

¢ O SEERNEREHES

The Group cared for children with disabilities by
providing donations for them in the Spring Festival. In
2023, Hefei Parkson organised a New Year Fundraising
Fair and collaborated with a number of suppliers to
< give exquisite gifts to the children with disabilities of

Rights Into Action for Youth With Disability ("RIA"), and
raised funds through a charity auction. RIA accepted the
donations and promised the donations would be used for
rehabilitation training and assistance for children with
disabilities.

)E'F'ﬁ?%AHEFﬁﬁ FREAEMRE U TEBIEFHE

FEERABRRERE TEREC - —E_=F EARFTHELSHES WAy*ﬁ
DHEEREMEDFEEE M I
BEOHANANEREN ERNRETHIER I%%K%h%i%@ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁo

BITAmREE
AEEREMRE A AmER SEAMLE
BERZREBNHE -RMHEFE(ERE
EEERSERDEEIEFE)  BIRES
M2HEBEXCERE - HBRS  RIER
ENHEE - HEREPERNNSEHLE
RrmEm# e —E_=%F > ZARERE
M2EEEERM L mEE -
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Case: Earth Day event “Parkson 100 YOUNG for a Greener Planet"
6 : "EYOUNGEHLI Mtk E & 57EH

14

On 22 April 2023, on the occasion of World Earth Day, Parkson joined
hands with Xiamen StarMoly Network Co., Ltd. to launch the Earth Day
event "Parkson 100 YOUNG for a Greener Planet”. Parkson members who
spent a certain amount could get a can of plant seeds for free or receive
authentic hand cream by posting the empty bottles they recycled. The
purpose of this event was to encourage consumers to protect the earth
by reducing waste.

TEC-FNBAZ TR HAMKB IR BERBMSEFIHA

{  NEREEERASDREMKEED ravouweim EBRE 3
BALURENE R EANEEENET 5 A % EEeR
H 2R EIRF AMEE REF R fﬁ@ﬁi%ﬂi%%%%ﬂ?i m ,;;;gg#:;:;g,
— Rk~ D — 1D BEEE TR FAURR?
EEXFHCP
HEBROARED
#EYOUNGE N »

—REFAN 8 09~

\

Case: “Hair Donation" event held by Nanning MixC Parkson

6 R BERRMERBEM BB EE

In 2023, Nanning MixC Parkson, together with the Cancer
Foundation of China, the National Cancer Center and other
institutions, called for care for cancer patients and held a
large-scale "Hair Donation” event. Nanning MixC Parkson
< prepared beautiful gifts and donation certificates for

consumers who participated in the event to express gratitude
for their good deeds. We then worked with brands to make
the donated long hair into wigs and donated them to patients
suffering from hair loss due to cancer.

SECcH AESRNERRTTESEES S BREETOSSELEITEBEEE
BE BRARABRY FH HSBRNERAS BN EENEREEE T HEENE
SABRBE ML FEE S RO BERMYT QIS ERNEENERRE mH
AR EMNSRERENEE
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The Board (the "Board") of directors (the "Directors") of Parkson Retail
Group Limited (the "Company” and together with its subsidiaries, the
"Group") presents this report to the shareholders of the Company
(the "Shareholders") together with the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2023.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company, incorporated with limited liability in the Cayman Islands on
3 August 2005, acts as an investment company. During the year ended 31
December 2023, the principal activities of the Group are the operation and
management of a network of department stores, shopping malls, outlets
and supermarkets mainly in the People’s Republic of China (the "PRC"), and
the provision of credit services in Malaysia. The activities of its principal
subsidiaries are set out in note 1 to the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the year ended 31 December
2023, which includes an analysis of the Group's performance using
financial key performance indicators are set out in the section headed
"Management Discussion and Analysis" on pages 11 to 16 of this report.
The financial risk management and fair value measurements of the Group
are set out in note 38 to the consolidated financial statements. The
principal risks and uncertainties that the Group may face, particulars of
important events affecting the Company that have occurred since the
end of the financial year, and an indication of likely future development
in the Company's business are set out in the section headed "Chairman's
Statement” on pages 6 to 9 of this report. A discussion on the Group's
environmental policies and relationships with its key stakeholders and
investors are set out in the section headed "Environmental, Social and
Governance Report” on pages 42 to 78 of this report. An analysis of the
Group's performance indicators are set out in the section headed “Financial
Highlights" on page 10 of this report. The compliance with relevant laws
and regulations which have significant impact on the Group is set out in
this Directors' report. The reviews form part of this statement.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2023 are set out
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on page 110 of this report.

FIXED ASSETS

Changes on the Group's fixed assets are disclosed on note 11 of the
consolidated financial statements.
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DIVIDEND
The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the

year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: nil). The Company declared and paid
an interim dividend of RMBO0.01 (2022: nil) in cash per share.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of movements in the Company's share capital for the year ended

31 December 2023 are set out in note 30 to the consolidated financial
statements.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year ended 31 December 2023
and as at the date of this report are as follows:

Executive Directors

Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem (Chairman)
Juliana Cheng San San

Non-executive Director
Dato’ Sri Dr. Hou Kok Chung

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dato’ Fu Ah Kiow
Yau Ming Kim, Robert
Datuk Koong Lin Loong

Details of the profile of each member of the Board are set out in the
"Biographies of Directors and Senior Management” section on pages 17 to
22 of this report.

In accordance with Article 130 of the Articles of Association of the
Company, Dato" Sri Dr. Hou Kok Chung and Datuk Koong Lin Loong
shall retire and being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

DIRECTORS' SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has an unexpired service contract with the Company or
any of its subsidiary corporations, which is not determinable by the Group
within one year without payment of compensation, other than normal
statutory obligations.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

During the year ended 31 December 2023, no contracts concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of
the business of the Company were entered into or existed.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS AND REGULATIONS
THAT HAVE A SIGNIFICANT IMPACT ON THE COMPANY

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2023, to the best of their
knowledge, information and belief, the Directors were not aware of any
non-compliance by the Company with any relevant laws and regulations
that had a significant impact on the Company.

COMPETING BUSINESS INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

During the year ended 31 December 2023 and up to the date of this
report, none of the Directors were interested in any business apart from
the Company's business, which competed or was likely to compete,
either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the Company and its
subsidiaries pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

During the year ended 31 December 2023 and as at the date of this report,
a permitted indemnity provision as defined in the Companies Ordinance
was in force for the benefit of the Directors. The Company has taken out
and maintained appropriate insurance cover in respect of potential losses
or liabilities which the Directors or officers may sustain or incur in or
about the execution of their duties of their office during the year ended 31
December 2023.

EQUITY LINK AGREEMENT

The Company has not entered into any equity-linked agreement for the
year ended 31 December 2023.

ﬁiﬂ = n’J

REBEE_ZF_=ZF+-_A=+—HILF
B BERARREREEXESBNENERE

BrEBRTHRIHEIRFEERAE
4 0
ETHXRATRBEATEZMBRE
BRER

RBEE_T_=F+"A=+—HILEA
FER BEMMFRN BEREE EFH
AEBEERBDERAERBERTDBEERKR
FENBRBERRER

EER R P EBNRES

REE_ZE-_=F+"A=+—HIEE
REEARSBHE RE LHHRAES.10
BoBRARBEREIN BIBREENREAR
BREMBABEFERNEBBEMEF
WO BEBR B E 2 EAEFEPHEE @ o

EESFHBERX

EREFENEEFNBER (EERRQ
aEF) RBEE_E_=ZF+_-_/8= +—
HIEFERRARSBIPEER -REE
T_—F+RB=+— Etﬁf’$“
EENAEBEBERE REESEHSR
Aé%%#ﬁlﬁgﬁﬁﬂﬁﬂﬁ%%ﬁ
FEASHEENBEBEIIET

A 1 f2b 56 170 5

RBEE_Z_=ZF+"RF=+—HLHE
B> RAB T A I IR #1775

PARKSON RETAIL GROUP LIMITED BEREBXEESBIRAR

81



DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EREHREE

DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2023, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and Chief Executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and/
or debentures (as the case may be) of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the "SFQ")) which will be required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests and short positions which any such Director or Chief
Executive is taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) or
which were required to be entered in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 352 of the SFO or which were otherwise required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code, were set out below:

(a) Long positions of Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem in the share capital of
the Company:

EERESITHRABRKN KRB

B 197 B9 4 23 B 3%k

R B =F+_RA=+—H xR TE
EREBESTHABERARNAT I EE A HEHE
B (EEREBHSRIPEEA (M85 K E
EE51)) RN~ BRERMN K, S ER#E
GRIBRME) B BEERESESERBEKR
BIEEXVER B 7R 558D BB B & 2~ A B K B
RN ERRXE (BEREESRAE
BHANERRXERNEHEEARS T
AEWEFIHEFREENERRRE) ;
NERATABRIEB S RIPEENE
3EMBEFEENE MR RXAE ; o
RIBZESTRIBES TR AN T KB
PR RN

(a) Eﬁ%ﬁiﬁ%’iﬁéﬁi@ﬁﬂﬁﬁﬂ%’ﬂﬁ%
=

Number and Approximate
Class of  Percentage of
Name of Securities Shareholding
Nature of Interest Name of Registered Owner Beneficial Owner (Note 1) (Note 2)
EFHE A HE R4
)&Vl B
HmHE FRFEALE BmBEE AR (PFf¥zE1) (Ff¥zE2)
Corporate interest PRG Corporation Limited PRG Corporation 1,438,300,000 54.59%
NE R ("PRG Corporation”) ordinary shares
1,438,300,000
g
Corporate interest East Crest International Limited East Crest 9,970,000 0.38%
NE) T (“East Crest") ordinary shares
9,970,000
% i g
NOTES: B 5%
1. Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem, together with his wife, Puan Sri Chan i R EEERERNAEZFENE

Chau Ha alias Chan Chow Har, through their interests and a
series of companies in which they have a substantial interest,
are entitled to exercise or control the exercise of more than one-
third of the voting power at general meetings of Parkson Holdings
Berhad ("PHB"). Since PHB is entitled to exercise or control the
exercise of 100% of the voting power at general meeting of PRG
Corporation through East Crest, pursuant to the SFO, he is deemed
to be interested in both the 1,438,300,000 Shares held by PRG
Corporation and the 9,970,000 Shares held by East Crest in the
Company.

2. Based on the issued and paid-up capital of the Company as at 31
December 2023.
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Long positions of Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem in the share capital of

the Company's associated corporations (as defined in the SFO):

Name of

Associated Corporation

B AR

PHB

East Crest

Puncak Pelita Sdn. Bhd.

Parkson Properties Holdings

Co,, Ltd.

Parkson Vietnam Investment

Holdings Co., Ltd.

Prime Yield Holdings Limited

Corporate Code Sdn. Bhd.

PRG Corporation

Smart Spectrum Limited

Nature of Interest

EmftE

Beneficial interest and
corporate interest

BERER
A

Corporate interest

NG5

Corporate interest

NG5

Corporate interest

NE

Corporate interest

NE

Corporate interest

NE

Corporate interest

NE

Corporate interest

AT

Corporate interest

NE

Name of
Registered Owner

BaBEAANDE

Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem
together with his spouse
Chan Chau Ha alias
Chan Chow Har directly,
and through a series of
controlled corporations

R EEERERH

AR ERNE

B RER-RIIRE

EE

PHB

PHB

PHB

PHB

PHB

PHB

East Crest

East Crest

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EREREE

b) HMFEEEERNAERFREBEE (E
ERBERPERG) REAPHIEF

g

Name of
Beneficial Owner

BnfEAANLH

Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem
together with his spouse
Chan Chau Ha alias
Chan Chow Har directly,
and through a series of
controlled corporations

R EEERERA

EmAhERMUE

B REB-RHIRE

M

PHB

PHB

PHB

PHB

PHB

PHB

East Crest

East Crest

Number and

Class of Securities

Fickzd 4=
eyl

626,917,128
ordinary shares
626,917,128
R EE R

1 ordinary share
1REER

2 ordinary shares
R BIER

2 ordinary shares
R BIER

2 ordinary shares
BB

1 ordinary share
1REER

2 ordinary shares
R BB

1 ordinary share
1REER

1 ordinary share
1REER

Approximate
Percentage of
Shareholding
IRAEEA
BAL

54.56%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%
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Approximate
Name of Name of Name of Number and  Percentage of
Associated Corporation Nature of Interest Registered Owner Beneficial Owner Class of Securities  Shareholding
Fickzd 4= RS
HRHE @ T8 EztE BEnBEAALE KR BAE
Serbadagang Holdings Corporate interest East Crest East Crest 2 ordinary shares 100%
Sdn. Bhd. NE @ IREBR
Parkson Services Pte. Ltd. Corporate interest East Crest East Crest 100 ordinary shares 100%
NE @ 1008% & 2 i
Parkson Retail Asia Limited ~ Beneficial interest and ~ Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem and  Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem and 458,433,300 68.03%
corporate interest through East Crest through East Crest ordinary shares
Baah TR ANEEERERLst FTEBERKREBLst 458,433,300
Crest Crest R g iER
Parkson Properties Hanoi Corporate interest Parkson Properties Holdings  Parkson Properties Holdings 1 ordinary share 100%
Co., Ltd. NE R Co,, Ltd. Co., Ltd. REBR
Parkson TSN Holdings Corporate interest Parkson Vietnam Investment Parkson Vietnam Investment 2 ordinary shares 100%
Co, Ltd. NEER Holdings Co., Ltd. Holdings Co., Ltd. URE B
Dyna Puncak Sdn. Bhd. Corporate interest Prime Yield Holdings Prime Yield Holdings 2 ordinary shares 100%
NE @ Limited Limited IREBR
Gema Binari Sdn. Bhd. Corporate interest Prime Yield Holdings Prime Yield Holdings 2 ordinary shares 100%
NE @ Limited Limited IREBR
Prestasi Serimas Sdn. Bhd. Corporate interest Prime Yield Holdings Prime Yield Holdings 2,000,000 100%
NEE Limited Limited ordinary shares
2,000,000
REBER
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Name of
Associated Corporation

bR

Centro Retail Pte. Ltd.

PT. Tozy Sentosa
(Put into bankruptey on
17 May 2021)

PT. Tozy Sentosa
(RZBZ—£1A
+LHESKE)

Parkson Corporation
Sdn. Bhd.

Parkson Myanmar Co.,
Pte. Ltd.

Nature of Interest
EENE

Corporate interest

ABED

Corporate interest

ABED

Corporate interest

ABED

Corporate interest

ABED

Name of
Registered Owner

BaBEAANGE

Parkson Retail Asia Limited

Parkson Retail Asia Limited

Centro Retail Pte. Ltd.

Parkson Retail Asia Limited

Parkson Retail Asia Limited

Parkson Retail Asia Limited

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EFTHREE

Name of
Beneficial Owner

Parkson Retail Asia Limited

Parkson Retail Asia Limited

Centro Retail Pte. Ltd.

Parkson Retail Asia Limited

Parkson Retail Asia Limited

Parkson Retail Asia Limited

Number and

Class of Securities
Fickzid (=
KR

2 ordinary shares
(SGD)
W EER (o)

1 ordinary share
(MYR)
1REER
(MEH)

45,000

series A

common shares
45,000
FRAR S & B AT

5,000

series A

common shares
5,000
FRAR S & B R

30,355,850

series B
preference shares
30,355,850
KBRIIBRR

82,000,002
ordinary shares
82,000,002
R iE

1 ordinary share
(SGD)
REBR ()

1 ordinary share
(MYR)
1REER
(MEH)

Approximate
Percentage of
Shareholding
R4
BAE

100%

100%

(in aggregate)
100%

(&)

100%

100%

100%

PARKSON RETAIL GROUP LIMITED BHEBXEBEBIRAE



Name of
Associated Corporation

bR

Parkson Yangon Company
Limited

Parkson HBT Properties
Co,, Ltd.

|daman Erajuta Sdn. Bhd.

Magna Rimbun Sdn. Bhd.

True Excel Investments

Limited

Parkson Branding Sdn. Bhd.

Ombrello Resources Sdn. Bhd.

Parkson SGN Co., Ltd.

Parkson Cambodia Holdings
Co,, Ltd.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
=EFERET

Nature of Interest
EEUE

Corporate interest

B &R

Corporate interest

AB)ED

Corporate interest

ABED

Corporate interest

ABER

Corporate interest

ABER

Corporate interest

ABER

Corporate interest
NE @

Corporate interest

ABER

Corporate interest

AB)ER

2023 ANNUAL REPORT fEE#RE

Name of
Registered Owner

BaEAANDE

Parkson Retail Asia Limited

Parkson Myanmar Co., Pte.
Ltd.

Parkson TSN Holdings Co.,
Ltd.

Dyna Puncak Sdn. Bhd.

Dyna Puncak Sdn. Bhd.

Dyna Puncak Sdn. Bhd.

Gema Binari Sdn. Bhd.

Prestasi Serimas Sdn. Bhd.

Parkson Corporation Sdn.
Bhd.

Parkson Corporation Sdn.
Bhd.

Name of
Beneficial Owner

Parkson Retail Asia Limited

Parkson Myanmar Co., Pte.
Ltd.

Parkson TSN Holdings Co.,
Ltd.

Dyna Puncak Sdn. Bhd.

Dyna Puncak Sdn. Bhd.

Dyna Puncak Sdn. Bhd.

Gema Binari Sdn. Bhd.

Prestasi Serimas
Sdn. Bhd.

Parkson Corporation Sdn.
Bhd.

Parkson Corporation Sdn.
Bhd.

Number and
Class of Securities

Fickzd =
eyl

1,900,000
ordinary shares
1,900,000
R g iER

100,000
ordinary shares
100,000

R g iER

2,100,000
capital (USD)
A% 752,100,000
(&Em)

2 ordinary shares
BB

2 ordinary shares
R BIER

1 ordinary share
1REER

7,000,000
ordinary shares
7,000,000
R iE R

457,000
ordinary shares
457,000
R iE R

4,500,000
capital (USD)
% 754,500,000
(&)

1 ordinary share
1REER

Approximate
Percentage of
Shareholding
RS
BAE

100%

(in aggregate)
100%

(&)

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%



Name of

Associated Corporation

bR

Parkson Edutainment World

Sdn. Bhd.

Parkson Lifestyle Sdn. Bhd.

Parkson Haiphong Co., Ltd.

Parkson Unlimited Beauty
Sdn. Bhd.

Parkson Trends Sdn. Bhd.

Parkson Private Label
Sdn. Bhd.

Parkson Trading (Vietnam)
Company Limited

Solid Gatelink Sdn. Bhd.

Parkson Vietnam Co., Ltd.

Nature of Interest
EENE

Corporate interest

ABED

Corporate interest
NE @

Corporate interest

AB)ER

Corporate interest

ABED

Corporate interest
NE @

Corporate interest

ABED

Corporate interest

AR

Corporate interest
NE @

Corporate interest

AB)ED

Name of
Registered Owner

BaBEAANGE

Parkson Corporation Sdn.

Bhd.

Parkson Corporation Sdn.

Bhd.

Parkson Corporation Sdn.

Bhd.

Parkson Corporation Sdn.

Bhd.

Parkson Corporation Sdn.

Bhd.

Parkson Corporation Sdn.

Bhd.

Parkson Corporation Sdn.

Bhd.

Parkson Corporation Sdn.

Bhd.

Parkson Corporation Sdn.

Bhd.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EREREE

Name of
Beneficial Owner

Parkson Corporation Sdn.

Bhd.

Parkson Corporation Sdn.

Bhd.

Parkson Corporation Sdn.

Bhd.

Parkson Corporation Sdn.

Bhd.

Parkson Corporation Sdn.

Bhd.

Parkson Corporation Sdn.

Bhd.

Parkson Corporation Sdn.

Bhd.

Parkson Corporation Sdn.

Bhd.

Parkson Corporation Sdn.

Bhd.

Approximate

Number and  Percentage of

Class of Securities

Fickzd =
eyl

1,000,000
ordinary shares
1,000,000
R iE

35,000,000
ordinary shares
35,000,000
R iE

30,000,920
capital (USD)

}% 7530,000,920
&)

3,000,000
ordinary shares
3,000,000
R iE

3,000,000
ordinary shares
3,000,000
R iE R

5,000,000
ordinary shares
5,000,000
R iE

300,000
capital (USD)
7300000

&)

3,000,000
ordinary shares
3,000,000
R iE R

10,340,000
capital (USD)

}% 710,340,000
&)

Shareholding
friERA9
BAL

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%
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EFTHEE

Approximate
Name of Name of Name of Number and  Percentage of

Associated Corporation Nature of Interest Registered Owner Beneficial Owner Class of Securities  Shareholding
Fickzd 4= R HE R4S
HEEE AR feamitE B EEALE KR AL

Parkson Myanmar Investment Corporate interest Parkson Myanmar Co., Pte. ~ Parkson Myanmar Co., Pte. 2,100,000 70%
Company Pte. Ltd. NEEE Ltd. Ltd. ordinary shares
2,100,000
R g iER

Festival City Sdn. Bhd. Corporate interest Idaman Erajuta Sdn. Bhd.  Idaman Erajuta Sdn. Bhd. 500,000 100%
NEEE ordinary shares
500,000
REER

Megan Mastika Sdn. Bhd. Corporate interest Magna Rimbun Sdn. Bhd. ~ Magna Rimbun Sdn. Bhd. 300,000 100%
NEEE ordinary shares
300,000
REBR

True Excel Investments Corporate interest True Excel Investments True Excel Investments 1,000 100%
(Cambodia) Co., Ltd. NEE Limited Limited ordinary shares
1,000
REER

Parkson (Cambodia) Co., Ltd. ~ Corporate interest Parkson Cambodia Holdings  Parkson Cambodia Holdings 1,000 100%
NEER Co, Ltd. Co,, Ltd. ordinary shares
1,000
REER
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EREHRES

Approximate
Name of Name of Name of Number and  Percentage of

Associated Corporation Nature of Interest Registered Owner Beneficial Owner Class of Securities  Shareholding
Fickzd 4= R HEE4S
HEEE AR femitE BEEALE KR BALE

Parkson Vietnam Corporate interest Parkson Vietnam Co., Ltd. ~ Parkson Vietnam Co., Ltd. 100,000 100%
Management Services Co, ‘ARz capital (USD)
Ltd. B 7%100,000
&)

Myanmar Parkson Company  Corporate interest Parkson Myanmar Parkson Myanmar 300,000 100%
Limited NEER Investment Company Pte.  Investment Company Pte. Oordinary shares
Ltd. Ltd. 300,000
Bra=gEl

Dimensi Andaman Sdn. Bhd.  Corporate interest Megan Mastika Sdn. Bhd. ~ Megan Mastika Sdn. Bhd. 300,000 100%
NEER ordinary shares  (in aggregate)

300,000 100%

REBR (B3t

53,719,999
redeemable
convertible
cumulative
preference shares
53,719,999
k(e
EEES
Bk

NOTES: PEE :

1. Based on the relevant information of the respective companies as 1. MRIZIEZ=F+=ZA=+—H

at 31 December 2023. HNEABERENSEE-

PARKSON RETAIL GROUP LIMITED BHREHREEEMRA" 89
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() Short positions of Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem in the share capital of  (c) FErEEEHRN A AT AR EE (E

the Company's associated corporations (as defined in the SFO): ERBHFRAERA) RAFRB
B
Approximate
Percentage of
Name of Name of Name of Number and  Shareholding
Associated Corporation Nature of Interest Registered Owner Beneficial Owner Class of Securities (Note)
R4
BAE
TR LB T8 EmtE EHEREALE EDBEAALE 558 A RER (Ph3E)
PHB Corporate interest Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem 40,000,142 3.48%
NEER together with his spouse together with his ordinary shares
Chan Chau Ha alias spouse Chan Chau Ha
Chan Chow Har directly, alias Chan Chow Har 40,000,142
and through a series of directly, and through Pzl
controlled corporations a series of controlled

REBERERHER®  corporations
BRERNEER RE AREEERERH
B—RIZEEE B BEN ERE

Ef REB—%
5% E

Note: P EE

Based on the total number of issued shares of PHB as at 31 December 2023. UPHBR —_E-_=F+_"_A=+—HH
EBETROBEHAEE-
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, none of the Directors
or Chief Executive of the Company had any interests or short positions
in the shares, underlying shares and/or debentures of the Company and
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
which are required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
and short positions which they were taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO), or are required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO,
to be entered in the register referred to therein, or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

ARRANGEMENTS TO ENABLE DIRECTORS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
AND DEBENTURES

Save from the above disclosure, at no time during the year ended 31
December 2023 were rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any of the Directors
or their respective spouses or minor children, or were any such rights
exercised by them; nor was the Company, its holding company, or any of
its subsidiary corporations or fellow subsidiary corporations a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors or their respective spouses or minor
children to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

fREXFIIRBEEIIN MZE-_=ZF+_"8
=t+—B EARRNEFARSTHAER
BRARBREEERZEZE (EEREFK
HA G 1R I EEXVER) B9RR1H ~ BRI MD K, /3X
BB BEAEAREZESRPERD
SEXVERF 7K B8 B AR & A A B KB R
PREVEZ SR B (BRERER SR ER
PINBEBERXKEREFRREEEEN
BamkRB)  WRBESKPEHEIE
2R BEL AZ KPS E LA B m
gRB > RRBEETHAFTHNEER
B K ST P B RE ER S A ©

AAEFWBRMD REERT ZRZH

R EXFImRBEEN RBEE_T_=

+TZR=+—BLFE ARRAHERE
ANERENEFHHEE B ZEBERNK
FFuRHBBBEARTRMDNERES
MESMm 2 B RETFRETEEM
BREN , XA HIERATHEER
LN NSIEAEIEN b UNSIDIY e E I R g S
EFNHSBZRBRRLEFLINER
HABZEESAREN ZERZ -

PARKSON RETAIL GROUP LIMITED BEREBXEESBIRAR
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
=EFERET

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS AND SHORT TEREMNIRMRAMRKRGOINER
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES B

As at 31 December 2023, so far as the Directors are aware, each of the W ZIEBE - =F+_"_H=+—H EEEFT
following persons, not being a Director or Chief Executive of the Company, X' U T& AL (IR ABEEKESTT
had interests and short positions in the Company's shares which falls to be  EAE) RARAB RN BEE T KA XE
disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange under the provisions of Y ZBiR #3535 & BB E I8 G EXVEP E2 KR E3
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO: DEAAA B R B A PR R -

Percentage of
Shareholding

(direct or

Name of Shareholder Long/Short Positions Nature of Interest Number of Shares indirect)

BRESL

: (B

RREE/ 4 e/ %& EmitE RiP¥E )

PHB Long Corporate interest 1,448,270,000 54.97%
#2 AF (Note 1
GE)

Puan Sri Chan Chau Ha alias Long Interest of spouse 1,448,270,000 54.97%
Chan Chow Har ) R (Note 2)
BERNE GE)

PRG Corporation Long Beneficial interest 1,438,300,000 54.59%
5} Bmfn (Note 1)
(FizE1)

Chan Kin Long Corporate interest 955,975,517 36.28%
B 5o} AR (Note 3)
GEZ)

Argyle Street Management Long Corporate interest 955,975,517 36.28%
Holdings Limited ) NEER (Note 3)
GE)

Argyle Street Management Limited Long Investment manager 955,975,517 36.28%
FE BELE (Note 3)
GE)

ASM Connaught House Long Corporate interest 940,584,517 35.70%
General Partner Il Limited ] AL d (Note 3)
GEZ)

ASM Connaught House Fund Il LP Long Corporate interest 940,584,517 35.70%
wa NEER (Note 3)
GE)
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Percentage of
Shareholding

(direct or

Name of Shareholder Long/Short Positions Nature of Interest Number of Shares indirect)

BREDL

: (B

RRLE/ 4 e/ ¥%& EEtE RIP¥E )

Bishan Street Limited ("Bishan") Long Beneficial interest and security interest 933,845,517 35.44%
#a Enn kR (Note 3)
GE=)

Wan_g Hung Roger Long Beneficial interest and trustee 429,935,500 16.32%
Fia #e BGRERTEA (Note 4)
(FizEa)

Wang Hsu Vivine H Long Interest of spouse and beneficiary of a trust 429,935,500 16.32%
IREE ®#E EAEEREERTEA (Note 5)
GE)

GEICO Holdings Limited Long Corporate interest 421,646,346 16.00%
wa NEER (Note 6)
GEDH)

Golden Eagle International Retail Long Beneficial interest 421,646,346 16.00%
Group Limited we EnEn (Note 6)
(FizZe)

Wang Dorothy S L Long Beneficiary of a trust 421,646,346 16.00%

®#E BEEZEA
Wang Janice S Y Long Beneficiary of a trust 421,646,346 16.00%
®#E BEEZEA

PARKSON RETAIL GROUP LIMITED BHREBHXEEEMRA" 093
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NOTES:

PRG Corporation is a wholly-owned subsidiary of East Crest which is in turn
wholly-owned by PHB. By virtue of the SFO, PHB is deemed to be interested
in the Shares held by PRG Corporation in the Company.

Puan Sri Chan Chau Ha alias Chan Chow Har is the wife of Tan Sri Cheng
Heng Jem and is deemed to be interested in 1,448,270,000 Shares which
Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem is deemed to be interested in for the purposes of
the SFO.

According to disclosure of interest filings available on the Stock Exchange's
website, Mr. Chan Kin is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by
several corporations which he directly or indirectly controls. Out of these
955,975,517 Shares, 9,645,517 Shares are interests in cash-settled unlisted
derivatives.

Bishan and ASM Connaught House Fund LP beneficially owned 9,645,517
and 11,565,500 Shares respectively. Bishan also held 924,200,000 securities
interest on the Shares among the 933,845,517 Shares it is interested in.

Bishan was held indirectly by Argyle Street Management Limited as the
Investment Manager through ASM Connaught House Fund Il LP, ASM
Connaught House Fund LP and several other controlled corporations. ASM
Connaught House General Partner Il Limited and ASM Connaught House
General Partner Limited were two wholly controlled corporations of Argyle
Street Management Holding Limited. Mr. Chan Kin has 100% control over
Argyle Street Management Limited through his 50.43% control over Argyle
Street Management Holding Limited. Accordingly, Mr. Chan Kin, Argyle
Street Management Holding Limited and Argyle Street Management Limited
were deemed to be interested in an aggregate holding of 955975517
Shares by virtue of the SFO.

The capacities of Wang Hung Roger in holding the 429,935,500 Shares
(Long position) were as to 8,289,154 Shares (Long position) as beneficial
owner and 421,646,346 Shares (Long position) as trustee.

Wang Hsu Vivine H is the wife of Wang Hung Roger and is deemed to be
interested in 429,935,500 Shares held by Wang Hung Roger.

Golden Eagle International Retail Group Limited is wholly-owned by GEICO
Holdings Limited. By virtue of the SFO, GEICO Holdings Limited is deemed to
be interested in the Shares held by Golden Eagle International Retail Group
Limited in the Company.

2023 ANNUAL REPORT fE[ERE

MisE -

PRG CorporationiZFast Crestfy 2 & [ /B
A Mikast CrestX APHBE B R o &
NSRS > PHBW R EFPRG
CorporationTE RN A ENRKR M FHESR

o

BHRERMESATEEEZRNE
FOERRBERBEMERM  REEIF
BERNEEERNEAER DD

RNy

1,448,270,0008% BR 19 BUE 2R ©

RIBHZFAEEENERRESR
RELERRANAREERZYBIFE
BN AT EMNRD P EE R - E
5% %955,975,51 7B B 9P > 9,645,517 A% A%
DARELTREEETETAPNE

>< 5

m

Bishan5zASM Connaught House Fund LP43 Bl
B #EH59,6455170% K 11,565,5008% %17 ©
TEEAETM33,845 5178 1D & >
Bishan7R 73924,200,0004% B&% 15 H2 #E /5 1K 38

TN
525 o

m

BishanFHArgyle Street Management Limited
(EAKREKIE) FBASM Connaught
House Fund Il LP~ ASM Connaught House
Fund LPRBIREMBZELEB#ETHE
ASM Connaught House General Partner Il
Limited52ASM Connaught House General
Partner LimitedZ¥Argyle Street Management
Holding Limited MK T2 Z 15 E © &
RS B H B 50.430%E H E AYArgyle
Street Management Holding Limited¥H&
Argyle Street Management Limited 100%HY
B - JUIL  RIBE S ARG RG> BR
{44 ~ Argyle Street Management Holding
Limited 5zArgyle Street Management Limited
WAR A & 57955,975,51 7% AR 15 MO 15 A%
FRER R o

FIEFF1F A RY429,935,50002 B2 15 ((F &)
F1 8,289,154 R B% 1D (IF B) UBREE A
B1D¥5H » 421,646,34608 B8 10 (F &) UL
SEABNFE

THEBATENEZF WRENTIE
A B9429,935 5000 IR1D PR ©

Golden Eagle International Retail Group
Limited EHGEICO Holdings Limited 2 B A o
ERESF GG > GEICO Holdings
Limited4% 3 YEf2Golden Eagle International
Retail Group LimitedFTiFH WA A B IR1%
REER R -
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EREREE

As at 31 December 2023, as far as the Directors are aware, each of the W _ B _=F+_A=+—H EEEFT

following persons, not being a Director or Chief Executive of the Company, %1' U TFEMUAL (LIFEARABDESTHES

was directly or indirectly interested in 10% or more of the nominal value {THAE) BEEABEZFELAERRE AT

of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at (AT BRIN FERIEERI PR A (BEFT #EF] AT

general meeting of a member of the Group other than the Company: EEABERTFTREBREAE ERE) BEE10%
WU

Percentage of
Equity Interest

Substantial Shareholder Member of the Group Held
RHERE
FERE TEERE AT Bt
Wuxi Supply and Marketing Group Co., Ltd. Wuxi Sanyang Parkson Plaza Co., Ltd. 40%
("Wuxi Supply and Marketing") ? ("Wuxi Parkson")
EHHEHERARAD (MTEHHE) 2 EBH =G ARESERAS
(G=:321=129))
Guizhou Shenqi Enterprise Co., Ltd. Guizhou Shengi Parkson Retail Development 40%
("Guizhou Shenqi Enterprise”) 3 Co., Ltd. ("Guizhou Parkson")
ENEmBEEARAS (EMNHEHEE)) EMNETERERERFRAT
(MEMNEE])
Shanghai Nine Sea Industry Co., Ltd. Shanghai Nine Sea Lion Properties 71%
("Shanghai Nine Sea Industry") Management Co., Ltd. ("Shanghai Lion
EBEBABEBEARRAE (LBNBEZE) Property")*
EBNEEMYEEERRAT
(TEssmyzEl)
Shanghai Nine Sea Industry Shanghai Nine Sea Parkson Plaza Co., Ltd. 29%
BN BEEE ("Shanghai Nine Sea Parkson")®
EBNEEREHBERAS
U=y F=1=F-:7)
E-Land Fashion Hong Kong Limited Parkson Newcore Retail Shanghai Ltd. 51%
("E-Land Hong Kong") © ("Parkson Newcore")
ReHEEBBRAE ((RKSFKEEH) BRATHRIRESEE (L8 ARAT
(TERRARAT#)
E-Land Hong Kong ’ Nanchang Parkson Newcore Retail Ltd. 51%
TR R A ("Nanchang Newcore")’
HAEERAEEHERRAS
(MaE#zl)’
Koh Wee Lit Habitat Blue Sdn. Bhd. 40.55%
Bernice Cheong Nyuk Siew Habitat Blue Sdn. Bhd. 16.67%

PARKSON RETAIL GROUP LIMITED BHEBXEBEBIRAE
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NOTES:

Wuxi Supply and Marketing owns 40% of the equity interest of Wuxi
Parkson.

(i) Guizhou Shengi Enterprise, owns 40% of the equity interest of
Guizhou Parkson.

(if) Zhang Pei, Zhang Zhi Jun and Zhang Ya, own 30%, 40% and 30%
of the equity interest in Guizhou Shenqi Enterprise, respectively,
representing a 12%, 16% and 12% indirect equity interest in
Guizhou Parkson.

Shanghai Lion Property is a cooperative joint venture enterprise established
under the laws of the PRC between Shanghai Nine Sea Industry and
Exonbury Limited (“Exonbury"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.
According to public record, Shanghai Nine Sea Industry and Exonbury owns
54.79% and 45.21% equity interest in Shanghai Lion Property respectively.
Shanghai Nine Sea Industry and the Group are entitled to 71% and 29% of
the voting rights in the board of Shanghai Lion Property respectively under
a mutual agreement between both parties. Shanghai Nine Sea Industry
and the Group are entitled to 65% and 35% of the distributable profits of
Shanghai Lion Property respectively.

Shanghai Nine Sea Parkson is a cooperative joint venture enterprise
established under the laws of the PRC between Shanghai Nine Sea Industry
and Exonbury. According to public record, Exonbury owns 100% equity
interest in Shanghai Nine Sea Parkson. Shanghai Nine Sea Industry and the
Group are entitled to 29% and 71% of the voting rights in the board of
Shanghai Nine Sea Parkson respectively under a mutual agreement between
both parties. Shanghai Nine Sea Industry is entitled to a pre-determined
distribution of income from Shanghai Nine Sea Parkson while the Group
is entitled to 100% of its distributed profit after deducting the aforesaid
pre-determined distribution of income attributable to Shanghai Nine Sea
Industry.

According to public records, Newcore Retail Hong Kong Limited (“Newcore
Hong Kong") has transferred its 51% equity interest in Parkson Newcore
to E-Land Hong Kong on or around 21 July 2021. Upon the completion of
the aforesaid transfer, Newcore Hong Kong has ceased to be a shareholder
of Parkson Newcore and E-Land Hong Kong has become a shareholder of
Parkson Newcore who owns 51% of the equity interest in Parkson Newcore.

Parkson Newcore owns 100% of the equity interest in Nanchang Newcore.
E-Land Hong Kong owns 51% of the equity interest in Parkson Newcore,
and thus E-Land Hong Kong is indirectly interested in 51% of the equity
interest in Nanchang Newcore.
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MisE -

2.

EH IR E B 400 -

U] BEMEETEREER SN EE40%

e

L
nr

(ii) KT - RZERREDBEES
PN 48 2T E 2 B930% ~ 40% K2 30%
B M EMEERBI12% 169K
1200 I o

EeMYELAREBNEEERER
EFHERAE ((BBREH) AATE
BB AR RIBEABEEARRINEE
KREPERBEAMER EBALEE
ERGERENDRES LESRYWEN
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Save as disclosed above and so far as the Directors are aware, as at 31
December 2023, no other person had an interest or short position in the
Company's shares or underlying shares (as the case may be), which would
fall to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or was otherwise
directly or indirectly interested in 10% or more of the nominal value of any
class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general
meetings of any member of the Group.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS
AND CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance in relation to
the Group's business to which the Company or any its subsidiaries was a
party and in which a director of the Company or his/her connected entity
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the financial year 2023 or at any time during the year ended 31
December 2023.

No contract of significance was entered into between any member of
the Group and a controlling shareholder of the Company or any of its
subsidiaries corporations or contract of significance for the provision of
services to any member of the Group by a controlling shareholder or any of
its subsidiaries subsisted as at the end of the financial year 2023 or during
the year ended 31 December 2023.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS OR CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2023 and up to the date of this report,
there was no discloseable non-exempted connected transaction under the
Listing Rules.

None of the "Related Party Transactions" as disclosed in Note 34 to the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2023
constituted discloseable non-exempted connected transaction or non-
exempted continuing connected transaction under the Listing Rules. To
the extent of the above "Related Party Transactions” constituted connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions as defined in the Listing
Rules, the Company had complied with the relevant requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules during the year ended 31 December 2023.
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DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

A deed of non-competition was entered into between Lion Diversified
Holdings Berhad ("LDHB") and the Company on 10 November 2005
(supplemented and amended on 18 September 2007), under which LDHB
has undertaken not to engage, other than through the existing managed
stores, in any business of the retail trade in merchandise in department
stores, supermarkets, hypermarkets, convenience stores, specialty
merchandise stores, supercentres and category killers in the PRC, Hong
Kong, Macau and Taiwan. Pursuant to a reorganisation scheme undertaken
by LDHB, LDHB had agreed to consolidate most of its retail business
(including most of its existing managed stores in the PRC) into PHB. In
light thereof, PHB has entered into an identical deed of non-competition
with the Company on 18 September 2007 with respect to those managed
stores acquired from LDHB. In conjunction therewith, LDHB has granted an
indemnity in favour of the Company which will be invoked if PHB fails to
fulfill its obligation under the aforesaid deed of non-competition dated 18
September 2007.

The principal businesses of LDHB are manufacturing and selling computer
and related products, developing property, investment holding and others.
The principal business of PHB is operation of department stores and PHB
is a substantial shareholder of the Company and therefore a connected
person of the Company. Both PHB and LDHB are members of The Lion
Group which is ultimately controlled by Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem and
hence, LDHB is a connected person of the Company. Save for Tan Sri
Cheng Heng Jem who has material interest in the aforesaid transaction,
none of the directors have a material interest in the aforesaid transaction
and need to be abstained from voting in respect thereof. Tan Sri Cheng
Heng Jem is deemed interested in the aforesaid transaction and has been
abstained from voting in any of the resolutions in relation to the aforesaid
transaction.
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TRADEMARK LICENCE AGREEMENT

A trademark licence agreement (the "Licence Agreement”) was entered into
between Shanghai Lion Investment (an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company) and Parkson Services Pte. Ltd. on 1 June 2020, pursuant
to which Parkson Services Pte. Ltd. granted to Shanghai Lion Investment
an exclusive licence to use certain trademarks, including the “Parkson” and
“Xtra" trademarks for a term of 30 years at the licence fee of RMB30, 000
per store per annum.

Parkson Services Pte. Ltd. is a wholly-owned subsidiary of East Crest which
in turn is wholly-owned by PHB (and hence an associate of PHB) and its
principal activity is intellectual property holding. None of the directors has
a material interest in the Licence Agreement and needs to be abstained
from voting in respect thereof.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the above
continuing connected transactions and confirmed that the transactions
had been entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of the business of the Group;

(i1) on normal commercial terms or better; and
(i) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them and
on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Company and the shareholders of the Company as a whole.
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DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULE 13.21 OF THE LISTING RULES

On 6 December 2021, the Company as borrower, entered into a facility
agreement (the "Facility Agreement”) in respect of a syndication term loan
facility with an aggregate amount of up to HK$2,700,000,000 (the "Loan
Facility") with a syndicate of banks, as lenders (the “Lenders") with the term
of 36 months commencing from the first drawdown date. Pursuant to the
Facility Agreement, Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem (together with his wife, Puan
Sri Chan Chau Ha alias Chan Chow Har, who is deemed to be interested in
Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem's interests in the Company) shall remain to be the
largest ultimate beneficial owner of the Company. In the event that Tan
Sri Cheng Heng Jem (together with his wife, Puan Sri Chan Chau Ha alias
Chan Chow Har) ceases to be the largest ultimate beneficial owner of the
Company, the facility available will be cancelled and the Company shall be
obliged to pay all outstanding amounts immediately.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2023, the aggregate amount of reserve available for
distribution to equity shareholders of the Company was approximately
RMB272.8 million (2022: approximately RMB469.8 million).

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY'S LISTED
SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2023, neither the Company nor any
of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed interest in any of the
Company's listed securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company's
Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands although there
are no restrictions against such rights under the laws of the Cayman
Islands.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY AND PENSION SCHEMES

The Group recognises the importance of good relationships with
employees. The remuneration payable to employees includes salaries and
allowance/bonuses.

The Group has also made contributions to staff-related plans or funds in
accordance with the local regulations of the PRC: pension plans, medical
insurance, unemployment insurance, work-related injury insurance and
maternity insurance.

The Group has been advised by its legal advisers on PRC law that the above
arrangements are in compliance with all relevant laws and regulations.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

As the Group is principally engaged in retail sales, none of its customers
and suppliers accounted for more than 5% of its turnover for the year
ended 31 December 2023. None of the directors or shareholders who
owned 5% or more of the issued capital of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2023 or any of their respective associates held any interest
in any of the five largest customers and suppliers of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2023.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float as at the latest
practicable date prior to the issue of this annual report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Details of the Company's corporate governance practices are set out in the
“Corporate Governance Report" under this annual report.
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AUDITOR

Messrs Ernst & Young ("EY") retired as auditor of the Company at the
conclusion of the Company's annual general meeting held on 20 May 2021
("2021 AGM"). Messrs Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited ("GTHK") have
been appointed as new auditor of the Company at the 2021 AGM upon the
retirement of EY.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been audited by
GTHK. At the forthcoming annual general meeting, GTHK will retire and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution will be
submitted to the forthcoming annual general meeting to re-appoint GTHK
as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Parkson Retail Group Limited
Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem
Executive Director & Chairman
26 February 2024
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

o GrantThornton
e

To the shareholders of Parkson Retail Group Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Parkson Retail
Group Limited (the "Company") and its subsidiaries (together, the "Group”)
set out on pages 110 to 260, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2023, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including material accounting policy
information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December
2023, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs") issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (“IASB") and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants ("HKICPA"). Qur responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “"Code"), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

BIURHARSE (8)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate

opinion on these matters.

Key Audit Matter
R EIZEIR

WFE 5 R AR S E B

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets

FEEZEE
HRBZEFRZREEFNEXRSIE B
ARG EMBRERNBEZERSEEN
FE-RSFFHEEEEEEREERGGY
BHREARKRERESHENERNERTE
TRE BEEFEHZEFTREHERBYN
=R

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EENERNMAEREZER

The Group operates department stores mainly in the People's
Republic of China (the "PRC"). Having considered the loss-making
performance of certain stores, management performed impairment
testing with respective to the assets of those loss-making
department stores with a net carrying amount of RMB384,038,000
as at 31 December 2023 and impairment amounting to
RMB29,265,000 was provided in the current year. The impairment
testing requires management to make assumptions to be used
in the underlying cash flow forecasts. The assumptions include
expectations for gross margin, growth rates and discount rates, as
well as the overall market and economic conditions in the PRC. In
view of the significance of the amount and the level of judgement
exercised by management, we consider this as a key audit matter.
BEETENREARAME ((HE) KEBEE-ES
FETFAENEERRT EBEMZSHEREIENEE
ETREAR R _Z2_=F+"A=+—H %%BE
&8I ERE R E A A K 5384,038,00070 ' BEAF EFHRBEE
B AR #29,2650007  BEAIE R EEIEE R TRAIER
REREBFLRER ZEBRRVEBFHEFN X BRI
RES DU RPEERHSEQE R THNE - ERARE
EAEEEMFHENEEREER EERILER—E
FREZEE

The Company's disclosure for impairment of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets are included in notes 3, 11 and
13 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Our audit procedures included, amongst others,
evaluating the Group's policies and procedures to
identify triggering events for potential impairment
of assets related to the underperforming stores
and management's assessment on impairment
indicators. We have also assessed the reasonableness
of assumptions made by management, evaluated
the reasonableness of methodologies, growth rates
and discount rates used by the Group, and compared
the key assumptions used in the impairment
assessment to the historical data of the Group and
the external data in the similar industry. We have
also tested management sensitivity analysis of the
key assumptions to ascertain that selected adverse
changes to key assumptions would not cause the
carrying amount of cash-generating units to materially
exceed the recoverable amount. We also evaluated the
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
about the key assumptions used in the determination
of the recoverable amount of the related cash-
generating units in accordance with IAS 36.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key Audit Matter

MEERER

Impairment of goodwill

GEEY

BUZMARSE (8)

REEREE (B

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EENERNAREZER

The Group is required to perform an impairment assessment
of goodwill at least annually. Management performed annual
impairment testing with respective to the goodwill with a total
carrying amount of RMB1,636,683,000 as at 31 December 2023
and impairment amounting to RMB16,277,000 was provided in
the current year. Management's assessment process is complex
and highly judgemental and is based on assumptions, in particular
those relating to gross margin, growth rates and discount rates,
as well as the overall market and economic conditions. Given the
significance of the amount, the sensitivity of the assumptions and
the level of judgement involved, we consider this as a key audit
matter.
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The Company's disclosures for impairment of goodwill are included
in notes 3 and 14 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Our audit procedures included, amongst others,
assessing the reasonableness of assumptions made
by management, evaluating the appropriateness of
valuation methodologies, growth rates and discount
rate used by the Group, and comparing the key
assumptions used in the impairment assessment to the
historical data of the Group and the external data in
the similar industry. We have also involved our internal
valuation expert in evaluating the appropriateness of
valuation methodologies and discount rate used by the
Group. We have also tested management sensitivity
analysis of the key assumptions to ascertain that
selected adverse changes to key assumptions would
not cause the carrying amount of cash-generating
units to materially exceed the recoverable amount.
We also evaluated the disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements about the key assumptions used
in the determination of the recoverable amount of
the related cash-generating units in accordance with
IAS 36.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

JIUEHENEEE (&)

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information in the 2023 annual report of the
Company, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and
our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors assisted by the Audit Committee are responsible for
overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

o identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

° evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
\IZBEREE (0F)

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

conclude on the appropriateness of the directors' use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group
to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited
Certified Public Accountants

11th Floor

Lee Garden Two

28 Yun Ping Road

Causeway Bay

Hong Kong

26 February 2024

Ng Ka Kong
Practising Certificate No.: P06919

BUZMARSE (8)

%ML B A% AR & I TS R AR AR IERY
&5 @)
"EBEZZEGERNEEFR EERTE
ZEHA ARG EVBERRNEZRAE
ENFE AMERBREZEE-BF
EREAMREESREMEZEEZE  RIEE
BRAROATAFAHAEEZETER E,W_
BiHERNERLT SEERAMRE

RE qjuiﬁﬁ%%lﬁi_ﬁ}zﬂ']ﬁﬁ@%ﬁﬁ
EENARM G I BEZERAEREERS
%EPDEEH;‘E%IEO

HE (BB g ERFRERAR
HEESET

é‘}%

/L_.\:|:5V28’:7}:Ev

A E —HA

18

“ECMERAT+3H

28T
HEBEZ5REE (P06919

PARKSON RETAIL GROUP LIMITED BEBXEESBIRAHE

109



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
EFOAmE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE_Z-_=F+"A=+—HIFFE

2023 2022
—E-= B F
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥TT AERETIT
(restated)
(Cc==pl)
REVENUES I &= 4 3,645,382 3,300,608
Other operating revenues H & & 1 4 532,108 448,059
Total operating revenues KE I m AR A 4,177,490 3,748,667
OPERATING EXPENSES KER%
Purchases of goods and changes in inventories  REEEYIR1FEEE) (1,835,698) (1,850,068)
Staff costs BT (485,837) (536,636)
Depreciation and amortisation HT EE e kB (558,491) (604,263)
Rental expenses AR (90,132) (15,214)
Other operating expenses H &= (701,851) (753,479)
Total operating expenses SR 4B RE (3.672,009) (3,759,660)
PROFIT/(LOSS) FROM OPERATIONS REFHE (B18) 505,481 (10,993)
Finance income =N 6 55,367 60,099
Finance costs B E Al AS 6 (498,117) (459,009)
Share of profits/(losses) of: FELFIE, (B518) !
- A joint venture —5E P 16 11,149 (1,723)
- Associates — A E] 17 12,767 (1,535)
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX MEiFIE (B518) 5 86,647 (413,161)
Income tax (expense)/credit Frigie BR) % 8 (16,145) 27,738
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR FEFE (B8 70,502 (385,423)
Attributable to: UTIEBEWS :
- Owners of the Company —ARRBFE A 66,413 (383,599)
- Non-controlling interests —JEEE RS 4,089 (1,824)
70,502 (385,423)

EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE Zs/A B) & i@ RR #2515

TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF EAELSRERN,
THE COMPANY (E548) 10
Basic and diluted B R 5E RMBO0.025 (RMBO.146)

AR#0.0257c (AR #0.1467T)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
o EEIER

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -_=F+_"_A=+—HItFE

2023 2022
—EZ= T F
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR%TT ARETFIT
(restated)
(&&E5)
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR FENR (F5i8) 70,502 (385,423)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE EXPENSES Hith2EAX
Other comprehensive expenses that LRI e E D4
may be reclassified to profit or loss in EEaNHEMEE
subsequent periods: % :
- Exchange differences on translation of — B BN EF T
foreign operations EE7ERER (31,513) (139,291)
Other comprehensive expenses that FUERHABRAEED
will not be reclassified to profit or loss in HEEmNEMEE
subsequent periods: % :
- Exchange differences on translation of —MBARRBEREEZ
the Company e =R (12,997) (50,730)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE EXPENSES FOR FEREBHMEZEMX
THE YEAR, NET OF TAX (44,510) (190,021)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(EXPENSE) FEEZ2EWA (i)
FOR THE YEAR “azE 25,992 (575,444)
Attributable to: MTEEEML:
- Owners of the Company — KRB EA 21,903 (573,620)
- Non-controlling interests —JEEERS 4,089 (1,824)
25,992 (575,444)

PARKSON RETAIL GROUP LIMITED BEBXEESBIRAHE



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
EFaBREARE

As at 31 December 2023 R_ZE_=F+_HA=+—H

2023 2022
—E-= B F
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥TT AREFIT
(restated)
(Ccs==e7l)
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME-BERZE 1 2,807,192 2,905,940
Investment properties KEYE 12 548,468 538,758
Right-of-use assets BREEE 13(a) 2,081,520 2,478,736
Goodwill mE 14 1,636,683 1,652,960
Other intangible assets Hittmp s E 15 - 4,127
Investment in a joint venture REeEtENKLE 16 - 12,966
Investments in associates REFERNBNRE 17 51,715 43,183
Trade receivables FEW & 5 RIB 21 391,917 249,585
Time deposits T HRFE 24 27,202 25,102
Other assets HthEE 18 233,520 349,700
Deferred tax assets RIEFIEE = 19 263,494 278,670
8,041,711 8,539,727
CURRENT ASSETS MEMEE
Inventories 7B 20 421,717 500,802
Trade receivables P e=ZE S 21 289,215 221,074
Prepayments and other receivables TERIE R H A UL
FRIE 22 566,432 444,271
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss #ZAREETEHH
EEt AEmZ
ETHEE 23 57,540 108,315
Restricted cash ZIRHIIR & 24 100,191 =
Time deposits T HFER 24 16,563 9,477
Cash and bank balances B & K IR1T4E R 24 1,583,414 1,464,096
3,035,072 2,748,035
Assets classified as held for sale NEAFAEFTENEE 25 - 264,088
3,035,072 3,012,123
CURRENT LIABILITIES mEMAaE
Trade payables FE B 5 8 26 702,563 480,425
Other payables and accruals H AR TR IE K FE 5t
HH 27 677,887 767,469
Contract liabilities sHEaE 28 615,709 621,313
Interest-bearing bank loans stEIRITER 29 161,350 280,960
Lease liabilities HEAaR 13(b) 656,677 645,952
Tax payable FEMFRIE 27,619 19,999
2,841,805 2,816,118
Net current assets MBEERRE 193,267 196,005
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES WEERREEE 8,234,978 8,735,732
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)
mauEikRE (F)

As at 31 December 2023 R_ZE_=F+_A=+—H

2023 2022
—EZ= _ECF
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000
B 5 AR¥TT AREFIT
(restated)
(Ccs==e7l)
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERBEE
Interest-bearing bank loans stREIRITEM 29 2,330,564 2,248,972
Lease liabilities HEa’E 13(b) 2,360,886 2,853,702
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFRIBEE B 19 226,381 314,779
4,917,831 5,417,453
Net assets BEEFE 3,317,147 3,318,279
EQUITY =
Issued capital BEITRA 30 55,477 55,477
Reserves EXi] 31 3,189,465 3,193,907
3,244,942 3,249,384
Non-controlling interests JEHERG i 72,205 68,895
Total equity WEm 3,317,147 3,318,279
Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem Juliana Cheng San San
Director Director
HirBEER 5 Hi i
EE EE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FeEEEmR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE_Z-_=F+"A=+—HIFFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

PRC Asset Non-
Issued reserve Exchange revaluation Retained controlling Total
capital funds* reserve* reserve* earnings* Total interests equity
BERks TEAEE | ERGHE BEEREE  RERA &t EEkER el
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEBTRE ARETR ARBTR ARETR ARBTR ARETR ARBTR  ARETR
(note 30) (note 31(a)) (note 31(b))
(Wis0)  (Ha1() (HizE31(6))
At 1 January 2023 RZE-=§-B-H 55477 292,574 (507,746) 251,412 3,288,957 3,380,674 68,895 3,449,569
Adjustment from adoption of RRERE SR SR B
amendments to 1AS 12 [note 2.2) ZBE (i) - - - - (131,290) (131,290) - (131,290)
At 1 January 2023 (restated) RZEZ=%-F—H (&5 55477 292,574 (507,746) 251,412 3,157,667 3,049,384 68,895 3,318,279
Profit for the year EENE - - - - 66,413 66,413 4,089 70,502
Other comprehensive expense for the year: FEEMAERS
- Exchange differences related to foreign operations - BEEIERREE ZEREE - - (44,510) - - (44,510) - (44,510)
Total comprehensive (expense)income for the year FERE (%) /AT - - (44,510) - 66,413 21903 4,089 25,992
Deregistration of  subsidiary B -ENEAR - (10,902) - - 10,902 - - -
Transfer to the PRC reserve funds BEZOEAES - 1084 - - (1,084) - - -
Interim dividend distribution during the year ERTEREDK - - - - (26,345) (26,345) - (26,345)
Dividends paid to non-controlling shareholders BRIFERERRE - - - - - - (1719) (179)
At 31 December 2023 RZE-=£+ZA=1-H 55477 282,756 (552,256) BI42 3207553 324494 72005 3317147
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (CONTINUED)

SoEnEER (8

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -_=F+_"_A=+—HItFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

PRC Asset Non-
Issued reserve Exchange revaluation Retained controlling Total
capital funds* reserve* reserve* earnings* Total interests equity
BRfIkE  REARE ERGE HEEMRE RERA B FEREG il 4
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AB®TT  ARBTR ARETRT ARETz AREBTR ARETR ARETR ARETR
(note 30) (note 31(a)) (note 31(b))
(zk0)  (HfaEan(a) (HzE31(0)
At 1 January 2022 RZE-Z§-B-H 55477 29117 (317,725) 251,412 3,697,593 3,983,874 72,800 4,056,674
Adjustment from adoption of RRERE SR SRz B
amendments to 1AS 12 (note 2) ZBE (i) - - - - (160,870) (160,870) - (160870)
At 1 January 2022 (restated) RZEZZ5-F—H (BE5) 55477 297,117 (317,725) 251412 3,636,723 3,823,004 72,800 3,895,804
Loss for the year (restated) EEBE (7)) - - - - (383,599) (383,599) (1,824) (385,423)
Other comprehensive expense for the year: FEEMAERS
- Exchange differences related to foreign operations - BEEIERREE ZEREE - - (190,021) - - (190,021) - (190,021)
Total comprehensive expense for the year restated) FEREMTME @S5 - - (190,021) - (383,599) (673,620) (1.824) (575.444)
Transfer to the PR reserve funds BRETEANES - 4203 - - (4,203) - - -
Deregistration of a subsidiary HHEE-ENRAT - (8,746) - - 8,746 - - -
Dividends paid to non-controlling shareholders BRFERERRS - - - - - - (2081) (2.081)
At 31 December 2022 (restated) KZE_Z#+”A=+-H #&E5) 55477 292574 (507,746) 251,412 3,157,667 3,249,384 68,895 3318279
* As at 31 December 2023, these reserve accounts comprise the consolidated R ZE_=F+"HB=+—H ZEH#
reserves of RMB3,189,465,000 (2022 (restated): RMB3,193,907,000) in the BREARGEVERREANGS R

consolidated statement of financial position.

5 A\ R 183,189,465,0007T (Z B ZF (&
E%)) : AR #3,193,907,0007T) ©
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

SFalENRER

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE_Z-_=F+"A=+—HIFFE

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

HEEHNHERE

Notes

Py 5E

2023

—_<——

RMB'000

AR®TT

2022

=
—_—

RMB'000
ARET T
(restated)
(CE==l))

Profit/(Loss) before tax WaIR)E (B18) 86,647 (413,161)
Adjustments for: MU T ZIBEEHRE .
Share of (profits)/losses of a joint venture FE(h & s 1 2 R Bt
and associates, net YNNGV P ]
B (23.916) 3,258
Finance income =N (55.367) (60,099)
Finance costs =N 498,117 459,009
Depreciation and amortisation T EE R i 8 558,491 604,263
Losses on disposal of property, plant and HEY=E -HER®
equipment and investment properties, net BEREEMENE
18R %8 2,796 2,158
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—FERBATN
g 35 - (1,310)
Reversal of impairment of inventories, net FERER[E]FEE (148) (4,986)
Impairment of trade receivables FEUW B Z =R IE R 1B 20,279 7,014
Impairment of prepayments and other TET B R H AR
receivables I RE 1,289 1,928
Impairment of property, plant and equipment ME- -BERZE
A 5,308 15,078
Impairment of investment properties BWEYERE - 2,263
Impairment of right-of-use assets ERREEERE 23,957 38,414
Impairment of goodwill BERE 16,277 38,604
COVID-19-related rent concessions from lessors 2 B H 58 A BICOVID-19
HER SR % - (57,205)
Subleases gains recognised in other income REAU A R 8
e W= (18,274) (891)
Loss on subleases modification EHEEEER 4,799 2,382
Gains on lease modification and termination THESE MR IEWE (47,777) (23,449)
Foreign exchange gain b 2 Wi g 629 37,583
1,073,107 650,853
Decrease/(Increase) in other assets Hh&EER/L, (8 1,250 (6,179)
Decrease/(Increase) in inventories FEREL M) 79,233 (6,197)
Increase in trade receivables & W B 5 =R IE 12 0 (240,827) (90,902)
Increase in prepayments and other receivables SEENE YRRl e
T8I 10 (12,629) (15,231)
Increase/(Decrease) in trade payables FE B S hIEigm,~
CRi L) 222,138 (374,239)
(Decrease)/Increase in other payables and accruals E fth FE{F 3R I8 K fE 5118
B CRib) /1Em (19,513) 38,014
(Decrease)/Increase in contract liabilities BH8E Gl /1Em (5.604) 12,647
Cash generated from operations KEEHEENRE 1,097,155 208,766
Income tax paid [SENIFIRST (81,747) (72,656)
Net cash flows from operating activities KEEHEENRER
==p= L 1,015,408 136,110
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
malgnEs (8

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -_=F+_"_A=+—HItFE

Notes

Py 5E

2023

=

RMB'000
ARBTT

2022

=

—_—

RMB'000
ARET T
(restated)
(CE==l))

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES  REFHMNIRESRHE
Proceeds from disposal of investment properties  HE R E Y EMFRF
I8 - 6,071
Proceeds from disposal of assets classified as held HENIEAFEHEE
for sale ENSMIE 133,333 133,333
Proceeds from disposal of a subsidiary, net of cash H & —E i B A B FF1E
disposed of MIBNIRE R 58 35 - 127
Purchases of property, plant and equipment and ~ BE B ¥ B MR
investment properties R EYE (85,093) (158,156)
Prepaid for purchases of other intangible assets ~ FEE HtEF EENTE
(NE/SE] - (371)
Dividends received B E 28,350 6,361
Interest received BUF 2 24,658 36,321
Decrease/(Increase) in financial assets at fair value AN EE2 HEHE
through profit or loss BEtABmZEME
ERL, (En) 50,775 (17,671)
Decrease in investments in principal guaranteed — {RZASZAIR E R
deposits - 500
(Increase)/Decrease in time deposits with original #8 AR RA EIHFH
maturity of more than three months when B8 =@ 8 B EH
acquired FER g R (9,186) 701,054
Income tax paid on investing activities MEEEFENZ
FrigiR (2,288) (500)
Proceeds from subleases HRETEAIE 94,177 73,842
Net cash flows from investing activities KERHEELNIRE
TMEHEE 234,726 780,911
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES REEHELENIRS
RE
Proceeds from bank loans SRITERFTISRIE 69,728 2,252,223
Repayment of bank loans BEBITEM (135,762) (1,848,408)
Interest paid [SENEAURS (195,568) (134,433)
Payment of lease liabilities HEaGEIR (736,886) (639,140)
Dividend paid BENRKRE (26,345) -
Distribution to non-controlling shareholders DI FIEEERR IR B (779) (2,081)
Net cash flows used in financing activities MEEEPMANIRE
TERER (1,025,612) (371,839)

PARKSON RETAIL GROUP LIMITED BEBXEESBIRAHE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
SFEHERER (R

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE_Z-_=F+"A=+—HIFFE

2023 2022
Notes  RMB'O00  RMBOOO
F 5 ARETT ANEREEFIT
(restated)
(Cc==pl)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND HERREEEYIEM
CASH EQUIVALENTS JREE 224,522 545,182
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year ~EXNIBERIRELSH
(=L 1,464,096 925,162
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net bE RS » 5 E5 5 (5,013) (6,248)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FRNRERREE
END OF YEAR B 1,683,605 1,464,096
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND HERRNEEBMELR
CASH EQUIVALENTS baRii
Cash and bank balances B & K IR1T4E R 24 1,200,071 1,172,980
Non-pledged time deposits with original maturity B ARFERAZIHBHTE
of less than three months when acquired =8B WEIK IR EHA
P 24 383,343 291,116
Restricted cash ZPRHIIR & 24 100,191 =
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEEY 1,683,605 1,464,096
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -_=F+_"_A=+—HItFE

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

Parkson Retail Group Limited (the "Company”) is a limited liability
company incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 3 August 2005.
The Company has established a principal place of business in Hong
Kong in Room 1010, 10th floor, Harcourt House, 39 Gloucester
Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The principal
activities of the Company and its subsidiaries (the "Group") are the
operation and management of a network of department stores,
shopping malls, outlets and supermarkets mainly in the People's
Republic of China (the "PRC"), and the provision of credit services in
Malaysia.

In the opinion of the directors, the holding company and the
ultimate holding company of the Company is Parkson Holdings
Berhad ("PHB"), which is incorporated in Malaysia and listed on
Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad.

Information about principal subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries as at
31 December 2023 and 2022 are as follows:

Place of
incorporation/
registration
and business

Issued]registered
share capital/
paid-up capital

B&f7/
B2 AR,
B HRRE
Changzhou Lion Food and Beverage Co., Ltd. The PRC RMB25,000,000
(note v) HE AR #25,0000007T
EMNEEZRARAR (5
Guizhou Tongren Parkson Retail Co,, Ltd. The PRC RMB10,000,000
(note i) HE AE#10,000,0007T
BRI EEBERRAT (izH)
Jiangxi Parkson Shopping Centre Management The PRC RMB30,000,000
Co,, Ltd. (note ) I AR 30,000,000
IRBARENTFLEEERAR ()
Suzhou Parkson Changfa Commercial Management ~ The PRC RMB50,000,000
Co,, Ltd. (note iv) i R #50,000,0007T
FNERREHEEREERAR (i)
Wuzhou Fashion Parkson Business Management The PRC RMB30,000,000
Co, Ltd. (note iv) HE A B %30,000,0007

ENEEEEEEERARAR (W)

(2022: ] (2022: 100)
“HEI-)  (TBIIZE00)

(2022: —i (2022: 100)

(2022: —i (2022: 100)
“E-) (TEZZE 0

NEIREBEER
BEREmEEERRLE (A7)
R_EELENB=ZHEHEEE
AR ABRAR AT RSE
BNETEEEMIBATBEFS T
FT178395 E B K/E10121010=E ©

RRBBBREERRB - FRE R
HNB AR (AEE) NEEEF
RMEEZETEARAME (THE)
KEREEREE BYDO- By
RET R B H AL LU ERA R
RITEEERS-

BEERAB ARFNERAB MR
4RI RGN B ZParkson Holdings Berhad
(TPHBL) » — RN ER AT MR
UWNAB R ERAREFESFRS
FrEme

ERTEMBARNER
RIBE_=%FKR-_FE__F+°A8
=t+—H ARIDEEMBEREM
SHBWT

Percentage of equity
attributable to the Company

KAREERES AL

Direct Indirect Principal activities

Mk TEEE

100 Food and beverage
management services

BHNEERY

100 Operation of department

(2022: —j (2022: 100) stores
“HEI-) (TBZIZE100)

RERERE

100 Operation of shopping

malls and property
“FEi-) (ZBZTHE00) management
RaBMREERYE
BE

100 Operation of shopping malls

100 Operation of shopping malls

(2022: ] (2022:100) REBYESR
“HEI-) (ZBIIZE 00
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
S EMBRRME (R

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE_Z-_=F+"A=+—HIFFE

REREBEH (B
ERXEMBATNER (&)
RIB_=FK"_EB__F+_A8
=t+—H ARV EEMBRT
FHBEOT @

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued) 1.
Information about principal subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries as at
31 December 2023 and 2022 are as follows: (continued)

Place of
incorporation/
registration
and business

Percentage of equity
attributable to the Company
FAREERES DL

Direct

Issued/registered
share capital/
paid-up capital

Indirect Principal activities

120

BEf1/
kA,
ARkRE

SR ERIL
R AR ES

ik

TEEH

Jiaxing Lion Retail Management Co, Ltd. The PRC US$51,072,813 100 Provision of consultancy
(note iv) el 51,072,813 70 (2022: -) (2022: 100) and management
ERASHBEEEERAR (i) (CEZZE:-) (ZZZZE 00 services
R R ERRG
Shanghai Jingshi Retail Management Co,, Ltd. The PRC RMB10,000,000 100 Property management
(note iv) e AR 10,000,007 (2022:-) (2022:100)  YpEEE
TRENBEEEERAR () (CBZZH:-) (CEZZEI00)
Qingdao Parkson Retail Development Co,, Ltd. The PRC RMB20,000,000 100 Operation of department
(note iv) el A #20,000,0007 (2022: -) (2022: 100) stores
EEERBEARAR (fzHv) (CBZZH:-) (CZZZHFE00) LEEER
Shanghai Lion Food & Beverage Management Co.,  The PRC RMB4,000,000 NJA NJA - Food and beverage
Ltd. (notes iv, xv) i AR %4000,0007C (2022: -) (2022:91) management services
EBREREEERAR (fzhv xv) TEm TER  ENERRE
(CBZZ&:-) (ZBEZZF:9)
Shanghai Lion Parkson Management Consultant Co., The PRC RMB10,000,000 100 Provision of consultancy
Ltd. (note iv) el A #10,000,0007% (2022: -) (2022: 100) and management
LEREEREAERAR (i) (CEZZE:-) (ZZZZE 00 services
R R ERRG
Shanghai Shihong Supermarket Co., Ltd. (note iv) The PRC RMB10,000,000 100 Operation of gourmet
EEREERERAR (fizEv) I A #10,000,0007T (2022: -) (2022: 100) supermarkets
(CBZZ&:-) (CEZCZ#:100) KERBERD
Shanghai Delight Food €& Beverage Management Co., The PRC RMB1,000,000 100 Food and beverage
Ltd. (note iv) el AE#1,000,0007% (2022: -) (2022: 100) operation
HEBIREREEBRAR (HzHv) (CEZZE:-) (CBIZE00) REEHRE
Hunan Changsha Shishang Parkson Retail The PRC RMB10,000,000 100 Operation of department
Development Co,, Ltd. (note iv) i A #10,000,0007T (2022:-) (2022: 100) stores
HER)EHERBEERERAT (CBZZH:-) (CEZZHF00) LEEERE
(Bt Eiv)
Shanghai Delight Food Co,, Ltd. (notes iv, vi) The PRC RMB5,000,000 N/A N/A Food operation
LEBRERBRAT (v vi) HE AR 5,000,0007T (2022: N/A) (2022:NJA)  EEBSG
~ER ER
Cz_zf: (-
TER) TER)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#r o MBRRMEE (47)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE_T_=F+_H=+—HItEE

e CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued) le

Information about principal subsidiaries (continued)

/L-A\_.l&$.§*‘l' (/\\3)
ERAETEMBARNER (@)
RIE_=FR_FE-__F+_A1

Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries as at

31 December 2023 and 2022 are as follows: (continued) =t+—H KA ETERBELATB
HIBWTE ()

Place of
incorporation/
registration
and business

Issued/registered
share capital/
paid-up capital
B&17/
BV
BRRE

MR/
R E e,

Percentage of equity
attributable to the Company
FAREMERER S

Direct Indirect

ik

Principal activities

TEXEH

Shanghai Lion Cosmetics Co., Ltd. (notes i, xiv) The PRC RMB1,000,000 N/A N/A Wholesale and retail of
PEHBHABREELR (i)  FE AR #1,000,0007T (2022: -) (2022: 100) cosmetics and related
ER ER products
(CB-Z&:-) (CEZZHE:00) CREREEES
HERTE
Shanghai Parkson Food & Beverage Management  The PRC RMB1,000,000 - 100 Food and beverage
Co, Ltd. (note i) i AR #1,000,0007T (2022: -) (2022: 100) management services
HERRENEEBRAT (izH) CEZZE:-) (CZTZZE00)  BHEERRS
Kunming Hogan Food & Beverage Management Co.,  The PRC RMB1,000,000 N/A N/A Food and beverage
Ltd. (notes iv, xii HE AR 1,000,000 (2022: -) (2022: 100) operation
ERRESHERERRRAE (kv i) TER TER REEHE
(CBZZ&F:-) (CEZIZF:10)
Qingdao Parkson Beer City Property Management ~ The PRC RMB10,000,000 - 100 Property management
Co,, Ltd. (note iv) el AR #10,000,0007T (2022: -) (2022:100  MIEEE
EERERBENNFERERAR (M) (CBZZF:-) (CBZTHI00)
Llupanshu\ Parkson Retail Co., Ltd. (note iv) The PRC RMB 15,000,000 - 100 Operation of department
BMABKERBXERERAR (&y) HE A #15,0000007T (2022: -) (2022: 100) stores
(CBEZZF:-) (CEZZF:100) 2 KEESE
Jinan Lion Consultant Management Co., Ltd. The PRC US$5,000,000 - 100 Provision of consultancy
(note iv) R 5,000,000 75 (2022: -) (2022: 100) and management
EERERAEEERAR () (CEZZ&E:-) (ZBZIE:100) services
}E{#unﬁﬁ]& }EHE%
Tianjin Parkson Shopping Mall Co,, Ltd. (note iv) The PRC RMB500,000,000 - 100 Operation of department
XEERBEERBRAF (HzH) HE B #500,000,00070 (2022:-) (2022: 100) stores and property
(CBZZH:-) (CEIZF 00 management
REREERNEER
Shanxi Parkson Retail Development Co,, Ltd. (note i) The PRC RMB50,000,000 - 100 Operation of department
UAERBEERERAR () HE AR #50,000,0007T (2022: -) (2022: 100) stores and shopping
(CBZZF:-) (CZBZTHI00) malls
REBEERENES
Qingdao No.1 Parkson Co,, Ltd. (note iii) The PRC RMB233,340,000 - 95.91 Operation of department
EEE—BEBRAF (ki) e A #233,340,0007 (2022:-) (2022: 95.91) stores
(CZ-—F:-) (CE-_F:9p9) KEFEE
Shenyang Parkson Shopping Plaza Co,, Ltd. (note iv) ~ The PRC RMB40,000,000 - 100 Operation of department
BRERBENEAERAR (k) el AE#40,000,0007T (2022: -) (2022: 100) stores
(CBZZ&E:-) (CEZCZF:00) 2 SEEEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
S EMBRRME (R

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE_Z-_=F+"A=+—HIFFE

1.  CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued) 1. REIREEEN (@
Information about principal subsidiaries (continued) ERATEMBARNER (@)
Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries as at RBE_=FK_F__F+_1
31 December 2023 and 2022 are as follows: (continued) =t+—H KRB EERBELATB

FHBEOT @

Place of Percentage of equity
incorporation/ Issued/registered attributable to the Company
registration share capital/ FRAFEERED AT
and business paid-up capital Direct Indirect Principal activities
BR#f1/
MR/ AR,
R ARt R MR TELE
Dalian Parkson Retail Development Co,, Ltd. The PRC RMB40,000,000 N/A N/A Operation of department
(notes iv, vii HIE AE#40,000,0007T (2022: NJA) (2022: NJA) stores
AERHOERBEEEERAT (= vil) TER Bl KEBEE
(= (CB-CZ#:
TEH) REH)
Panzhihua Parkson Retail Development Co, Ltd. The PRC RMB20,000,000 - 100 Operation of department
(note v) el AE#20,000,0007T (2022: -) (2022: 100) stores
ZRICERBEBRAT () (CBZZH:-) (CZZZFE00) 2 LEEER
Qingdao Lion Plaza Retail Management Co,, Ltd. The PRC RMB500,000,000 - 100 Property management
(note iv) I B #500,000,00070 (2022: -) (2022:100) MEER
EEHERBEERERAR () (CBZZH:-) (CEIZF 00
Qingdao Parkson Shopping Plaza Co, Ltd. (note iv)  The PRC RMB30,000,000 - 100 Operation of department
EERRENESERAR () FE AR 30,000,000 (2022: -) (2022: 100) stores and shopping
(CBZZF:-) (ZEZIZHF:100) malls
RECEENENES
Shanghai Shijie Fashions Co,, Ltd. (note iv) The PRC RMB 10,000,000 - 100 Sale of apparel
LERGERERRAR (M) I A #10,000,00070 (2022: -) (2022:100)  SHEFREE
(CBZZF:-) (CEZZE:10)
Nanning Brilliant Parkson Commercial Co., Ltd. The PRC RMB28,000,000 - 100 Operation of department
(note i) R R #28,000,0007T (2022: ) (2022: 100) stores and shopping
EERHERBERRAR (&) (CBZZF:-) (CTBZIZH00) malls
RECEENENES
Shaoxing Shishang Parkson Retail Development Co.,  The PRC RMB20,000,000 - 100 Operation of department
Ltd. (note iv) I AR 820,000,000 (2022: -) (2022: 100) stores
BENHEEBEERERAR () (CBZZH:-) (CEZZHF00) LEEEE
Shantou Parkson Commercial Co,, Ltd. (note i) The PRC RMBS8,000,000 - 100 Operation of department
WETEEEERRAR (M) e A 8,000,0007T (2022:-) (2022: 100) stores
(CZ-—F:-) (CE--F:00) KEFEE
Zigong Parkson Retail Co,, Ltd. (note iv) The PRC RMB10,000,000 - 100 Operation of department
BEEREERRAR (HFv) el AR #10,000,0007T (2022: -) (2022: 100) stores
(CBZZ&E:-) (CEZCZE:00) 2 SEEEE
Changzhou Shifeng Retail Development Co,, Ltd. The PRC RMB25,000,000 N/A N/A Sale of apparel
(notes iv, xvii e AR #25,0000007C (2022: -) (2022:100)  SHEFRE
ENPSEmEERERAR (v i) TER Tam

(CBZZF:-) (ZBZZE:100)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#r o MBRRMEE (47)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -_=F+_"_A=+—HItFE

REIREEEH (8
EREIEMBARNER (&)
R_E_=Z&R-_T-__#+_"H
=t+—B EARAETEMELREH

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued) 1.
Information about principal subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries as at
31 December 2023 and 2022 are as follows: (continued)

Place of
incorporation/
registration
and business

Issued/registered
share capital/
paid-up capital
B&17/
BV
BRRE

MR/
R E e,

HBEOT @

Percentage of equity
attributable to the Company
FAREMERER S

Direct Indirect

ik

Principal activities

TEXEH

Changshu Parkson Retail Development Co,, Ltd. The PRC RMB 15,000,000 - 100 Operation of department
(note v) el AE#15000,0007T (2022: -) (2022: 100) stores
RARRBEZEEARAT (W) (CBZZF:-) (CZZZHF00) 2 LEEER
Guizhou Zunyi Parkson Retail Development Co., Ltd.  The PRC RMB 12,500,000 - 100 Operation of department
(note iv) HE A #12,500,0007% (2022: ) (2022: 100) stores
BNBREEBEERERAR () (CBZZH:-) (CEZZHF00) LEEEE
Lanzhou Parkson Retail Co,, Ltd. (note i) The PRC RMB20,000,000 - 100 Operation of department
BMEEEREERRAR () e AR #20,0000007T (2022:-) (2022: 100) stores
(CZ-—F:-) (CE--F:00) KEFREE
Anshan Parkson Retail Development Co,, Ltd. (note i) The PRC RMB10,000,000 - 100 Operation of department
BUEREEEREERAR () HE AR #10,000,0007T (2022: -) (2022: 100) stores
(CBZZ&E:-) (CEZCZF:00) 2 SEEEE
Zhangjiakou Parkson Shopping Mall Co,, Ltd. The PRC RMB30,000,000 - 100 Operation of department
(note iv) HE 30,000,000 (2022: ) (2022: 100) stores
RxOBRENESFERAR (fzh) (CBZZH:-) (CEZZHF00) KLEEEE
Sichuan Shishang Parkson Retail Development Co,,  The PRC RMB30,000,000 - 100 Operation of department
Ltd. (note i) e AR #30,000,0007T (2022: ) (2022: 100) stores and outlets
m) | EREEEEERAT () (CBZZF:-) (CEZZF:100) KEESEREESRE
Hefei Parkson Xiaoyao Plaza Co,, Ltd. (note i) The PRC RMBB8,000,000 - 100 Operation of department
aIREREEERERAR () HE AR #38000,0007T (2022: -) (2022: 100) stores
(CBZZ&E:-) (CEZCZF:00) 2 SEEEE
Anshan Tianxing Parkson Shopping Centre Co., Ltd. ~ The PRC RMB10,000,000 - 100 Operation of department
(note i) HE A #10,000,0007T (2022: ) (2022: 100) stores
BURBEEREYROERAT (i) (CBE--F:-) (CE--E:i00) KEFEE
Guizhou Shengi Parkson Retail Development Co,, Ltd. The PRC RMB17,000,000 - 60 Operation of department
(note iii e AR #17,0000007T (2022:-) (2022: 60) stores
ENBSERBEZERRAR (i) (CBZZF:-) (CB--F:e0) KE[EE
Parkson Investment Holdings Co., Ltd. (note i) The PRC US$30,000,000 - 100 Investment holding
SHERLERRAR (M) HE 30,000,005 7% (2022: -) (2022:100) REER
(CBZZF:-) (CZBZTHI00)
Parkson Retail Development Co,, Ltd. (‘Beijing The PRC 1US$16,680,000 - 100 Operation of department
Parkson’] (note i) HE 16,680,000%& 7T (2022: ) (2022: 100) stores
BRBXEEERAD (DiRE&) () (CBZZH:-) (CEZZHF00) LEEEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
S EMBRRME (R

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE_Z-_=F+"A=+—HIFFE

1.  CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued) 1. REIREEER (@
Information about principal subsidiaries (continued) ERATEMBARNER (@)
Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries as at RIBE_=FK_F__F+_1
31 December 2023 and 2022 are as follows: (continued) =t+—H ' KA ETERBELATB

HBEOT @

Place of Percentage of equity
incorporation/ Issued/registered attributable to the Company
registration share capital/ FRAFEERED AT
and business paid-up capital Direct Indirect Principal activities
BR#f1/
MR/ AR,
R ARt R MR Mg IEEH
Kunming Yun Shun He Retail Development Co., Ltd.  The PRC RMB30,000,000 - 100 Operation of department
(note i) el AE#30,000,0007T (2022: -) (2022: 100) stores
ERZIENEmEZRERA (M) (CBZZH:-) (CZZZHF00) 2 LEEER
Jiangxi Parkson Retail Co., Ltd. (note i) The PRC RMB8,500,000 - 100 Operation of department
IRBEEPLHEEERAR () e B 18,500,0007 (2022: -) (2022: 100) stores
(CBZ-F:-) (CE--E:i00) KEFEE
Anshan Lung Shing Property Services Co,, Ltd. The PRC US$1,050,000 - 100 Property management
(note i) HE 1,050,000 7 (2022:-) (2022:100)  YJEEE
BLREMERBERAR () (C2-ZF:-) (CBZZ&£100)
Xi'an Chang'an Parkson Store Co,, Ltd. (notes iv, vi) ~ The PRC RMB10,000,000 N/A N/A Operation of department
BAZERZEREEERAR (v vi) HIE AR #10,000,0007T (2022: NJA) (2022: NJA) stores
ER Bl KEBEE
(= CE-—%:
TEH) REH)
Xi'an Shidai Parkson Store Co., Ltd. (notes iv, xvi) The PRC RMB 15,000,000 N/A N/A Operation of department
AREREREEERAR (kv xvi) el AE#15000,0007T (2022: -) (2022: 100) stores
ER rEfR KEBEE
(CEZ-F:-) (TBEZZEF 100
Shanghai Xinzhuang Parkson Retail Development  The PRC RMB20,000,000 - 100 Operation of department
Co,, Ltd. (note ) HE AR #20,0000007T (2022:-) (2022: 100) stores
TEETEREEERERAR (iEH) (CBIZH-) (CZIZE00) LEEER
Shanghai Lion Parkson Investment Consultant Co,,  The PRC US$500,000 - 100 Provision of consultancy
Ltd. (note i) el 500,000% 7T (2022: -) (2022: 100) and management
LERMEREHAERAR (fizH) (CBZZF:-) ZEZZFE00) services
RUETARERRE
Shanghai Nine Sea Parkson Plaza Co,, Ltd. (note i)~ The PRC 1US$12,000,000 - 100 Operation of department
LENBERERERAR (i) e 12,000,000% 7T (2022:-) (2022: 100) stores
(CB-ZF:-) (CE-ZE00) 2 KERERE
Shanghai Honggiao Parkson Development Co., Ltd. ~ The PRC RMB16,800,000 - 100 Operation of department
(note i) el AE#16,800,0007T (2022: -) (2022: 100) stores
HRIREEEERRAT (izH) (CBZZH:-) (CZZZHF00) 2 LEEER
Wuxi Sanyang Parkson Plaza Co,, Ltd. (note iii) The PRC RMB80,000,000 - 60 Operation of department
BH=BORERBRAR (ki) I B #80,000,0007T (2022: -) (2022: 60) stores

(CBZZE:-) (CBZCZE:e0) KEREE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#r o MBRRMEE (47)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -_=F+_"_A=+—HItFE

e CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued) s

Information about principal subsidiaries (continued)

REIREEER (@)
ERAETEMBARNER (@)
RIE_=FR_FE-__F+_A1
=t+—H XRABETEMRBREN

Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries as at
31 December 2023 and 2022 are as follows: (continued)

Place of
incorporation/
registration
and business

Issued/registered
share capital/
paid-up capital
B#T/
B Y
MR

ML
R AR ES

HBEOT @

Percentage of equity
attributable to the Company
TATEIERET AL

Direct Indirect

ik

Principal activities

TEEH

Xi'an Lucky King Parkson Plaza Co,, Ltd. (note i) The PRC RMB32,500,000 100 Operation of department
AR USERERERAR (k) e B #32,500,0007T (2022:-) (2022: 100) stores
(CB--F:-) (CE--#F:00) KEEEE
Chongging Wanyou Parkson Plaza Co, Ltd. (note i)~ The PRC RMB35,000,000 100 Operation of department
EBRERERERERAR () HE AR #35,0000007T (2022: -) (2022: 100) stores
CE--F:-) (CET--Ei00) KEFEE
Mianyang Fulin Parkson Plaza Co,, Ltd. (note i) The PRC RMB30,000,000 100 Operation of department
RREREREAERAR (ki) HE AR #30,000,0007 (2022: -) (2022: 100) stores
(CBZZ&F:-) (ZE-ZE:00) 2 KEREE
Yichun Parkson Shopping Centre Co, Ltd. The PRC RMB20,000,000 100 Operation of shopping
(notes iv, v) el A 20,000,000 (2022: ) (2022: 100) malls
BEGRENTOBRAT (fzkvv) (CBZZ&E:-) (CEZZE:00) SEBYES
Qingdao Parkson Lion Commercial Management Co.,  The PRC US$3,000,000 - 100 Property management
Ltd. notes v, ix) HE 3,000,000 7T (2022: NJA) (2022: N/A) MEEE
EERRNEHXERERAT (kv ix) Cz_zF: (CBIZHF:
TER) TEH)
Nanchang Parkson Shopping Centre Co,, Ltd. The PRC RMB20,000,000 - 100 Operation of shopping malls
(notes iv, ) I A #20,0000007T (2022: NJA) (2022:N[A)  EEBMES
AEERBNFOERAR (Hiztvx) C2_ZF: C2-zF:
TEmR) REmH)
Wenzhou Parkson Retail Development Co., Ltd. The PRC RMB 10,000,000 - 100 Operation of department
(notes iv, xi HIE AE#10000,00070 (2022: NJA) (2022: NJA) stores
RNEEEEERERAR (- x) (CE-—&: (CE-—&: KEREE
FER) FER)
Hanmen Holdings Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100 Investment holding
HEEBERAT &% 187 (2022: -) (2022:100)  BEZR
(CEZZF:-) (TBZZE 100
Victory Hope Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100 Investment holding
#HERAR B 17T (2022: -) (2022:100) REER
(CB-ZF:-) (CEZZF:100)
Great Dignity Development Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 Investment holding
ABERERAA &% BT (2022: -) (2022:100)  HEER
(CBZZF:-) (CZBZZHI00)

PARKSON RETAIL GROUP LIMITED BEBXEESBIRAHE

125



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
S EMBRRME (R

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE_Z-_=F+"A=+—HIFFE

1.  CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued) 1. RARKREEREFR (&
Information about principal subsidiaries (continued) ERATEMBARNER (@)
Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries as at RBE_=FK_F__F+_1
31 December 2023 and 2022 are as follows: (continued) =t+—H KRB EERBELATB

FHBEOT @

Place of Percentage of equity
incorporation/ Issued/registered attributable to the Company
registration share capital/ TAFAEERET AL
and business paid-up capital Direct Indirect Principal activities
: BEfT/
sEM AR,/ B Ve
E R AR St HEkF Rz TEEH
Sea Coral Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Investment holding
ERERAR &8 187 (2022: ) (2022:100) BREER
(CBZZ&:-) (CEBZZ&£00)
Wide Field International Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Investment holding
BEERERAT &5 AT (2022:-) (2022:100) BEER
(ZBZZE:-) (ZEZZHE:100)
Parkson Food & Beverage Ventures Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 91 Investment holding
&4 1A (2022: ) (2022:91)  REER
(CB-ZF:-) (CBZZfF:9)
Exonbury Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Investment holding
nRENERAT &8 WA (2022: ) (2022:100) BREER
(CBZZ&:-) (CEBZZ&£00)
Step Summit Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Investment holding
EHBRAE &5 1587 (2022:-) (2022:100) BEER
(ZBZZE:-) (ZEZZHE:100)
Hong Kong Fen Chai Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Provision of consultancy
ERERRBEEBRAH &4 AT (2022: -) (2022: 100) services
(CBZZF:-) (CEZZFE:00) REEFARS
Shunhe International Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100 Provision of consultancy
JERBER R EBRAE &8 10,000787T (2022: ) (2022: 100) services
(CE-ZfF:-) (CBZZFED00) RERHRS
Creation (Hong Kong) Investment & Development  Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100 Provision of consultancy
Limited &5 10,000787T (2022:-) (2022: 100) services
8z BR) RELRBRAT (CE--fF:-) (CBZZFED00) REKHRE
Capital Park (HK) Investment & Development Limited  Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Investment holding
7 (ER) RELRBRAT &4 1A (2022: ) (2022:100) BEER
(CBZZF:-) (CEZZF:100)
Malverest (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Investment holding
%l& (B8 BRAR 55 17T (2022: -) (2022:100)  BERR
(CBZZ&:-) (CEBZZ&E00)
Oroleon (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Investment holding
&5 187 (2022:-) (2022:100)  BEER

(ZBZZE:-) (ZBZIZHE:100)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#r o MBRRMEE (47)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -_=F+_"_A=+—HItFE

REIREEEY (&
EREIEMBARNER (&)
BB ZGR_B._F+_F
=t+—B EARAETEMELRTH

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued) 1.
Information about principal subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries as at
31 December 2023 and 2022 are as follows: (continued)

Place of
incorporation/
registration
and business

Issued/registered
share capital/
paid-up capital
B&17/
BV
BRRE

MR/
R E e,

HBEOT @

Percentage of equity
attributable to the Company
FAREMERER S

Direct Indirect

ik

Principal activities

TEXEH

Releomont (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100 Investment holding
FIRE (&%) BRAR 55 187 (2022: -) (2022:100) REER
(CBZZF:-) (CBZTHI00)
Leonemas (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100 Investment holding
fwi (&%) BRAR &5 187 (2022: -) (2022:100) REER
(CBZZE:-) (ZBZIZE:100)
Huge Return Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100 Investment holding
RRSREBRAF B 1B (2022: -) (2022:100)  HEER
(CBZZ&F:-) (CEZIZF:10)
Parkson Lao Sole Co., Ltd. Laos [ AK20,000,000,000 100 Wholesale and retail trade
ZRARBEERAR £ ££20,000,000,0007T (2022: -) (2022:100)  HEHTE
(CBZZF:-) (CBZTHI00)
Parkson Business Commerce Sole Co., Ltd. Laos [ AK20,000,000,000 100 Operation of department
BRBEBEERRAT £l £20,000,000,0007T (2022: -) (2022: 100) stores
(CBEZZF:-) (CEZZF:100) SEESE
Parkson Credit Sdn. Bhd. (“Parkson Credit") Malaysia RM37,000,000 100 Provision of money lending
ERAR & 4537,000,0007T (2022: -) (2022: 100) and credit services
(CEZZF:-) (CBZZE00) REKEREERD
Yeehaw Best Practices Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia RM100 100 Dormant
BERAED ME R 1007T (2022: -) (2022:100) EEEE
(C2ZZF:-) (CBZZHI00)
Parkson Retail Laos Holdings Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia RM1 100 Investment holding
BRAED MEFITT (2022: -) (2022:100) RELER
(CBZZF:-) (ZEZZF:100)
Parkson Investment Pte Ltd. Singapore $$10,000,000 100 Investment holding
R 10,000,000% M3 7T (2022: -) (2022:100)  HEER
(CBZZ&F:-) (CEZIZF:10)
Rosenblum Investments Pte Ltd. Singapore S$2 100 Investment holding
R B NETT (2022: -) (2022:100)  BREEZR
(CBZZF:-) (CZBZZHI00)
Parkson Supplies Pte Ltd. Singapore S$100 100 Investment holding
R 10087 M3 7T (2022: -) (2022:100) RELER

(ZBZZE:-) (ZBZIZHE:100)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
S EMBRRME (R

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE_Z-_=F+"A=+—HIFFE

e CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued) s

Information about principal subsidiaries (continued)

REREBEH (B
ERXEMBATNER (&)
RIB_=FK"EB__F+_°A8
=t+—H ARIEEMBRFH
HBEOT @

Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries as at
31 December 2023 and 2022 are as follows: (continued)

Place of Percentage of equity

Parkson Venture Pte Ltd. Singapore $$14,800,000 100 Investment holding
R 14,800,003 M%7 (2022: -) (2022:100)  BREEZR
(CBZZF:-) (CEZZE:00)
Leonemas International Limited British Virgin Islands US$2 100 Investment holding
HEBRUEHE 2ETT (2022: -) (2022:100) REER
(CEZ-F:-) (TBEZZEF 100
Bond Glory Limited (note xii) British Virgin Islands US$1 NJA NJA Dormant
HKHBRAR (i) HRRUHE E (2022: -) (2022:100) EBEEE
~ER ~ER
(CBZZF:-) (CEZZE:00)
Wide Crest Limited (note xii) British Virgin Islands US$1 N/A N/A Dormant
BEARAR (i) RRRUHE ES7 (2022: ) (022:100 BEEZE
~ER TER
(CBZZ&F:-) (CEZZF:0)
Victor Crest Limited (note xii) British Virgin Islands US$1 N/A N/A Dormant
RIEBRAR (i) HBRUHE E (2022:-) (2022:100) EEEE
~ER NER
(CBZZF:-) (CEZZE:10)
Lion Food & Beverage Ventures Limited British Virgin Islands RMB4,000,000 91 Investment holding
HRRUHE A #4,000,00070 (2022: -) (2022:91) REER
(CBZZ&:-) (ZBEZZF:9)
Grand Parkson Retail Group Limited British Virgin Islands HK$0.5 100 Investment holding
BREEERAT HBRUHE 0587 (2022: 100) (2002:)  BREER
(ZZEZZE D 100) (CEZZF:-)
Global Heights Investment Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 - 100 Investment holding
FREERRAT HBRUHE 137 (2022: -) (2022:100) REELER
(CBZZF:-) (CEZZE:10)
Asia Advancement International Limited British Virgin Islands US$50,000 100 Domestic and cross-border
BEERERAR EBRUHEE 50,0005 7T (2022: -) (2022: 100) trading
(CBEZZ&:-) (CBEZZED00) AIREBRE
Creation International Investment & Development — British Virgin Islands US$50,000 100 Investment holding
Limited HBRUHE ES (2022: -) (2022:100) REER
BB EERERAR (CBZZF:-) (CBZTHI00)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

oM ImRMEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -_=F+_"_A=+—HItFE

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued)
Information about principal subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries as at
31 December 2023 and 2022 are as follows: (continued)

AR REBEY (&8
ERTENBARNER (@)
RIB_=FK"_EB__F+_A8
=+—H ARIVEEMBRTH
HBEOT @

Place of
incorporation/
registration
and business

Issued/registered

share capital/

paid-up capitaly

BT/

AR/ AR,/

RS2 BRR

Golden Village Group Limited British Virgin Islands 1US$50,000

EHERABRAT HKERTEHE ES

Lung Shing International Investments & British Virgin Islands US$50,000

Development Limited BBELHE 50,0003 7T
EREREELRERAR

Capital Park Development Limited British Virgin Islands Us$2

HERTES ET

Malverest Trading International Limited British Virgin Islands Us$2

HERTEHS BETT

Oroleon International Limited British Virgin Islands US$2

HERTEHS VES

Duo Success Investments Limited British Virgin Islands US$1

HERTES 1%

Percentage of equity

attributable to the Company

FAFEERERDL

Direct

i

Indirect

itk

Principal activities

TEEH

= 100 Investment holding
(2022: ) (2022:100) REER
(CZEZZ&F:-) (ZEZZE:100)
100 Investment holding
(2022: ) (2022:100) REER
(ZBZZE:-) (ZBZITHE:100)
100 Investment holding
(2022: ) (2022:100)  REER
(CEZZF:-) (ZBZIZFE 100
= 100 Investment holding
(2022: ) (2022:100) REER
(CZEZZ&F:-) (ZEZZE:100)
100 Investment holding
(2022: ) (2022:100) REER
(ZBZZE:-) (ZBZITHE:100)
100 Investment holding
(2022: ) (2022:100)  REER
(CEZZF:-) (ZBZIZFE 100

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in
the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the
year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group.
To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the
directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

RV EEBAHEAFERELS
RNEBFENABREEREEFE
EHONEATNBRAT -EF
oAy R EHMMNERBFER
EERNENBERTR.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
S MBRRMEE (6F)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 & ZE —

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued)
Information about principal subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries as at
31 December 2023 and 2022 are as follows: (continued)

Notes:

(if)

(iif)

(vi)
(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(xi)

(xii)
(xiii)
(xiv)
(xv)
(xvi)

(xvii)

registered as a wholly-foreign-owned enterprise under PRC law

registered as a Sino-foreign cooperative joint venture enterprise

under PRC law

registered as a Sino-foreign equity joint venture enterprise under

PRC law

registered as a limited liability company under PRC law

incorporated on 20 January 2022

disposed on 28 March 2022
deregistered on 2 September 2022

deregistered on 26 December 2022

incorporated on 13 January 2023

incorporated on 4 May 2023
incorporated on 8 June 2023
deregistered on 10 January 2023
deregistered on 16 February 2023
deregistered on 9 June 2023
deregistered on 15 June 2023
deregistered on 9 August 2023

deregistered on 20 November 2023
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#r o MBRRMEE (47)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -_=F+_"A=+—HItFE

2.1

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These annual consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
("IFRSs") issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
(the "IASB") and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and the applicable disclosure requirements of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the "Listing Rules").

The material accounting policies that have been used in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements are
summarised below. These policies have been consistently applied
to all the years presented unless otherwise stated. The adoption of
new or amended IFRSs and the impacts on the Group's consolidated
financial statements, if any, are disclosed in note 2.2.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for financial instruments which are
stated at fair value. Non-current assets and assets of a disposal
group classified as held for sale are stated the lower of carrying
amount and fair value less costs to sell. The measurement bases are
fully described in the accounting policies below.

It should be noted that accounting estimates and assumptions
are used in preparation of the consolidated financial statements.
Although these estimates are based on management's best
knowledge and judgement of current events and actions,
actual results may ultimately differ from those estimates. The
areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in note 3.

2.1

S B A
ZEFEREGMBRRDRERERKR
SEIEREEE ((BERE52EHE

Q) PRI 2 BIBR R 5 R & % A
(TR BHREER)) REBAF
BRI ZRBREUAREBH RS
PRERABES EHARR (TEMmAR
A1) MBI ERTEMARS

MUEREEGMBREMBZEE
GEHRBEHN TX - BFRAER
BN ZEBERRFAAEEREEE
B A - B RS E] LA E ST
REYBREENRENAERGS
BHBBRERZEE (WA) R sE2.2H

o

e T ADERABEIRS
REMBREREREELNTER
R FRBEERDEAFTERFE
HEMRNTHNEERREERAR
BERBEERENBEETR -5t
EBEERTXZ G5 BRAFT -

BRIE MUK HTRRER
ERgSASRBR-BELSME
SABUEEEMRTEARITEZ
RERB KA EDEE EBERG
RERAGHRZFEFAAB IR
BPRAERERBR  HERK

Gt HEREMBRRMEBEKRZ
LE > R EEIREE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
S MBRRMEE (6F)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE_Z-_=F+"A=+—HIFFE

2.1

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to 31
December each year.

A subsidiary is an entity, directly or indirectly, controlled by the
Company. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee
and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over
the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group the current
ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the
same reporting year as the Company, using consistent accounting
policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the
date on which the Group obtains control, and continue to be
consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity on a subsidiary not
attributable directly or indirectly to the Company, and in respect
of which the Group has not agreed any additional terms with the
holders of those interests which would result in the Group as a
whole having a contractual obligation in respect of those interests
that meets the definition of a financial liability. For each business
combination, the Group can elect to measure any non-controlling
interests either at fair value or at their proportionate share of the
subsidiary's net identifiable assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
o MBHRRMEE (4R)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE_ET_=F+_FA=+—HItEFE

2.1

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately from the
equity attributable to the owners of the Company. Non-controlling
interests in the results of the Group are presented on the face of
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income as an allocation of the total
profit or loss and total comprehensive income for the year between
non-controlling interests and the owners of the Company.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or
more of the three elements of control described above. A change
in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control,
is accounted for as an equity transaction. If the Group loses
control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) the assets (including
goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (i) the carrying amount
of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative translation
differences recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair value of
the consideration received, (ii) the fair value of any investment
retained and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss.
The Group's share of components previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained
earnings, as appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if
the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

In the Company's statement of financial position, subsidiaries are
carried at cost less any impairment loss. Cost also includes direct
attributable costs of investment.

2.1

A B B2 (1)
IITDEE (nﬁ)

FEREDEZINN GRS BRI E
@R BARTME ARG
EEDHE2 REBRXBERZIF
EREDD 2NN GEEEERUK
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
S MBRRMEE (6F)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE_Z-_=F+"A=+—HIFFE

2.2

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first time the
following new and amended IFRSs issued by the IASB, which are
relevant to the Group's operations and effective for the Group's
consolidated financial statements for the annual period beginning
on 1 January 2023:

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts with related
amendments

Amendments to IAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies
and IFRS Practice
Statement 2

Amendments to IAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates

Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction

International Tax Reform - Pillar Two
Model Rules

Amendments to IAS 12

Amendments to IAS 12

Except for the impact mentioned below, the adoption of the
new and amended IFRSs had no material impact on the Group's
performance and financial positions for the current and prior
periods have been prepared and presented.

Amendments to IAS 12 “Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction”

The amendments clarify that the initial recognition exemption
of deferred tax in IAS 12 "Income Taxes" does not apply to
transactions that give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences, such as lease contracts that give rise to
the recognition of a lease liability and the corresponding right-
of-use assets and contracts that give rise to the recognition
of decommissioning obligations and corresponding amounts
recognised as assets. Instead, entities are required to recognise
the related deferred tax asset and liability on initial recognition,
with the recognition of any deferred tax asset being subject to the
recoverability criteria in IAS 12 "Income Taxes"
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#r o MBRRMEE (47)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -_=F+_"_A=+—HItFE

2.2

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES
(continued)

Amendments to IAS 12 "Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction” (continued)

The Group adopted the amendments from 1 January 2023 and
are required to recognise the associated deferred tax assets and
liabilities from leases that occurred on or after 1 January 2022
from the beginning of the earliest comparative period presented,
with any cumulative effect recognised as an adjustment to retained
earnings at that date.

Prior to the application of the amendments, the Group had
recognised the deferred tax assets and liabilities arising from leases
on a net basis. Following the requirements of the amendments,
the Group has recognised a deferred tax liability in relation to its
right-of-use assets as at 1 January 2022 and has only recognised
deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
difference can be utilised. The impact of the retrospective
adjustments of the changes in accounting policies on the items
and amounts in the consolidated financial statements for the
comparative period, which were prepared by the Company in
accordance with IFRSs, is as follows:

Consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2021/1 January 2022

Deferred tax assets RILFRIEE B
Deferred tax liabilities EIERIESE
Total equity Y g

2.2

BHERZRE @)

ERE st EB129 BT TEE
BE—-XZNEERERERNE
IETRIAEL ()
rEER_E_=F—F—Hi&K
MzZEET  LARABMEIRFHT
RAERRRER _S__F—8
—HEzBEHEEEZHERBIELE
MEBEEERER EURBEXER
BAHZARBEFAFEE-

RERZEBITZ ZEBER
FHREERIELEHEEZRIER
BEEKREBE -BREZZEBIZR
T R BE__F#—HF—H &&EH
EMEFERAEEERIELERES
EWIEERE R ERERFIE
AEBERIDTIIRE R ERENES
BEANMERIEERIBEEE - g5 %
SE S| A H LB B 4R & B 75 3R
= (HARDIREEERT RS ZER
B hRIEE R ENE AR
Z200F

R_E-_—fF—H=+—H "=
- T F—H—HZESHELT
3

Restated

Carrying carrying
amounts amounts

as at as at

31 December 1 January
2021 Impact of 2022
(SRS amendments (after the
amendments) to IAS 12 amendments)
RZEZ—f RZEZZHF
+ZA=+—H EEgstEL —HB—H#
WEREE  H125h2&] RKREJIREE
(CHED 28 (CHED
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBFT ARBTT
290,958 (45,179) 245,779
245,510 115,691 361,201
4,056,674 (160,870) 3,895,804
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

MBI RMEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE_Z-_=F+"A=+—HIFFE

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES
(continued)

Amendments to IAS 12 "Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction” (continued)

2.2

22 EEBERZEE (@)

ERE st EB129 BT TEE
BE—-XZNEERERERNE
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Consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December S CETTFEFZ/A=F—H7 —_
2022/1 January 2023 FFE-HA—HZHEEHBEAR
x
Restated
Carrying carrying
amounts amounts
as at as at
31 December 1 January
2022 Impact of 2023
(before the amendments (after the
amendments) to IAS 12 amendments)
R-ZE-_F A ZEZ=
+=A=+—H EEgHEN  —F—AK
RAREfE  H123zEs] KEIIREE
(CHED 2R B (CHED
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET ARETT ARETT
Deferred tax assets BERIEE E 331,261 (52,591) 278,670
Deferred tax liabilities RERIEEE 236,080 78,699 314,779
Total equity s 3,449,569 (131,290) 3,318,279
Consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year ended 37 HE_F__F+/A=1—HIF
December 2022 FEZHGRm
For the For the
year ended year ended
31 December 31 December
2022 Impact of 2022
(before the amendments (after the
amendments) to IAS 12 amendments)
BEZZ-Z HE—ZT-
+ZB=+—H HERgsEN +°-A=+—H
ILEE B2k ZEE] ILEE
(CHED 28 (CHED
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETT AR®TR
Income tax expenses(credit) FRiSMEsL/ (%) 1,842 (29,580) (27,738)
Loss for the year FEEBRE 415,003 (29,580) 385,423
Loss per share attributable to ordinary ANAB]EERERIFTE A
equity holders of EEEKEE
the Company RMB0.157 (RMB0.011) RMBO.146
Basic and diluted HEARKRiEE AR®o157t  (AR¥oomm) AR01467T
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2.3

oM ImRMEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -_=F+_"A=+—HItFE

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE IFRSs

At the date of authorisation of these consolidated financial
statements, certain amended IFRSs have been published but are not
yet effective, and have not been adopted early by the Group.

Amendments to IFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between
and IAS 28 an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture®
Amendments to IFRS 16  Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback’
Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current’
Non-current Liabilities with Covenants’

Amendments to IAS 1
Amendments to IAS 1

Amendments to IAS 7 and Supplier Finance Arrangements’
IFRS 7

Amendments to IAS 21 Lack of exchangeability?

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025

S Effective date not yet determined

The directors anticipate that all of the pronouncements will be
adopted in the Group's accounting policy for the first period
beginning on or after the effective date of the pronouncement.
Information on amended IFRSs that are expected to have impact on
the Group's accounting policies is provided below. Other amended
IFRSs are not expected to have a material impact on the Group's
consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SeMBERERMEE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE_ZT_=F+_BA=+—HI-FE

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE IFRSs (continued)

Amendments to IAS 1 “Classification of Liabilities as Current
or Non-current” (“2020 Amendments”) and Amendments

to IAS 1 "Non-current Liabilities with Covenants” (“2022
Amendments")

The amendments provide further guidance to clarify how to classify
debt and other liabilities as current or non-current which are
summarised as follows:

° It clarifies that a liability is non-current if an entity has a
right (instead of unconditional right as stated before the
amendments) to defer settlement of the liability for at least
twelve months from the end of the reporting period. This
right has to be existed at the end of the reporting period,
regardless of whether the lender tests for compliance at the
date or at a later date;

° Any expectations about events after the reporting period do
not impact the assessment made at the end of the reporting
period as to the classification of the liability; and

° “Settlements” are newly defined as a transfer to the
counterparty that results in the extinguishment of the
liability. The transfer could be of cash, other economic
resources (e.g. goods or services), or entity's own equity
instruments. Thus, if the counterparty conversion option is
classified as liability under IAS 32 “Financial Instruments:
Presentation”, the transfer of equity instruments by
exercising the conversion option constitute settlement
of liability for the purpose of current or non-current
classification of liabilities. One exception to the definition
is that if the counterparty conversion option is classified
as equity in accordance with IAS 32, the transfer of equity
instruments by exercising the conversion option does not
constitute settlement of liability and would be disregarded
when determining whether the liability is current or non-
current.

2022 Amendments issued in 2022 clarified that only covenants of
a liability arising from a loan arrangement, which an entity must
comply with on or before the reporting date (even if the covenant
is only assessed after the reporting date) affect the classification
of that liability as current or non-current. Those covenants to
be complied with after the reporting date do not affect such
classification of loan arrangements as current or non-current at the
reporting date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#r o MBRRMEE (47)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -_=F+_"A=+—HItFE

2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE IFRSs (continued)

Amendments to IAS 1 “Classification of Liabilities as Current
or Non-current” (“2020 Amendments”) and Amendments

to IAS 1 "Non-current Liabilities with Covenants" (“2022
Amendments") (continued)

Besides, the 2022 Amendments required an entity to provide
additional disclosure when a liability arising from a loan agreement
is classified as non-current and the entity's right to defer
settlement is contingent on compliance with future covenants
within twelve months. The information provided should enable
users of financial statements to understand the risk that the
liability could become repayable within twelve months of the
reporting period, including:

° the carrying amount of the related liabilities;

° information about the covenants (including the nature of
the covenants and when the entity is required to comply
with them); and

° facts and circumstances, if any, that indicate that an entity
may have difficulty complying with covenants. Such facts
and circumstances could also include the fact that the
entity would not have complied with the covenants based
on its circumstances at the end of the reporting period.

The 2022 Amendments also deferred the effective date of the 2020
Amendments to the annual reporting periods beginning on or after
1 January 2024, in which both amendments are to be applied as a
package and apply retrospectively. Earlier application is permitted.
The directors of the Group expect that the amendments have no
material impact on the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
S MBRRMEE (6F)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE_Z-_=F+"A=+—HIFFE

2.4

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Investments in associates and a joint venture

An associate is an entity, in which the Group has a long-term
interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting rights
and over which it is in a position to exercise significant influence.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee, but is not control or joint
control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the
net assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the contractually
agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only
when decisions about the relevant activities require the unanimous
consent of the parties sharing control.

The Group's investments in associates and a joint venture are stated
in the consolidated statement of financial position at the Group's
share of net assets under the equity method of accounting, less
any impairment losses. Adjustments are made to bring into line any
dissimilar accounting policies that may exist.

The Group's share of the post-acquisition results and other
comprehensive income of associates and a joint venture is included
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, respectively. In addition, when
there has been a change recognised directly in the equity of the
associate or joint venture, the Group recognises its share of any
changes, when applicable, in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates or a joint venture are
eliminated to the extent of the Group's investments in the
associates or joint a venture, except where unrealised losses provide
evidence of an impairment of the assets transferred. Goodwill
arising from the acquisition of associate or joint venture is included
as part of the Group's investments in associates or a joint venture.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#r o MBRRMEE (47)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -_=F+_"A=+—HItFE

2.4

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Investments in associates and a joint venture (continued)

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint
venture or vice versa, the retained interest is not remeasured.
Instead, the investment continues to be accounted for under the
equity method. In all other cases, upon loss of significant influence
over the associate or joint control over the joint venture, the Group
measures and recognises any retained investment at its fair value.
Any difference between the carrying amount of the associate or
joint venture upon loss of significant influence or joint control
and the fair value of the retained investment and proceeds from
disposal is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss.

The Group discontinues the use of equity method from the date
when it ceases to have significant influence over an associate or
joint control over a joint venture. If the retained interest in that
former associate or joint venture is a financial asset, the retained
interest is measured at fair value, which is regarded as its fair value
on initial recognition as a financial asset in accordance with IFRS
9. The difference between (i) the fair value of any retained interest
and any proceeds from disposing of a part interest in the associate
or joint venture; and (i) the carrying amount of the investment at
the date the equity method was discontinued, is recognised in the
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
S MBRRMEE (6F)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE_Z-_=F+"A=+—HIFFE

2.4

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition
date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and
the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects
whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree
that are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets in the event of liquidation at fair
value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree's identifiable
net assets. All other components of non-controlling interests are
measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business when the
acquired set of activities and assets includes an input and a
substantive process that together significantly contribute to the
ability to create outputs.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and
designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition
date. This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host
contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously
held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value
and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured at fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss. Contingent consideration that is
classified as equity is not remeasured and subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#r o MBRRMEE (47)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE_ET_=F+_FA=+—HItEFE

2.4

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount recognised
for non-controlling interests and any fair value of the Group's
previously held equity interests in the acquiree over the identifiable
net assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this
consideration and other items is lower than the fair value of the net
assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment, recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss as a gain on bargain
purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment,
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. The Group
performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December.
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a
business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to
each of the Group's cash-generating units, or groups of cash-
generating units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies of
the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities
of the Group are assigned to those units or group of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to which
the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment
loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
S MBRRMEE (6F)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE_Z-_=F+"A=+—HIFFE

2.4

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or
group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within
that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation
disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the operation
when determining the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill
disposed of in these circumstances is measured based on the
relative values of the operation disposed of and the portion of the
cash-generating unit retained.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its wealth management products at fair value
at the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either in the principal market for the asset
or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal or
the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the
assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the
asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their
economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant's ability to generate economic benefits
by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to
another market participant that would use the asset in its highest
and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#r o MBRRMEE (47)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE_ET_=F+_FA=+—HItEFE

2.4

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Fair value measurement(continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the consolidated financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
as a whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement
(other than quoted prices included within Level 1) is
observable, either directly or indirectly, and not using
significant unobservable inputs

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the consolidated
financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than inventories,
deferred tax assets, financial assets and goodwill) and the
Company's interests in subsidiaries, the asset's recoverable amount
is estimated. An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of the
asset's or cash-generating unit's value in use and its fair value
less costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, in
which case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
S MBRRMEE (6F)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE_Z-_=F+"A=+—HIFFE

2.4

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of
an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises in those
expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired
asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as
to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If
such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset,
but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that would
have been determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A
reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to profit or loss in
the period in which it arises.

Related parties

For the purposes of these consolidated financial statements, a party
is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party is a person or a close member of that person's

family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i1) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#r o MBRRMEE (47)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -_=F+_"A=+—HItFE

2.4

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Related parties (continued)

(b)

the party is an entity where any of the following conditions

applies:

(i)

(if)

(iif)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services to
the Group or to the parent of the Group.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
S MBRRMEE (6F)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE_ZT_=F+_BA=+—HI-FE

2.4

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property, plant
and equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and
location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance,
is normally charged to the consolidated statement of profit or
loss in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where the
recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major
inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as
a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives
and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the
cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual
value over its estimated useful life. The principal estimated useful
lives for this purpose are as follows:

Land and buildings 35 - 45 years
Leasehold improvements 5 years
Motor vehicles 5 years
Equipment and fixtures 5 - 10 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each
financial year end.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#r o MBRRMEE (47)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE_ET_=F+_FA=+—HItEFE

2.4

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when
no future economic benefits are expected to arise from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss in the year the asset is
derecognised is the difference between the net sales proceeds and
the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents leasehold improvements,
buildings and storage facilities under construction or renovation
works in progress which are stated at cost less any impairment
losses, and are not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs of
construction and capitalised borrowing costs on related borrowed
funds during the period of construction. Construction in progress
is reclassified to the appropriate category of property, plant and
equipment or investment properties when completed and ready for
use.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings (including
the leasehold property held as a right-of-use asset which would
otherwise meet the definition of an investment property) held to
earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than
for use in the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of
business.

Investment properties are measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and provision for any impairment in value.
Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis over the
expected useful life. The estimated useful lives for this purpose are
32 to 42 years.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss in the year of the retirement or disposal.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
S MBRRMEE (6F)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE_Z-_=F+"A=+—HIFFE

2.4

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired
in a business combination is the fair value at the date of
acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to
be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives
are subsequently amortised over the useful economic life and
assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the
intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and
the amortisation method for intangible assets with a finite useful
life are reviewed at least at each financial year end. The principal
estimated useful lives for this purpose are as follows:

Computer software 5 years
Licence 10 - 14 years
Franchise agreement 10 years
Trademark 10 years
Customer relationship 5 years

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract
is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset
for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To apply this
definition, the Group assesses whether the contract meets three key
evaluations which are whether:

° the contract contains an identified asset, which is either
explicitly identified in the contract or implicitly specified by
being identified at the time the asset is made available to
the Group;

. the Group has the right to obtain substantially all of
the economic benefits from use of the identified asset
throughout the period of use, considering its rights within
the defined scope of the contract; and

. the Group has the right to direct the use of the identified
asset throughout the period of use. The Group assess
whether it has the right to direct 'now and for what
purpose’ the asset is used throughout the period of use.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#r o MBRRMEE (47)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -_=F+_"A=+—HItFE

2.4

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Leases (continued)

For contracts that contains a lease component and one or more
additional lease or non-lease components, the Group allocates
the consideration in the contract to each lease and non-lease
component on the basis of their relative stand-alone prices.
However, for leases of properties in which the Group is a lessee,
the Group elected not to separate non-lease components and will
instead account for the lease and non-lease components as a single
lease component.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach
for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-
value assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease
payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the
underlying assets.

(a) Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease (that is the date the underlying asset
is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured
at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement
of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes
the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct
costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received.
Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated useful
lives of the assets as follows:

Leasehold land
Property

42 - 45 years
2 - 20 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by
the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise
of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the
estimated useful life of the asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
S MBRRMEE (6F)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE_Z-_=F+"A=+—HIFFE

2.4

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Leases (continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

(a)

Right-of-use assets (continued)

Leasehold land

Leasehold land represents land use rights paid to the
PRC government authorities. Land use rights are carried
at cost and are charged to profit or loss on the straight-
line basis over the respective periods of the rights ranging
from 42 to 45 years. When the leasehold land cannot be
allocated reliably between the land and buildings elements,
the entire leasehold land are included in the cost of the
land and buildings as a finance lease in property, plant and
equipment.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted for under
IFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to
fair value at initial recognition are considered as additional
lease payments and included in the cost of right-of-use
assets.

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date
of the lease at the present value of lease payments to be
made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed
payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less
any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments
that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected
to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease
payments also include the exercise price of a purchase
option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and
payments of penalties for termination of a lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising the option to terminate
the lease. The variable lease payments that do not depend
on an index or a rate are recognised as an expense in the
period in which the event or condition that triggers the
payment occurs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#r o MBRRMEE (47)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE_ET_=F+_FA=+—HItEFE

2.4

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Leases (continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

(b)

Lease liabilities (continued)

(0

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses its incremental borrowing rate ("IBR") at
the lease commencement date because the interest rate
implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is
increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for
the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount
of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a
change in the lease term, a change in lease payments (e.q., a
change to future lease payments resulting from a change in
an index or rate) or a change in assessment of an option to
purchase the underlying asset.

For lease modification that is not accounted for as a
separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability
based on the lease term of the modified lease by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the effective date of modification. The
only exception is any rent concessions which arose as a
direct consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic and which
satisfied the conditions set out in paragraph 46B of IFRS
16 "Leases” In such cases, the Group took advantage of the
practical expedient set out in paragraph 46A of IFRS 16 and
recognised the change in consideration as if it were not a
lease modification.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases (that is those leases
that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase option).
Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-
value assets are recognised as an expense on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
S MBRRMEE (6F)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE_Z-_=F+"A=+—HIFFE

2.4

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Leases (continued)
Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception (or
when there is a lease modification) each of its leases as either an
operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified
as operating leases. When a contract contains lease and non-
lease components, the Group allocates the consideration in the
contract to each component on a relative stand-alone selling price
basis. Rental income is accounted for on a straight-line basis over
the lease terms and is included in revenue in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss due to its operating nature. Initial direct
costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are
added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised
over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent
rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are
earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an underlying assets to the lessee are
accounted for as finance leases. At the commencement date, the
cost of the leased asset is capitalised at the present value of the
lease payments and related payments (including the initial direct
costs), and presented as a receivable at an amount equal to the net
investment in the lease. The finance income on the net investment
in the lease is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss so as to provide a constant periodic rate of return over the
lease terms.

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, a sublease is classified as
a finance lease or operating lease with reference to the right-of-use
asset arising from the head lease. If the head lease is a short-term
lease to which the Group applies the on-balance sheet recognition
exemption, the Group classifies the sublease as an operating lease.

2023 ANNUAL REPORT fEE#RS

2.4

FEGSTERBE (&)

HE (@

KEEFFAHBN
EXEBFEAHEAAN SAENHE
EfekR (RNELEHEETR) 25
REHExmMEESE-

AEETEEESEHEARERT
DRBRERNES 90 BHE
EHE-EGNEcHERIFEE
Lo AEEREHEFEREE
RENNREBLEERHEES D -
HEWARBHRNZEGEYER
TRHELEEEERGEERRAY
W m e NimE kR EERER
EENVBEEREATNMEREE
ENREE TREARRZEES
WAAER Z B 2R - S ATEE I
RV EIFEEB AU A o

RIS EEAENBRERED
JR\ B e [o] ¥R 4858 T AR T ARVAE &
ARIIIFRMBRE -NHBEE A
EEEMNMAREE I RRBRY
R (BENBEEAES) NIREET
BEAME TREENREHEREFR
NWEBR2IAEBREBE-HERSE
BENRBRANRGEHEGRARE
80 LUE £ E BP9 B9 & € 1B H# B 3R

AEBESTNMEEANR > AEE
2RTEEMEENERAREER
BHEHE EAMEHEHKEEA
E-MAEEHBENEHEENE
HERAEESRRIMNEDHAR
AIXERFEHEENEAKEENR
o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
o MBHRRMEE (4R)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE_ET_=F+_FA=+—HItEFE

2.4

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through other
comprehensive income, and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends
on the financial asset's contractual cash flow characteristics and
the Group's business model for managing them. With the exception
of trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Group has applied the practical
expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Group initially measures a financial asset at its fair
value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not
contain a significant financing component or for which the Group
has applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction
price determined under IFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set
out for "Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at
amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income,
it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest ("SPPI") on the principal amount outstanding.
Financial assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and
measured at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the
business model.

The Group's business model for managing financial assets refers
to how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash
flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will result
from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets,
or both. Financial assets classified and measured at amortised
cost are held within a business model with the objective to hold
financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows, while
financial assets classified and measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income are held within a business model
with the objective of both holding to collect contractual cash
flows and selling. Financial assets which are not held within the
aforementioned business models are classified and measured at fair
value through profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
S MBRRMEE (6F)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE_ZT_=F+_BA=+—HI-FE

2.4

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Reqular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using
the effective interest method and are subject to impairment. Gains
and losses are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss when the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the
consolidated statement of financial position at fair value with net
changes in fair value recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.

This category includes wealth management products which the
Group had not irrevocably elected to classify at fair value through
other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#r o MBRRMEE (47)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE_ET_=F+_FA=+—HItEFE

2.4

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or
part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised
(i.e., removed from the Group's consolidated statement of financial
position) when:

° the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;
or
° the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows

from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a
third party under a “"pass-through” arrangement; and
either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risk and
rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise
the transferred asset to the extent of the Group's continuing
involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration
that the Group could be required to repay.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
S MBRRMEE (6F)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE_ZT_=F+_BA=+—HI-FE

2.4

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses
("ECLs") for all debt instruments not held at fair value through
profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all
the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an
approximation of the original effective interest rate. The expected
cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held
or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual
terms.

Simplified approach

For trade receivables (other than loans receivables), the Group
applies a simplified approach using the provision matrix in
calculating ECL and recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime
ECL at the end of each reporting period. At the end of each
reporting period, the historical default rates are updated and
changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

General approach

For loans receivables and other financial assets measured at
amortised cost, ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit
exposures for which there has not been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit
losses that result from default events that are possible within the
next 12 months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for
which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses
expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the
timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At the end of each reporting period, the Group assesses whether
the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly
since initial recognition. When making the assessment, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on
the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition and
considers reasonable and supportable information that is available
without undue cost or effort, including historical and forward-
looking information. Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual payments
are more than 30 days past due, unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information that demonstrates otherwise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#r o MBRRMEE (47)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE_ET_=F+_FA=+—HItEFE

2.4

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
General approach (continued)

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual
payments are 90 days past due, unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information that demonstrates otherwise.
However, in certain cases, the Group may also consider a financial
asset to be in default when internal or external information
indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding
contractual amounts in full before taking into account any credit
enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset is written
off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the
contractual cash flows.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment under
the general approach and they are classified within the following
stages for measurement of ECLs as detailed below.

Stage 1 -Financial instruments for which credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition and for
which the loss allowance is measured at an amount equal
to 12-month ECLs

Stage 2 -Financial instruments for which credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition but that are not
credit-impaired financial assets and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs

Stage 3 -Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the reporting
date (but that are not purchased or originated credit-
impaired) and for which the loss allowance is measured at
an amount equal to lifetime ECLs
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
S MBRRMEE (6F)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE_ZT_=F+_BA=+—HI-FE

2.4

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities (other than lease liabilities) are classified, at
initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss, loans and borrowings and payables.

All financial liabilities (other than lease liabilities) are recognised
initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and
payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade payables, other
payables and accruals, interest-bearing bank loans and lease
liabilities.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest rate method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses
are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the effective
interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in finance costs in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#r o MBRRMEE (47)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -_=F+_"A=+—HItFE

2.4

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)
Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between
the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the consolidated statement of financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset
the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle
on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories comprise merchandise purchased for resale and
consumables and are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. The cost of merchandise is determined on the weighted
average basis. Net realisable value is determined based on estimated
selling prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits,
restricted cash, and short-term highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity of
generally within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the
Group's cash management.

Bank balances for which use by the Group is subject to third
party contractual restrictions are included as part of cash unless
the restrictions result in a bank balances no longer meeting the
definition of cash.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
S MBRRMEE (6F)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE_ZT_=F+_BA=+—HI-FE

2.4

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable
that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised
for a provision is the present value at the end of the reporting
period of the future expenditures expected to be required to settle
the obligation. The increase in the discounted present value amount
arising from the passage of time is included in finance costs in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future uncertain
events not wholly within the control of the Group, are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote.

All provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Share capital is recognised
at the amount of consideration of shares issued, after deducting
any transaction costs associated with the issuing of shares (net of
any related income tax benefit) to the extent they are incremental
costs directly attributable to the equity transaction.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
o MBHRRMEE (4R)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -_=F+_"A=+—HItFE

2.4

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating
to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside
profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking
into consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in the
countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for
financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

° when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, associates and a joint
venture, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies the
requirements in IAS 12 to the lease liabilities and the related assets
separately. The Group recognises a deferred tax asset related to the
lease liabilities to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary difference
can be utilised and a deferred tax liability for all taxable temporary
differences.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
S MBRRMEE (6F)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE_Z-_=F+"A=+—HIFFE

2.4

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and the carry-forward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised, to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which
the deductible temporary differences, and the carry-forward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

° when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, associates and a joint
venture, deferred tax assets are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will
reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be
utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow
all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised
deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting
period and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of
the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the
liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2.4

oM ImRMEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -_=F+_"A=+—HItFE

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 24 FTEGHBSEHME (@&
(continued)
Income tax (continued) FRrigi (&)
Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and EHESAEESERITERNR
only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current B EEEHBARESEIR
tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets fH  BIEEMRIBEE ERELERIBE
and deferred tax liability relate to income taxes levied by the same BEHE -SSR —TERE R
taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or different FRERKRIETBIAA KEERIER
taxable entities which intend either to settle current tax liabilities HEENEEEEL S o I El k-
and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the RIS EEELBINIARFTEE R
liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which significant EERRINEREENEEEEY
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be ARRHF BB ZFAEHRER
settled or recovered. BIRERIEE EMRIERIBESER
TR o
Government grants BT RF % Bh
Government grants are recognised at their fair values where there WEaBREFBIABHTEERS
is reasonable assurance that the grants will be received and all Fr B M &5 BB EBieE A
attaching conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates AEBEBERED - HEEE R
to an expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic B &R B 5L #h Bh i 4 18 Bl 24~ =% 88
basis over the periods that the costs, for which it is intended to AR IR AR E LRSS WA

compensate, are expensed.

Government grants relating to income is presented in gross under MK ARSI R EaE R
"other operating revenues" in the consolidated statement of profit EWTHMKSESWm B TNEY] A48
or loss. B
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
S MBRRMEE (6F)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE_Z-_=F+"A=+—HIFFE

2.4

166

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Non-current assets, or disposal groups held for sale

Non-current assets, or disposal groups comprising assets and
liabilities, that are highly probable to be recovered principally
through sale rather than through continuing use, are classified as
held for sale. Immediately before classification as held for sales,
the assets, or components of a disposal group, are remeasured
in accordance with the Group's accounting policies. Thereafter
generally the assets, or disposal group, are measured at the lower
of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell. Any
impairment loss on a disposal group is first allocated to goodwill,
and then to remaining assets and liabilities on pro rata basis,
except that no loss is allocated to inventories, financial assets,
deferred tax assets, employee benefit assets, investment property
or biological assets, which continue to be measured in accordance
with the Group's accounting policies. Impairment losses on initial
classification as held for sale and subsequent gains and losses
on remeasurement are recognised in profit or loss. Gains are not
recognised in excess of any cumulative impairment loss.

Intangible assets and property, plant and equipment once classified
as held for sale are not amortised or depreciated. In addition, equity
accounting of equity-accounted investees ceases once classified as
held for sale.

Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control
of goods or services is transferred to the customers at an amount
that reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount,
the amount of consideration is estimated to which the Group will
be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or services to
the customer. The variable consideration is estimated at contract
inception and constrained until it is highly probable that a
significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue
recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty with the
variable consideration is subsequently resolved.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
o MBHRRMEE (4R)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE_ET_=F+_FA=+—HItEFE

2.4

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

When the contract contains a financing component which provides
the customer with a significant benefit of financing the transfer
of goods or services to the customer for more than one vyear,
revenue is measured at the present value of the amount receivable,
discounted using the discount rate that would be reflected in
a separate financing transaction between the Group and the
customer at contract inception. When the contract contains a
financing component which provides the Group with a significant
financial benefit for more than one year, revenue recognised
under the contract includes the interest expense accreted on the
contract liability under the effective interest method. For a contract
where the period between the payment by the customer and the
transfer of the promised goods or services is one year or less, the
transaction price is not adjusted for the effects of a significant
financing component, using the practical expedient in IFRS 15.

When another party is involved in providing goods or services to a
customer, the Group determines whether the nature of its promise
is a performance obligation to provide the specified goods or
services itself (i.e. the Group is a principal) or to arrange for those
goods or services to be provided by the other party (i.e. the Group is
an agent).

The Group is a principal if it controls the specified good or service
before that good or service is transferred to a customer. The
Group is an agent if its performance obligation is to arrange for
the provision of the specified good or service by another party. In
this case, the Group does not control the specified good or service
provided by another party before that good or service is transferred
to the customer. When the Group acts as an agent, it recognises
revenue in the amount of any fee or commission to which it
expects to be entitled in exchange for arranging for the specified
goods or services to be provided by the other party.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
S MBRRMEE (6F)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE_ZT_=F+_BA=+—HI-FE

2.4

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

(a)

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised at the point
in time when control of the asset is transferred to the
customer.

Some contracts for the sale of goods provide customers
with rights of return. The rights of return give rise to

variable consideration.

Provision of concessionaire sale services

Revenue from the provision of concessionaire sale services
is recognised upon the commission rate of the gross
concessionaire sales which was recognised upon the
delivery of goods.

Provision of consultancy and management services

Revenue from the provision of consultancy and
management services is recognised over the scheduled
period on a straight-line basis because the customer
simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided
by the Group.

Revenue from loyalty point programme

Revenue from loyalty point programme is recognised when
the obligation in respect of the award is fulfilled.

Revenue from other sources

Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease
terms. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or
a rate are recognised as income in the accounting period in which
they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#r o MBRRMEE (47)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -_=F+_"A=+—HItFE

2.4

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly discounts
the estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the
financial instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate, to the
net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders' right to
receive payment has been established, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the
Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

Promotion income and minimum guaranteed sales commissions
are recognised according to the underlying contract terms with
concessionaires and as these services have been provided in
accordance therewith.

Credit card handling fees, administration fees and service fees are
recognised when the relevant services are rendered.

Electricity and water fees are recognised when the cost are actual
incurred.

Display space leasing fees and equipment leasing income are
recognised on a time proportion basis over the lease terms.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or a
payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before the
Group transfers the related goods or services. Contract liabilities
are recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the
contract (i.e., transfers control of the related goods or services to
the customer).

Provision for loyalty point programme are recognised as a reduction
in revenues upon granting of bonus points to customers in
accordance with the announced bonus points scheme. The Group
estimates future redemption of bonus points based on its historical
experiences.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
S MBRRMEE (6F)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE_ZT_=F+_BA=+—HI-FE

2.4

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Employee benefits
Pension scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the "MPF Scheme") under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all of its
employees. Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
employees' basic salaries and are charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme
are held separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group's employer contributions vest fully
with the employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

Pursuant to the relevant PRC laws and requlations, each of the PRC
subsidiaries of the Group is required to participate in a retirement
benefit scheme organised by the local municipal government
whereby the Group is required to contribute a certain percentage of
the salaries of its employees to the retirement benefit scheme. The
only obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement benefit
scheme is to pay the ongoing required contributions. Contributions
made to the defined contribution retirement benefit scheme are
charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss as incurred.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of those
assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when
the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing
costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity
incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
o MBHRRMEE (4R)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -_=F+_"A=+—HItFE

2.4

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are approved
by the shareholders in a general meeting. Proposed final dividends
are disclosed in the note 9 to the consolidated financial statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company's memorandum and articles of association
grant the directors the authority to declare interim dividends.
Consequently, interim dividends are recognised immediately as a
liability when they are proposed and declared.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in RMB, which is different
from the functional currency of the Company - the United States
dollar ("US$"). The Group's consolidated financial statements
are presented in RMB because management considers that a
substantial majority of the group companies are in the PRC and the
Group primarily generates and expends cash in RMB. Each entity
in the Group determines its own functional currency and items
included in the financial statements of each entity are measured
using that functional currency. Foreign currency transactions
recorded by the entities in the Group are initially recorded using
their respective functional currency rates prevailing at the dates
of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency rates
of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period. Differences
arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at
fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the date when the fair value was measured. The gain or
loss arising on translation of a non-monetary item measured at
fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or
loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation difference
on the item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in other
comprehensive income or profit or loss is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
S MBRRMEE (6F)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE_Z-_=F+"A=+—HIFFE

2.4

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

When a fair value gain or loss on a non-monetary item is
recognised in profit or loss, any exchange component of that gain
or loss, is also recognised in profit or loss. When a fair value gain or
loss on a non-monetary item is recognised in other comprehensive
income, any exchange component of that gain or loss is also
recognised in other comprehensive income.

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the
related asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a non-
monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating to an advance
consideration, the date of initial transaction is the date on which
the Group initially recognises the non-monetary asset or non-
monetary liability arising from the advance consideration. If there
are multiple payments or receipts in advance, the Group determines
the transaction date for each payment or receipt of the advance
consideration.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries, a joint
venture and associates are currencies other than RMB. As at the
end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of the entities
in the Group are translated into the presentation currency of
the Company at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the
reporting period and their profit or loss is translated into RMB at
the weighted average exchange rates for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange reserve.
On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of other
comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign operation
is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation and
any fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities arising on acquisition are treated as assets and liabilities
of the foreign operation and translated at the closing rate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#r o MBRRMEE (47)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -_=F+_"A=+—HItFE

2.4

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into RMB
at the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the cash flows.
Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which
arise throughout the year are translated into RMB at the weighted
average exchange rates for the year.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with
the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-
makers (the "CODM"). The CODM, who are responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating segments,
has been identified as the executive directors that make strategic
decisions.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group's financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenue, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities
affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from those
involving estimations, which have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements:
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
S MBRRMEE (6F)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE_Z-_=F+"A=+—HIFFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Judgements (continued)

Identifying performance obligations in sale of goods and
commissions from concessionaire sales

The Group recognises revenue when a performance obligation is
satisfied when control of goods or services is transferred to the
customer on sale of goods and commissions from concessionaire
sales. For contracts with customers, the Group determined that the
performance obligations for loyalty point programme are capable
of being distinct. The Group allocates the transaction price to each
performance obligation on a relative stand-alone selling price
basis. The stand-alone selling price of the distinct goods or services
underlying each performance obligation is determined at contract
inception. It represents the price at which the Group would sell a
promised good or service to a customer.

Property lease classification - Group as lessor

The Group has entered into sublease contracts for its department
store business and lease contracts to earn rentals. The Group has
determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of
the arrangements, such as the lease term not constituting a major
part of the economic life of the investment properties and right-of-
use assets and the present value of the minimum lease payments
not amounting to substantially all the fair value of the investment
properties and right-of-use assets, that it retains substantially all
the significant risks and rewards incidental to ownership of these
properties which are leased out and accounts for the contracts as
operating leases or finance leases.

Significant judgement in determining the lease term of contracts
with renewal and/for termination options

The Group has several lease contracts that include renewal and/
or termination options. The Group applies judgement in evaluating
whether or not to exercise the option to renew or terminate
the lease. That is, it considers all relevant factors that create
an economic incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or
termination. After the commencement date, the Group reassesses
the lease term if there is a significant event or change in
circumstances that is within its control and affects its ability to
exercise or not to exercise the option to renew or to terminate the
lease (e.g., construction of significant leasehold improvements or
significant customisation to the leased asset).

The Group includes the renewal period as part of the lease term for
the lease of a property which has a short non-cancellable period of
three years.

2023 ANNUAL REPORT fEE#RS

FE2GstAIE R G5 (8)

F R ()

BT 1B E FHIH & K an K 1
EHIBRIEE
AEERFHFREENHEER R
RENEFNRBEETRZENR
BEBTHERS KD MAZFH
GRS > A& E T S H B
FNBENETREAERBERR K&
EZREEBUEEBREERZIZE
BAOEESRBYNET -FRARERN
BEENATEDENHRFNIBILE
BRENRERERE - BREXR
EERBEBERNERHEXREYN
AR TSRO ERE o

YEHE S IE— K EFF5LHAN
AEEMEBEEXEBIIBHEE
BHRREEGOURBIEE - RiE
HAEBZ IR ARG Z 5 & 1
HRTEBRREMERERAEEE
ZRESTNEITERLARMHEE
HREREAEFNREYERERR
EEZBARBOANEBE A&H
EECHEREZXSFHEYEMA#E
iR RE D EXNE R RO
THRABGHLIEEHEENRMENR
LUNE

BEBEBAR FREIEEREH
H978 75 6 FiT F5 2B K F
AEEREETESEEER
RIEENEE SN - AEBETE
B RTEERB AR LR FLH
o= AEESTEEHETE
AR M AR L TR A A S B Y PR
BERBRZ - RNEBERE HEE
EAFHRBEREBEEREE M
ZEEHREFENAERBNTE
HLEANILFEHTE (HATMH) A
EEAESR IR flY
HEMEETEANESNHEEER
EETERER MXEEREE
ST A o

LR AN R R AR (BN =4)
WYEEEMS » NEBEREHF
IR —&R 7 o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#r o MBRRMEE (47)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -_=F+_"A=+—HItFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Judgements (continued)
Tax provisions

Determining tax provisions involves judgement on the future tax
treatment of certain transactions. The Group carefully evaluates
tax implications of transactions and tax provisions are set up
accordingly. The tax treatment of such transactions is assessed
periodically to take into account all the changes in tax legislation
and practices.

Classification between investment properties and owner-occupied
properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an
investment property, and has developed criteria in making that
judgement. Investment property is a property held to earn rentals
or for capital appreciation or both. Therefore, the Group considers
whether a property generates cash flows largely independently of
the other assets held by the Group. Some properties comprise a
portion that is held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation and
another portion that is held for use in the production or supply of
goods or services or for administrative purposes. If these portions
could be sold separately or leased out separately under a finance
lease, the Group accounts for the portions separately. If the
portions could not be sold separately, the property is an investment
property only if an insignificant portion is held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes. Judgement is made on an individual property basis to
determine whether ancillary services are so significant that a
property does not qualify as an investment property.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year, are described below.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management
judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred
tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing
and level of future taxable profits together with the expected
future market, economic conditions and tax planning strategies.
The carrying value of deferred tax assets relating to recognised
tax losses as at 31 December 2023 was RMB63,965,000 (2022:
RMB86,590,000). The amount of unrecognised tax losses as at 31
December 2023 was RMB1,173,380,000 (2022: RMB1,199,553,000).
Further details are set out in note 19 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment
for all non-financial assets (including the right-of-use assets) at
the end of each reporting period. Intangible assets with indefinite
lives are tested for impairment annually and at other times when
such indicators exist. Other non-financial assets are tested for
impairment when there are indicators that the carrying amounts
may not be recoverable. An impairment exists when the carrying
value of an asset or a cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable
amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal
and its value in use. The calculation of the fair value less costs of
disposal is based on available data from binding sales transactions
in an arm's length transaction of similar assets or observable
market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset.
When value in use calculations are undertaken, management must
estimate the expected future cash flows from the asset or cash-
generating unit based on assumptions, in particular those relating
to gross margin and growth rates, as well as the overall market and
economic conditions in the PRC and choose a suitable discount rate
in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows. Further
details, including a sensitivity analysis of key assumptions, are set
out in notes 11 and 13(a) to the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -_=F+_"A=+—HItFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least on
an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value in use
of the cash-generating units to which the goodwill is allocated.
Estimating the value in use requires the Group to make an estimate
of the expected future cash flows from the cash-generating units
based on assumptions, in particular those relating to gross margin
and growth rates, as well as the overall market and economic
conditions in the PRC and Malaysia and also to choose a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash
flows. The carrying amount of goodwill as at 31 December 2023
was RMB1,636,683,000 (2022: RMB1,652,960,000). Further details
of the impairment testing of goodwill are set out in note 14 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Provision for ECL on trade receivables (other than loan receivables),
loan receivables and other receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade
receivables. The provision rates are based on days past due for
groupings of various customer segments that have similar loss
patterns (i.e., by service type).

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group's historical
observed default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to
adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking
information. For instance, if forecast economic conditions (i.e.,
gross domestic product) are expected to deteriorate over the next
year which can lead to an increased number of defaults in the retail
sector, the historical default rates are adjusted. At the end of each
reporting period, the historical observed default rates are updated
and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed
default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a
significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes
in circumstances and forecast economic conditions. The Group's
historical credit loss experience and forecast of economic
conditions may also not be representative of a customer's actual
default in the future.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Provision for ECL on trade receivables (other than loan receivables),
loan receivables and other receivables (continued)

For other receivables, the Group assesses at the end of each
reporting period whether there is any objective evidence that
a financial asset is impaired. To determine whether there is an
objective evidence of impairment, the Group considers factors such
as the probability of insolvency or significant financial difficulties
of the debtor and default or significant delay in payments.

The information about the ECLs on the Group's trade receivables
and other receivables is disclosed in notes 21, 22 and 38.4 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Leases - Estimating the IBR

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in a
lease, and therefore, it uses an IBR to measure lease liabilities. The
IBR is the rate of interest that the Group would have to pay to
borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security, the funds
necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use
asset in a similar economic environment. The IBR therefore reflects
what the Group "would have to pay", which requires estimation
when no observable rates are available (such as for subsidiaries
that do not enter into financing transactions) or when it needs
to be adjusted to reflect the terms and conditions of the lease
(for example, when leases are not in the subsidiary's functional
currency). The Group estimates the IBR using observable inputs
(such as market interest rates) when available and is required to
make certain entity-specific estimates (such as the subsidiary's
stand-alone credit rating).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#r o MBRRMEE (47)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE_ET_=F+_FA=+—HItEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Provision against obsolete and slow-moving inventories

Management reviews the condition of inventories of the Group
and makes a provision against obsolete and slow-moving inventory
items which are identified as no longer suitable for sale or use.
Management estimates the net realisable value for such inventories
based primarily on the latest invoice prices and current market
conditions. The Group carries out an inventory review at the end
of each reporting period and makes a provision against obsolete
and slow-moving items. Management reassesses the estimation
by the end of each reporting period. The carrying amount of
inventories as at 31 December 2023 was RMB421,717,000 (2022:
RMB500,802,000), net of provision of RMB167,000 (2022:
RMB315,000). Further details are set out in note 20 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Fair value of financial instruments

Where the fair value of financial assets recorded in the consolidated
statement of financial position cannot be derived from active
markets, they are determined using valuation techniques including
the discounted cash flow model. The inputs to these models are
taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is
not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair
values. The judgements include considerations of inputs such as
the expected yield rate which is subject to liquidity risk, credit risk
and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could
affect the reported fair value of financial instruments. The carrying
amount of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss as at
31 December 2023 was RMB57,540,000 (2022: RMB108,315,000).
Further details are set out in notes 23 and 38.6 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
S MBRRMEE (6F)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE_Z-_=F+"A=+—HIFFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Depreciation and amortisation

The Group has estimated the useful lives of the property, plant
and equipment, investment properties, right-of-use assets and
intangible assets (other than goodwill) to be 2 to 45 years,
after taking into account their estimated residual values, as
set out in the principal accounting policies above. Depreciation
and amortisation of items of property, plant and equipment,
investment properties, right-of-use assets and intangible assets
(other than goodwill) are calculated on the straight-line basis over
their expected useful lives. The net carrying amounts of items of
property, plant and equipment, investment properties, right-of-
use assets and intangible assets (other than goodwill) as at 31
December 2023 were RMB2,807,192,000 (2022: RMB2,905,940,000),
RMB548,468,000 (2022: RMB538,758,000), RMB2,081,520,000
(2022: RMB2,478,736,000), and nil (2022: RMB4,127,000)
respectively. Further details are set out in notes 11, 12, 13(a) and 15
to the consolidated financial statements, respectively.
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REVENUES, OTHER OPERATING REVENUES AND 4.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Revenues

An analysis of revenues is as follows:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e MBmERMEE (48)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -_=F+_"_A=+—HItFE

D

W a
R D FHIRIT

W s EEE R m k2 HE

2023 2022
—E-= B F
RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFIT AR®ETFT
Revenue from contracts with FKEEF SIS 7
customers (a)
Sale of goods from direct sales BEHEEE 2,130,142 2,139,942
Commissions from concessionaire BHHEHERS
sales (b) 757,599 705,391
Consultancy and management BHNREEREE
service fees 13,457 12,063
2,901,198 2,857,396
Revenue from other sources =gt 3l g
Gross rental income A AW A 640,771 372,616
Credit services EERHE 103,413 70,596
744,184 443,212
3,645,382 3,300,608
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182

REVENUES, OTHER OPERATING REVENUES AND

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Revenues (continued)

Notes:

(a)

Revenue from contracts with customers - disaggregated

revenue information

W EtES W RO EE
¥ (48)

Yz (48

P 5E

() ZRBEFRSHNKZE-—HIWE

Commissions Consultancy
Sales of from and
goods from concessionaire management
direct sales sales services fees Total
HErEiE B R
BEHER HERE EBERBEE “Et
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT ARETT ARBTT
2023 —E-=F
China South region FREI R &P 1,107,274 367,974 495 1,475,743
China North region FREDIEED 464,336 271,653 - 735,989
China East region AR R 2B 529,297 117,317 12,962 659,576
Overseas o 29,235 655 - 29,890
Revenue from contracts with REZE P &L
customers 2,130,142 757,599 13,457 2,901,198
2022 2T F
China South region FEmEE 1,129,311 336,684 660 1,466,655
China North region FRE 6B 479,628 248,789 - 728,417
China East region FRE R 500,484 119,475 11,403 631,362
Overseas oA 30,519 443 - 30,962
Revenue from contracts with REZE P &AM E
customers 2,139,942 705,391 12,603 2,857,396
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#r o MBRRMEE (47)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -_=F+_"_A=+—HItFE

REVENUES, OTHER OPERATING REVENUES AND

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Revenues (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(b)

(0

Commissions from concessionaire sales are analysed as
follows:

W ~ HthiSE W mm R E
¥ (&)
i (48)

MisE : ()

(b)

R EEHEEEIMT ¢

2023 2022
—EZ= -
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AREETFIT
Gross revenue from concessionaire sales 45 ZFEEMESY E 48 E 5,661,107 5,218,896
Commissions from concessionaire sales 45 FFEEIHEHS 757,599 705,391
Performance obligations (o) BHNEE

Sale of goods and commissions from concessionaire sales
The performance obligation is satisfied at a point in time
when control of the asset is transferred to the customers.

The amounts of transaction prices allocated to the
remaining performance obligations were RMB615,709,000
(2022: RMB621,313,000) as at 31 December 2023, which
are all expected to be recognised as revenue within one
year. The amounts disclosed above do not include variable
consideration subject to constraint.

Revenue recognised during the year ended 31 December
2023 with an amount of RMB621,313,000 (2022:
RMB608,666,000) were included in contract liabilities as at
1 January 2023.

HEARRITF RS EN L
BHNEFREEZERRES
BEZRRER-

RZTE_=F+"B=+—
B oEFTRHGENSTETN
R 5 EEA AR 615,709,000
T(ZEZZF: AR
621,313,0007T) > At IR —&F
NERAWE > EXFriRES
B A EEZRENATER
'fgo

RBEE—_E-_=4+=A1
=t+—HIEFEFERNMESD
MWz A ART621,313,000
T (ZEZZHF AR
608,666,0007T) * N _E_=
F—H—HitAGHNEE-

PARKSON RETAIL GROUP LIMITED BEBXEESBIRAHE

183



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
S EMBRRME (R

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE_Z-_=F+"A=+—HIFFE

4.  REVENUES, OTHER OPERATING REVENUES AND 4. WE -HEMKSHEkoIPE
SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) ® @&
Other operating revenues H & W

2023 2022
—— = —m— —

—_——_— —

RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTRE ARBTRT

Credit card handling fees ERFFEE 26,122 24,528
Promotion income R SH U A 47,802 44,622
Electricity and water fees BEKMKE 124,804 109,034
Administration fees THER 147,353 135,969
Display space and equipment leasing income ESHIHM & B EHEURA 60,991 55,426
Service fees RFBEHR 24,248 22,870
Government grants (note) T Bh (F %) 14,834 10,285
Other income arising from the recognition of FESREFAERE FEEELEN
net investments in subleases Hag A 18,274 891
Other income arising from lease modification FAEEEA R IEEEH
and termination HMgA 47,777 23,449
Other income HMA 19,903 20,985
532,108 448,059
Note: P 5T
Various local government grants have been granted to reward the Group for NEEEM S BNETZEME) M
its contributions to the local economy. There were no unfulfilled conditions ENHH 2 &N S ER o 32 E T B
or contingencies attaching to these government grants. M R IR S B AT I8 o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#r o MBRRMEE (47)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -_=F+_"_A=+—HItFE

REVENUES, OTHER OPERATING REVENUES AND
SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Segment information

For management purposes, the Group has one major operating
segment, which is "Retail”. The Group operates department stores,
shopping malls, outlets and supermarkets mainly in the PRC.
Revenues arising from this segment include sales of goods in direct
sales, commissions from concessionaire sales, consultancy and
management service fees and rental income from tenants.

Besides, the Group provides consumer financing business which
is carried out by Parkson Credit in Malaysia, and its revenue and
results are disclosed under “Others" in the table below:

W s EEE R m k2 HBE
# (&)

SEWER

HEEFXR AEBEHREE —EX
BRENE B TRE - AEBEE
RAPBRKEEFEE By O B
R kBT - REILD BN D E
EEEHER RHAFEHEERAS
AAAEERBEREARET K
Ao

IHESh » AR & B2 FParkson Credith?
ERAERAENEESTRER  H
W R A T RTE M T8 NI EE -

Retail Others Total
€ Hth #ast
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT AR®Tx AR®BTT
2023 —ET=HF
Segment revenue 7 8B Y
Operating revenues L 4,074,077 103,413 4,177,490
Segment results DEREAE 75,610 22,745 98,355
Reconciliation: E:0 3
Corporate expenses PEME (11,708)
Profit before tax GRS 86,647
2022 —E-
Segment revenue 7 ERUR ==
Operating revenues RS 3,678,071 70,596 3,748,667
Segment results DERELE (415,295) 16,700 (398,595)
Reconciliation: AR -
Corporate expenses TtERL (14,566)
Loss before tax Goy=) oEi=| (413,161)

Revenue from external customers are mostly generated in the PRC
and almost all significant operating assets of the Group are located
in the PRC. Since revenue from external customers and non-current
assets excluding financial instruments and deferred tax assets of
overseas companies outside the PRC are not material to the Group's
consolidated revenue and non-current assets excluding financial
instruments and deferred tax assets, management believes there is
no need to disclose geographical information.

RENEBERFNKRZEEZRE R
MAERBERBDETBREESR
ERURTE ARKRENBER
B m R IERBE E (FBETEIR
SNBINABMNER T ARIELERIE
EE HAERGRERERIFRSDE
EEEsmIAREERESR
EMstAER EEERRBA
REMIEG K
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
S EMBRRME (R

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE_Z-_=F+"A=+—HIFFE

5. PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX 5. MaiFE, (§5i8)
The Group's profit/(loss) before tax is arrived at after charging/ NEBNRAFE, (BB /&N
(crediting): Bk (Bt A) THIBEBERN

2023 2022
=% B

RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTRT

Staff costs excluding directors' and chief BIRA FEEEERERFE
executive's remuneration: HITEMD) !
- Wages, salaries and bonuses — T & Fis &IE4AL 360,603 392,795
~ Pension scheme contributions* —BIREBTE R 45,949 50,725
- Social welfare and other costs — R R H AR A 68,593 82,734
475,145 526,254
Directors' and chief executive's remuneration = SKEFEHITEMNS 10,692 10,382
Total staff costs BEFETIMA 485,837 536,636
Rental expenses in respect of leased properties: FHEYEMNHEEER !
- Lease payments not included in the — Rt AHEABFTEN
measurement of lease liabilities FER=ENE 90,132 72,419
- COVID-19 related rent concessions — & B 7 A BICOVID-19
from lessors MEAEERR - (57,205)
Total rental expenses SEtHEERX 90,132 15,214
Gross rental income in respect of investment & B EMFASLEUT A
properties (243,988) (2,452)
Lease income in respect of sublease of KEHEBE M =EHEER
properties under operating leases: HEWA :
- Minimum lease payments** —RERE (284,133) (281,594)
- Contingent lease payments™* — oy AT (112,650) (88,570)
Total gross rental income SETES 4B A (640,771) (372,616)
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -_=F+_"_A=+—HItFE

5.

PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX (continued)

The Group's profit/(loss) before tax is arrived at after charging/

(crediting): (continued)

Cost of inventories recognised as expenses,

5. RAETAE (BH) (&)
AEBBRATFIE, (F18) To4E1T

bR (Bt A) THIEBRER : (@

RSN EFERE

2023

—_=—=

RMB'000
ARBTT

2022

-

RMB'000

ARBT T

including: B85 1,835,698 1,850,068
- Reversal of impairment of inventories, net ~ —77 & 8l (& # [0 $ 28 (148) (4,986)
Depreciation and amortisation Hr & K o 558,491 604,263
Impairment of trade receivables FEWE 5 RIBRE 20,279 7,014
Impairment of prepayments and other FET TRIB K L fh FE WL R IE
receivables B 1,289 1,928
Impairment of property, plant and equipment  #) 3 « Bk = K 5% & BB 5,308 15,078
Impairment of investment properties KREYERE - 2,263
Impairment of right-of-use assets EREEERE 23,957 38,414
Impairment of goodwill R E 16,277 38,604
Foreign exchange differences, net EREREFE 629 37,583
Losses on disposal of property, plant and HEME- -BERZEUR
equipment and investment properties, net REYENEEFE 2,796 2,158
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary (note 35) HENB AN
(PI5¥35) - (1,310)
Auditor's remuneration Z BN & 3,166 3,270
Direct operating expenses arising from BINKBEMEREEENE
rental-earning investment properties RSz 24,600 1,533
* As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the Group had no forfeited * N B =FRIZBITFESZ

*¥

contributions available to reduce its existing level of contributions
to the retirement benefit schemes in future years.

Minimum lease payments of the Group include pre-determined

>

rental payments and minimum guaranteed rental payments for
lease agreements without contingent rental payments.

Contingent lease payments are calculated based on a percentage of

XK

the relevant financial performance of the tenants pursuant to the

rental agreements.

A=+—H ' x&EELETHN
ERWHMU M R R EEEE
H 37 B B9 2R IR 43 7 51 8 it Rk

Fo

AEBREBEESGEETHER
REBEEERZETE 2 NAEEH

RIEHEE -

HAEETHRBAERZENNE
ZIRBRBRAMBRES TR

izl
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
S EMBRRME (R

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE_Z-_=F+"A=+—HIFFE

6.  FINANCE INCOME/(COSTS) 6. RABUWA ~ (BEZs)

2023 2022
=% B

RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTRT

Finance income BE A
Bank interest income RITHIE WA 30,612 30,979
Gain on redemption of financial assets at ~ BBEIIZA AEEE
fair value through profit or loss BHEFHFABRZ
TS EW T 1,204 1,450

Change of fair value of financial assets at AR BE=EHHEH)
fair value through profit or loss (note 23)  FFABHZ ETMEEZ

R EEES FPEE23) 829 1,151

Finance income on the net investments in BB SR B FEEAIRIE WA
subleases (note 13(g)) (FF5E13(q)) 22,722 26,519
55,367 60,099

Finance costs BB A

Interest on lease liabilities (note 13(b)) HEaENFE FFsE13(0b)) (297,625) (344,084)

Interest on interest-bearing bank loans and st EIRITEM R EMMBERZ
other borrowings B (200,492) (114,925)
(498,117) (459,009)
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fr o MR (R

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -_=F+_"_A=+—HItFE

7. DIRECTORS', CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND SENIOR
EXECUTIVES' EMOLUMENTS

Directors' and chief executive's remuneration for the year, disclosed
pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1) of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of
Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

7. EE -HREATERSHKITH
AEM=

RELTRAN -BFELATKMNE
383FKR AT IBEEEMmEAR)
ROIB 2R KBENESRERENTE
FEEMEMT :

2023 2022

—F_= -
RMB'000 RMB'000
AREBTT ARETT
Fees ik 1,296 1,236
Other emoluments H il 9,396 9,146
10,692 10,382

(a)  Independent non-executive directors () WIUIEHITESE
The fees and other emoluments paid to independent non- FARABBILIFEFRATEELZN
executive directors during the year were as follows: S REMMENT -

Other
Fees emoluments Total
e Hithi & #act
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AE¥TRT AR®TRT AR®TRT
2023 —E”=

Dato’ Fu Ah Kiow EBHERH 216 8 224
Yau Ming Kim, Robert el 216 8 224
Datuk Koong Lin Loong EEICRE 216 8 224
648 24 672

2022 TR CHE
Dato' Fu Ah Kiow EEHEG 206 8 214
Yau Ming Kim, Robert B33 206 8 214
Datuk Koong Lin Loong ZBILLH 206 8 214
618 24 642

There were no other emoluments payable to the
independent non-executive directors for the year ended 31

December 2023 (2022: nil).

BE_T_=F+"A=+

—HEFETRAMENST
BUFATEZENHE (CF
it S I
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
SFaMFHmREE (8

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE_Z-_=F+"A=+—HIFFE

7.  DIRECTORS', CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND SENIOR 7. EE -BEVTERSHRITH
EXECUTIVES' EMOLUMENTS (continued) AEBE (@)

(o)  Executive directors, non-executive directors and the b)) BITEZ -IERTEERE
chief executive ERITE

Salaries,
allowances Pension
and other  Discretionary scheme
benefits bonuses  contributions Total

A BihE

R At RRTEAL Rl fE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

AEBBTRT ARBTR ARETR ARETR

2023 —EC=E
Executive directors: HOIEE:
Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem R EEER 216 3,008 - - 3,224
Juliana Cheng San San S A 216 2,398 460 - 3,074
432 5,406 460 - 6,298
Non-executive director: FHTES !
Dato’ Sri Dr. Hou Kok Chung SEHEMEBEL 216 8 - - 224
Chief executive: BEHTE:
Zhou Jia (note) Az () - 2,320 1,085 93 3,498
648 7,734 1,545 93 10,020

190 2023 ANNUAL REPORT SR
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -_=F+_"_A=+—HItFE

7. DIRECTORS', CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND SENIOR
EXECUTIVES' EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(b) Executive directors, non-executive directors and the
chief executive (continued)

EF BRERITERSRITH
AEME (B

(b)

PITEF FATEFERE
FHITE (8

Salaries,
allowances Pension
and other Discretionary scheme
Fees benefits bonuses contributions Total
) BHRE
ik &ﬁmw WIETEAL SRR a5t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETR AR&T:®
2022 S
Executive directors: HOIEE !
Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem R EEER 206 3,008 - - 3214
Juliana Cheng San San SE I A 206 2392 354 - 2,952
412 5,400 354 - 6,166
Non-executive director: FHTES !
Dato' Sri Dr. Hou Kok Chung SEHEAEBEL 206 8 = = 214
Chief executive: BEHTE:
Zhou Jia (note) Bz () - 2,406 865 89 3,360
618 7814 1,219 89 9,740

Note: Appointed as chief executive officer on 1 July 2022.

No emoluments were paid by the Group to any directors
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office during the year ended 31
December 2023 (2022: nil).

There was no arrangement under which any directors or the
chief executive waived or agreed to waive any remuneration
during the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: nil).

Mzt RZE-__F+tHA—HE
EEAEREINTE

BE_T_=Z—F+"F=+
—BIEFE  ~ERLEOE
AEEIMEFRRIIE
MAXEBEINMAEERE
RBEABRREE CF
“—TFEI\o

BEE_Z_=F#+"H=+
—HIEFEEBREMRTMES
HEFEHTEREXEREK
E (A BN =M E B E A 2 HE

(O —— S
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
S EMBRRME (R

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE_Z-_=F+"A=+—HIFFE

7. DIRECTORS', CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND SENIOR 7. B -BREWTERSHRITH
EXECUTIVES' EMOLUMENTS (continued) AEE (&)
()  Five highest paid employees () IZBEEHMES
The five highest paid employees during the year included FRNELRSHNEESE
two (2022: two) executive directors and one (2022: one) ML (CE - _F . WL AT
chief executive officer, details of whose remuneration are EENR—% (CEZF . —
set out above. Details of the remuneration for the year of %) HEHTE  HiNEsE15
the remaining two (2022: two) highest paid employees who FNEX - FRNHEEGMS (&
are neither a director nor chief executive of the Company BT F MK R E
are as follows: 8 (REMIEARBESE T
FEEHTE) NMEFBU
T

2023 2022
—$-=F T -

S e—

RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTRT AREBTRE

Salaries and other emoluments e REMBNE 3,372 4,487
Discretionary bonuses 1B {EAT 1,089 660
Pension scheme contributions RIREETEIHRR 152 88

4,613 5,235
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -_=F+_"_A=+—HItFE

7. DIRECTORS', CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND SENIOR 7. EXZ -BERTERSHRITH
EXECUTIVES' EMOLUMENTS (continued) ABBE (&)
()  Five highest paid employees (continued) () IZBEEHMES @)
The number of non-director and non-chief executive MENFUTHENRE S H
highest paid employees whose remuneration fell within the MEE (LIFESF > KIFEE
following bands is as follows: BITE) WABWT :

Number of employees

EBEAZ

2023 2022
—— =

—_——

HK$1,500,000 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,00078 7T & 2,000,00078 7T
(equivalent to RMB1,352,000 (FBZE I AR #1,352,0007T
to RMB 1,802,000 (2022: ZF AR #51,802,0007T (Z=
RMB 1,340,000 to RMB1,787,000)) — 4 AE®1,340,0007T
ZF AR #£1,787,0007T) ) 1 -
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7 75 2 2,500,00078 75
(equivalent to RMB1,802,001 (FBZE IR ARK11,802,0017T
to RMB2,253,000 (2022: Z= AR #2,253,0007T (Z &
RMB1,787,001 to RMB2,233,000)) & AK1,787,0017T
Z= AR #2,233,0007T)) - -
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 7 71 2 3,000,00078 75
(equivalent to RMB2,253,001 (FBER AR 12,253,0017T
to RMB2,703,000 (2022: F= AR #§2,703,00075 (Z 2
RMB2,233,001 to RMB2,680,000)) —ZHF  AK®2,233,0017T
Z AR #2,680,0007T) ) - 1
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,00178 75 23,500,000 7T
(equivalent to RMB2,703,001 (FBER AE12,703,0017T
to RMB3,154,000 (2022: ZE AR #3,154,00070 (Z =&
RMB2,680,001 to RMB3,126,000)) Z—ZHF : AE™2,680,0017T
ZF AR #3,126,0007T) ) 1 1
2 2
In the opinion of the directors, the Group has no key BEERA BREXFIIRENE
management personnel (as defined in IAS 24 Related Party EhAZESHFMEEIN K
Disclosures) other than the directors and the five highest ERITETEZEEAS (&
paid employees as disclosed above. R EIPR & 5t 22 Al 5524 5% BE Bk

T3 ER) ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE_Z-_=F+"A=+—HIFFE

INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT)

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis on the
assessable profits arising in or derived from the tax jurisdictions in
which members of the Group are domiciled and operate.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands and
the British Virgin Islands, the Group is not subject to any income
tax in the Cayman Islands and the British Virgin Islands.

Under the relevant PRC income tax regulations, except for a certain
preferential treatment available to certain PRC subsidiaries and the
joint venture of the Group, the PRC companies of the Group are
subject to corporate income tax at a rate of 25% (2022: 25%) on
their respective taxable income. During the year, three (2022: three)
PRC entities of the Group obtained approval from the relevant PRC
tax authorities and were entitled to a preferential corporate income
tax rate of 150%.

Malaysia profits tax has been provided at the rate of 24% (2022:
24%) on its taxable income.

No provision for Hong Kong, Singapore and Laos profits has been
made for the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, as the
Group had no assessable profits arising in Hong Kong, Singapore
and Laos for these years.

An analysis of income tax expense/(credit) is as follows:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FRiGIAX ~ (%)
AEBEARHENE AT EHAZFRE
REENRBFEERBFIEESE
SHERRFE  REREEHW
FRiS#i -

BREREHBEREBELEENHR
AR ER  AEBBATHERS
T B R L B SR RIFT ISR ©

RIBHEE P EFTSRER  BRAE
BETHRENBLABEREE BER
EEETEEFEIN AEEHNF
EABHEMMES BNEZRRU
A5 (TEBEZ T 25%0) =X
B EMBR FER  AEB =K
(CEIZTHF =) HEHEREE
BRETPERBEEINERESEE
FT 1873 215004874 o

BRATAER IR EERRULA
89240 (ZTBZ 4 : 24%) Kt
Ro

HRAERRBEE S _=—Fx_
- _H+_B=+—BLEEEL
EEREBEB N REBNER
WAE W ERZEFENET A
FTIN R E HRF B ST BE 6 o

FRiSMf (%) 2HmT :

2023 2022
—_E_= B2
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET T ARET T
(restated)
(C==pl)
Current income tax KEAFT1SHR 89,367 51,575
Deferred tax (note 19) EIEFRIE (FY5E19) (73,222) (79,313)
16,145 (27,738)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
fr o MR (R

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -_=F+_"_A=+—HItFE

8. INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT) (continued)

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit/(loss)
before tax at the statutory rates for the countries (or jurisdictions)
in which the Company and the majority of its subsidiaries are
domiciled to the tax expense at the effective tax rates, and a
reconciliation of the applicable rates (i.e., the statutory tax rates) to
the effective tax rates, are as follows:

FRIGIRFESZ (%) (&)

ERAERB REKRE DM B AT K
BRERR (REERE) BEER
KA ENRAFE (BB 2BA
MIERZ HRBRRE A EHRIE
FSZBIH AR URBRAMREK BUEE
MK BMERMERAHRMT :

British
Hong Cayman Virgin
Kong Singapore Islands Malaysia Laos PRC
&% R ReHE BRAESR k] HE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ABBFR % ARBTR % ARBTR ABBFR ABBFR % ARBTR % ARETR
2003 a2
(Los)Proft before tax i (58 /1E (803) 19 (170,646) (360) 35170 27582 122053 86,647
Taxat the statutory tax et~ BARIEH ENHE (132) 164 (156) 170 - - - - 8441 20 550 200 55513 250 64216 741
Taxeffect of peferentil tax - BERENRHLE
rates - - - - - - - - - - - - (11,500) (52)  (1,500) (133)
Profits and losses atrioutable.  —FAELLREE
to.a joint venture and NARERARER
associates (36) 45 - - - - - - - - - - (592) @) (%) (69)
Toxlossesand temporary ~ HARBSINRBEER
differences not recognised ~~ EEEER - - 156 (17.0) - - - - (1,754) (50) - - (7,264) (33)  (8862) (102)
Tax losses previously THRIMACAEY
recognised, now reversed HEESE - - - - - - - - - - - - 1367 06 1367 16
Utilsation of tax loss BAARREINRE
previously not recognised | - - - - - - - - - - (550) (200)  (32.946) (148) (33,496 (38.7)
Expenses not deductible TARMEENREN
for tax B 168 (209) - - - - - - - - - R P FE) 57 12898 149
Effectof withholding taxon ~ AEETERELT
the distributable profts NARNENEIR
of the Group's PRC e
subsidiaries - - - - - - - - - - - - 1046 05 1046 12
Adjustmentsinrespectof  FLEABEDERE
current tax of previous frHMER
periods - - - - - - - - (1,146) (33) - - 2417) (11) (3,563) (1)
Tax charge for the year REERBRH - - - - - - - - 5541 15.8 - - 10604 48 16145 186
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
SFaMFHmREE (8

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE_ZT_=F+_BA=+—HI-FE

. A
8.  INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT) (continued) 8. FRiEMEX (&%) (&)
British.
Cayman Virgin
Singapore [slands a Malaysia
s mEH R BRAED
RMB1000 0 / RMBO 0
% ARETR h NEEFT N ) T % )?”?w
m - S
(Loss)[Profit before tax i (58) /718 (37251) (908) (30092) (2078) 21429 4357 (310886) (#13161)
Taxat the statutory taxrate.  HAEIEHENRE (6245) 165 (154) 170 - - - - 5831 10 Ll 00 () B0 (7419 187
Taxeffectof preferentel ~ EBERENHRBHE
tax rates B - B - B - B - B - B - (7.868) 25 (7.868) 19
Profits and losses —FRELEREEAT
attributable to a joint L ARER
venture and associates (1) - - - - - - - - - - - 840 (03) 83 (02)
Taxlosses and temporay —~ HARDERESER
differences not recognised ~ EEEE - - 154 (170) - - - - 1261 52 - - 45848 (147 4783 i}
Tax losses previously FARIMRCEEN
recognised, now HESE
reversed B - B - B - B - B - B - 1678 (05) 1678 (04)
Utisation of ta loss BRKAREINGE
previously not [z
recognised - - - - - - - - - - (87) (200 (8006) 26 (8877) 2
Expenses not deductible for R BAEIRENET
tax 6262 (165) - - - - - - - - - - 11,860 (39) 18122 (44)

Hfectof withholding tax ~~ REBTERBAT

on the distrbutable NARHENEIR

profits of the Group's %4

PRC subsidiaries = o = - - - - - - - B B (1] B (1] -
Adjustments in respectof  SEBEIERENERE

aurent taxof previous  fEHEVEE

periods - > s - B - - - (233) (19) = = (1,092) 04 (1325) 03

Tox charge[credt) forthe ~ AEEREZH/ (£%)

year [restated) (=5 - - - - - - - - 6859 282 - - (34597) 11 (27738) 67
The share of tax attributable to the joint venture and associates EECELRBMENTIEGHRIEDY
amounting to RMB1,629,000 (2022: RMB1,143,000) and A& AR #1,629,000c (ZE -
RMB4,871,000 (2022: RMB(966,000)), respectively, is included in F: AR%1,143,00070) R AR
“Share of profits and losses of a joint venture and associates” in the 4,871,000 (CE-_—&F : AE#¥
consolidated statement of profit or loss. (966,000)70) ERtraEm RN I EL
BECERBMERTFIEKREBREIA

iR

9.  DIVIDEND 9. KR

2023 2022

= =S

—_—— — = ——

RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTRT ARBTT

Interim dividend paid of RMB0.01 (2022: nil) BRI EIR B SR I ER A

per ordinary share R0t (CEZZF . B) 26,345 -
The board of directors has resolved not to declare any final dividend BEEEERRATEMBE_S _=
for the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: nil). The Company F+ZB=+—HIEFESIKEM
declared and paid an interim dividend of RMBO0.01 (2022: nil) in REKE (CEZ_F:F) cKAT
cash per share. MREERAKNHPHAKRESEK A

R#001T (CE_—F:F) o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
fr o MR (R

10.

EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The calculation of the basic earnings/(loss) per share amount is
based on the profit/(loss) for the year attributable to ordinary
equity holders of the Company, and the weighted average number

of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue
during the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per share are

based on:

Earnings/(Loss)

Profit/(loss) attributable to ordinary
equity holders of the Company,
used in the basic and diluted
earnings/(loss) per share calculation

B (&18)

ARt EERER B ERT
/ (B18) NARB BEERE
mRA ANBGFE (B18)

10.

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -_=F+_"_A=+—HItFE

FATEEREDFA ARG
skEF  (Fi8)
SREXEF/ (58 HREER
ART EER R E AR
/(518 R ERERTEBRM
BT LY

RBE_ZE_=Fr_FT__
+ZRB=+—HBLFE - AERAL
mERTEEBEERER-

SREAREERN, (BB M
HR\E THIER -

2023 2022
ZEI=H
RMB'000 RMB'000

ARET T
(restated)
C<==e7l))

AR®TT

66,413 (383,599)

Shares
Weighted average number of ordinary shares FER st EERE AR EEF|

in issue during the year used in the basic

and diluted earnings/(loss) per share
calculation

/(B8 NERBRITEE
BRI 8
2,634,532 2,634,532
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
SFaMFHmREE (8

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE_Z-_=F+"A=+—HIFFE

11.  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 11.

i ER B

Land and Leasehold Equipment and Construction
buildings improvements Motor vehicles fixtures in progress Total
T RIEF HENELE AE REREE EETRE L
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMBI000 RMB'000 RMBI000
AEBTFT ARBTT AEBTFT ARBTT AEBFT AEBTFT
At 1 January 2022 St 2= R =|
Cost % 2713122 1,635,246 18,847 391,926 766,283 5525424
Accumulated depreciation and Rt ERFI{E
impairment (556,806) (1,429,876) (16127) (288,280) (376) (2,291,465)
Net book amount REFE 2156316 205370 2720 103,646 765,907 3,233,959
Year ended 31 December 2022 HE_B=Z
TZA=+-ALEE
Opening net book amount HRERE 2,156,316 205370 2720 103,646 765907 333,959
Additions AR - 64,489 933 8171 14022 87,615
Transfers =2 - 37,719 - b (37,998) -
Disposals HE - (1,440) (183) (2.904) = (4527)
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 35) H&—FHBAR (Hizk3s) - - - (1362) - (1362)
Reclassified to assets held for sale ENEZFAFENEE
(note 25) (GE) (220367) - - - - (220367)
Depreciation & (68,550) (84,008) (572 (21,170 - (174300)
Impairment e (11,400 (1,323) (21) (2,334) - (15,078)
Closing net book amount BRREFE 1,855,999 220,807 2877 84,304 741933 2,905940
At 31 December 2022 and ~ KZBZZ
1 January 2023 +ZR=+-8Ak
Z£-=5-A-H
Cost % 2,387,221 1,565,284 17,532 362,794 742,309 5,075,140
Accumulated depreciation and ~ REHT ERF{E
impairment (531222) (1,344,477) (14,655) (278470) (376) (2,169,200
Net book amount REFE 1,855,999 220,807 2877 84,324 741933 2,905,940
Year ended 31 December 2023 HE_B-=4
TZA=+-ALEE
Opening net book amount HRERE 1,855,999 220,807 2877 84,324 741933 2,905,940
Additions AR - 54,506 7 6,161 17,389 78153
Transfers 22 - 17,733 - 189 (17,922) -
Transfer from HERENE
Investment properties - 368 - 2,657 - 3,025
Disposals HE - (443) ) (3,753) = (4,239)
Depreciation & (62,168) (92,445) (591) (15,175) = (170379)
Impairment A - (2671) (18) (611) (2,008) (5,308)
Closing net book amount HRREFE 1,793,831 197,945 2232 73792 739392 2,807,192
As at 31 December 2023 RZEZ=&
== Fl
Cost (% 2,387,221 1540320 16,584 346070 741,776 5031971
Accumulated depreciation and ~ REHF ERF{E
impairment (593,390) (1,342,375) (14352) (272.278) (2,384) (2.224779)
Closing net book amount BRREEE 1,793,831 197,945 223 73,792 739,392 2,807,192
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#r o MBRRMEE (47)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE_ET_=F+_FA=+—HItEFE

11.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)
All of the Group's land and buildings are located in the PRC.

Pursuant to the Group's sale and purchase agreement with an
independent third party during the year ended 31 December 2022
to dispose certain properties owned by Qingdao No.1 Parkson Co.,
Ltd. (the "Disposal”), a subsidiary of the Company, the management
has written down the net book value of the related property, plant
and equipment in the Disposal to its proposed selling price and
recorded an impairment loss of RMB11,400,000 during the year
ended 31 December 2022.

As at 31 December 2023, in consideration that the business of one
subsidiary (2022: two subsidiaries) of the Group had been loss
making in recent years and it was not considered probable that
profits would be available in the foreseeable future, an impairment
loss of RMB5,308,000 (2022: RMB3,678,000) was recognised for
property, plant and equipment of this subsidiary in 2023.

As at 31 December 2023, the buildings with a net carrying amount
of approximately RMB1,370,590,000 (2022: RMB1,415,014,000)
were pledged to secure the Group's bank loans (note 29).

Impairment testing of property, plant and equipment

The recoverable amount of each cash-generating unit has been
determined based on a value in use calculation using cash flow
projections based on financial budgets covering a five-year period
approved by the executive directors. The pre-tax discount rate
applied to the cash flow projections is 14.0% (2022: 14.0%). Cash
flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using a growth
rate of 2.0% (2022: 2.0%), which was the same as the long-term
average growth rate of the industry.

11.

ME-BER&HE (&)

REBMBE LM REBFHMURF
] o
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B=1t—HLFERBIF=FH
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EFE)FJIINEERZE B8
BE MR EEEFRNERY =
BERKENEREFEEHEES
EE ’ﬁtﬁAESzi:E::EJF_E
—t+—HIEFERBREBEAR
#£11,400,0007T °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
S MBRRMEE (6F)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE_ZT_=F+_BA=+—HI-FE

11.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

Key assumptions used in the value in use calculation

The following describes the key assumptions of the cash flow

projections:

Revenue:

Gross margin:

Operating expenses:

Discount rates:

The bases used to determine the future
earnings are historical sales and average
expected growth rates of the retail market in
the PRC.

Gross margins are based on the average
gross margins achieved in the past few
years immediately before the budget
year, increased for expected efficiency
improvements, and expected market
development.

The bases used to determine the values
assigned are the cost of inventories
purchased for resale, staff costs, depreciation
and amortisation and other operating
expenses. The value assigned to the key
assumption reflects past experience and
management's commitment to maintain the
operating expenses to an acceptable level.

Discount rates reflect management's
estimate of specific risks relating to the
relevant units.

Sensitivity to changes in assumptions

With regard to the assessment of values in use of property,
plant and equipment of the respective cash-generating units,
management believes that no reasonably possible change in any of
the above key assumptions would cause the carrying amounts of
property, plant and equipment of the relevant units to materially
exceed their recoverable amounts.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
fr o MR (R

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -_=F+_"_A=+—HItFE

12.  INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 12. IREYE

2023 2022
—— = B —

—_—— —

RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBFRT AREBTRE

As at 31 December: R+=-B=+—8":

Cost DN 683,036 648,726

Accumulated depreciation and impairment R sHITE KRE (134,568) (109,968)

Net carrying amount IREHE 548,468 538,758
A reconciliation of the net carrying amount of investment FREEYENEEDSENRWOT

properties during the year is as follows:

2023 2022
—— = S —

—_—— —

RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTFRT AREBTRE

As at 1 January K—B—H 538,758 538,582
Additions A 38,470 59,807
Disposals HE (1,135) (4,787)
Reclassified to assets held for sale (note 25) BEDIBEIFAGFENEE

(3 5E25) - (43,721)
Depreciation e (24,600) (8,860)
Transferred to owner-occupied properties A B A% (3,025) -
Impairment B - (2,263)
As at 31 December R+=ZB=+—H 548,468 538,758

PARKSON RETAIL GROUP LIMITED HREE#£mEERA" 201



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
S MBRRMEE (6F)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE_Z-_=F+"A=+—HIFFE

12.

202

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

The Group's investment properties were revalued at approximately
RMB3,200,000,000 (2022: RMB3,200,000,000) on an open
market, existing use basis on 31 December 2023 by the Group.
The investment properties are all situated in the PRC, and either
under renovation or leased to third parties under operating leases,
further summary details of which are included in note 13 to the
consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 December 2023, the building with a net carrying amount
of approximately RMB544,734,000 (2022: RMB534,870,000) was
pledged to secure the Company's bank loans (note 29).

Pursuant to the Group's sale and purchase agreement with an
independent third party during the year ended 31 December 2022
to dispose certain investment properties owned by Qingdao No.1
Parkson Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the Company, the management
has written down the net book value of the related investment
properties in the Disposal to its proposed selling price and recorded
an impairment loss of RMB2,263,000 during the year ended 31
December 2022.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#r o MBRRMEE (47)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -_=F+_"_A=+—HItFE

13-

LEASES 13.
The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for various items of property and
other equipment used in its operations. Leases of property generally
have lease terms between 2 and 20 years. Other equipment
generally has lease terms of 12 months or less and/or is individually
of low value. There are several lease contracts that include variable
lease payments, which are further disclosed below.

HE

TEBEREBA
AERMEEFEERAANEY
EFREMREBEREHESN -YE
HEREEE D25 205F - Hfths
BHEABRER12EAHUNKR,
HEHNEERE BN EEEHNE
BAEEEMM FHER TXE—

(a) Right-of-use assets

The carrying amounts of the Group's right-of-use assets and
the movements during the year are as follows:

Rl

@ RAREE

AEEERAREENKREE
M FEREEFHmT :

Leasehold
land

HE L
RMB'000
ARETT

Property

YES
RMB'000

AREFRT

Total

et
RMB'000
ARETR

As at 1 January 2022 WZ&E-__F#—HF—H 354,563 2,663,892 3,018,455
Additions arising from new leases ~ HIEEELNAE = 127,907 127,907
Depreciation charged during the year £ER#rEE T H (13,3312) (402,851) (416,163)
Decrease arising from lease term HEERELEENRLD

modification = (164,788) (164,788)
Decrease arising from lease term HEHFERE EEERRD

termination = (1,929) (1,929)
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 35) HE—RWEAR (fizE3s) = (7,655) (7,655)
Decrease arising from subleases BHEELENRD - (38,677) (38,677)
Impairment provided for the year — FERREREE - (38,414) (38,414)
As at 31 December 2022 and W_E__#+_A=+—H

1 January 2023 RZZEZ=%—H—H 341,251 2,137,485 2,478,736
Additions arising from new leases ~ HEEELENARE - 72,755 72,755
Depreciation charged during the year FERITE S (13,312) (346,073) (359,385)
Decrease arising from lease term BERTERELENR D

modification - (69,843) (69,843)
Decrease arising from subleases EREELENRLD - (16,786) (16,786)
Impairment provided for the year FRREBEEE - (23,957) (23,957)
As at 31 December 2023 RZIEZ=F+"FA=+—H 327,939 1,753,581 2,081,520
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
S MBRRMEE (6F)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE_ZT_=F+_BA=+—HI-FE

13.  LEASES (continued) 13. #HE (@)
The Group as a lessee (continued) REBEAEHEAN (B
(a)  Right-of-use assets (continued) (a) (EHEEE (&)
Lump sum payments were made upfront to acquire the B#EE ANESHERI2ESS
leased land from owners with lease periods of 42 to 45 ENBEE LT MEE BN
years, and no ongoing payments will be made under the — RN BRAEREILE
terms of these land leases. T A B IR R AE A AT 5

As at 31 December 2023, the leasehold land of Beijing
Parkson with a net carrying amount of approximately
RMB318,494,000 (2022: RMB331,342,000) was pledged to
secure the Company's bank loans (note 29).

In consideration that the business of two (2022: three)
subsidiaries of the Group had been loss making in recent
years and it was not considered probable that profits would

IR

RIE2E_=F+"B=+—
B ItREREREFELSAA
R #5318,494,0007T (ZZE -
£ AR %8331,342,0007T) FIFH
BB ER > AARARIRT
ERIRHEER (Pek29) o

ZRIEFRAEEMR (T
TTTF I ZR) WEBARE

==

B8 BRI R RA KA

be available in the foreseeable future, an impairment loss of BEERN - WENERNZSE
RMB23,957,000 (2022: RMB38,414,000) was recognised for MR (CE__F:=%) M
right-of-use assets of these two (2022: three) subsidiaries BRABIZERAEEERTR

during the year. As at 31 December 2023, the recoverable
amounts of the related cash-generating units were nil
(2022: RMB238,133,000).

Impairment testing of right-of-use assets

The recoverable amount of each cash-generating unit has
been determined based on a value in use calculation using
cash flow projections based on financial budgets covering
a five-year period approved by the executive directors. The
pre-tax discount rate applied to the cash flow projections
is 14.0% (2022: 14.0%). Cash flows beyond the five-year
period are extrapolated using a growth rate of 2.0% (2022:
2.0%), which was the same as the long-term average
growth rate of the industry.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#r o MBRRMEE (47)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -_=F+_"A=+—HItFE

13. LEASES (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

(a)

Right-of-use assets (continued)

Key assumptions used in the value in use calculation

The following describes the key assumptions of the cash

flow projections:

Revenue:

Gross margin:

Operating expenses:

Discount rates:

The bases used to determine the
future earnings are historical sales
and average expected growth rates of
the retail market in the PRC.

Gross margins are based on the
average gross margins achieved
in the past few years immediately
before the budget year, increased for
expected efficiency improvements,
and expected market development.

The bases used to determine the
values assigned are the cost of
inventories purchased for resale, staff
costs, depreciation and amortisation,
rental expenses and other operating
expenses. The value assigned to
the key assumption reflects past
experience and management's
commitment to maintain the
operating expenses to an acceptable
level.

Discount rates reflect management's
estimate of specific risks relating to
the relevant units.

Sensitivity to changes in assumptions

With regard to the assessment of values in use of right-
of-use assets of the respective cash-generating units,
management believes that no reasonably possible change in
any of the above key assumptions would cause the carrying
amounts of right-of-use assets of the relevant units to
materially exceed their recoverable amounts.

13. #HE @&
REBELAEATAAN (B)
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REHEREE (B)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
S EMBRRME (R

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE_Z-_=F+"A=+—HIFFE

13.  LEASES (continued) 13. fE @)
The Group as a lessee (continued) FEBEAEEAN (@
(b)  Lease liabilities b) HESESE
The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements HEEENERERERNE
during the year are as follows: U -

2023 2022
—E-= B4

RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTRT ARBTT

As at 1 January R—B—H 3,499,654 3,931,372
Additions arising from new leases HEEEENRE 72,755 109,815
Accretion of interest recognised FRREIRF] S IE 0
during the year (note 6) (ffFs6) 297,625 344,084
COVID-19 related rent concessions from 3R B Hi 78 A BICOVID-19
lessors HEE SRR - (57,205)
Payments (NEN (736,886) (639,140)
Decrease arising from lease term M ERRIE R E LR
modification (117,620) (179,524)
Decrease arising from lease term HEEHKRIEESRR D
termination - (10,240)
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 35) HE—RHHEAE
(H$5E35) - (9,267)
Exchange realignment bE A EE 2,035 9,759
As at 31 December K+ZA=+—H 3,017,563 3,499,654
Analysed into: DU -
- Current portion —BNERER 656,677 645,952
- Non-current portion —JEBPHREE 3 2,360,886 2,853,702
3,017,563 3,499,654
The maturity of analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in HESGEYTWIBHBR
note 38.5 to the consolidated financial statements. NI AR R M 5E38.59F
Zo
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
sr o MERERMGEE (R)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -_=F+_"_A=+—HItFE

13.  LEASES (continued) 13. #HE @
The Group as a lessee (continued) FEBREAEEAN (@
(c)  Amounts recognised in profit or loss (c)  FIEmERHIEEE
The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to leases RERFPEAEEBNEZE
are as follows: W

2023 2022
—EZ= —ECF

RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTRT ARBTT

Interest on lease liabilities HEEENH R 297,625 344,084
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets B E EMITE E 359,385 416,164
Expense relating to short-term leases BRI ENAS 22,172 14,401
Variable lease payments not included in W EFF AR ESGEHEDN
the measurement of lease liabilities Al E 67,960 58,018
COVID-19-related rent concessions from 2% B 8 A AICOVID-19
lessors TR EE R - (57,205)
Impairment of right-of-use assets ERESERE (23,957) (38,414)
723,185 737,048
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
S EMBRRME (R

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE_Z-_=F+"A=+—HIFFE

13.  LEASES (continued) 13. #HE @
The Group as a lessee (continued) FEBEAEEAN (@
(d)  Variable lease payments (d)  EEHAENL
The Group leased a number of the retail stores which AEBHEHFZEEER  HAp
contain variable lease payment terms that are based on the BEEREKERZEENE
Group's turnover or profit before tax generated from the =W ELERRATF BN
retail stores. There are also minimum annual base rental AE#EENRER - ZEMH
arrangements for these leases. The following provides EnERBFERELAEER
information on the Group's variable lease payments, B TXIREBEEMAEEE
including the magnitude in relation to fixed payments: HEMRPNER > gFHRE T
B REER .

Fixed Variable
PEMUEIS payments Total

BIEMR  AEIR a5t

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREBTRT AR®TR AR®TR

2023 —ZE-=
Fixed rent EEHE 313,845 - 313,845
Variable rent with minimum payment &8 REI R EHES 403,258 25,715 428,973
Variable rent only ErEHE - 42,245 42,245
717,103 67,960 785,063
2022 —ETTF
Fixed rent EE & 262,692 - 262,692
Variable rent with minimum payment 278 R{ERBN I &EHE & 441957 21,050 463,007
Variable rent only EEp=bickea = 36,968 36,968
704,649 58,018 762,667
(e) Total cash outflow (e)  EZmHAEEE
The total cash outflow for leases included in the SAGEREESERERFPHNAE
consolidated statement of cash flows is as follows: ERSMHARREN T ¢

2023 2022

—_— —_—— — ) — =—

— T —— — e ——

RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTT

Within operating activities KEEHR 100,356 45,719
Within financing activities EEEN 736,886 639,140
837,242 684,859
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#r o MBRRMEE (47)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -_=F+_"_A=+—HItFE

13.  LEASES (continued) 13. & @
The Group as a lessor TEBREALHBEA
The Group leases its investment properties (note 12) and right- REBREKEHEYMEEER
of-use assets in the PRC under operating lease or finance lease BEFEBEEEKREYE (ME12)
arrangements, with leases negotiated for terms ranging from 1 to RERBHEEE MEmMNMEEBENF
15 years. The terms of the leases generally require the tenants to 1E15F - HERFBETERHELA X
pay security deposits and provide for periodic rent adjustments ﬁﬁ*’““:é IR ERNIRTH R
according to the then prevailing market conditions. ET RS AR o
(f) Operating leases (n AAEHE
Rental income recognised by the Group during the year KREBENERNESNES W
was RMB640,771,000 (2022: RMB372,616,000), details of A# AR #640,771,0007T (Z
which are included in note 5 to the consolidated financial T "4 . AR¥372,616,000
statements. 7o) O HBERGEEMBRER
I}ﬁu£5°
As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the undiscounted fixed ATEBE T _FRER T
lease payments receivable by the Group in future periods -I-_E_-f- H> REBERK
under non-cancellable operating leases with its tenants are REEBEAERLRNAT
as follows: BHKEHEERWBBRITIR

BEHEMRMT

2023 2022
—— = e —

—_—— — = ——

RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBFRT AREBTRE

Within one year — &R 488,599 338,443
After one year but within two years —FBRERRWEAN 428,759 238,727
After two years but within three years MEBER=ZFR 330,693 135,547
After three years but within four years —FEEREFERN 261,511 63,243
After four years but within five years MEBERAEER 245,552 20,241
After five years EEE 1,145,124 54,512
2,900,238 850,713
In addition to the above, contingent lease payments are bR SRt o > s AR E IR
calculated based on a percentage of the relevant financial RIEEEEE RS LHEAW
performance of the tenants pursuant to the relevant rental MHEMBEENE -89
agreements. st&o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
S EMBRRME (R

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE_Z-_=F+"A=+—HIFFE

13.  LEASES (continued) 13. & @
The Group as a lessor (continued) FEBREALBA @
(g)  Finance leases 9 HEHE
The carrying amount of net investments in the subleases EHEREFENRAEERK
and the movements during the year are as follows: FREEWT -

2023 2022

—=—= —E=——

— T —— e

RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTRT ARBTT

As at 1 January R—B—H 282,460 292,597
Additions arising from new leases HEEEENRE 35,060 39,568
Accretion of interest recognised FRREIRF] S IE 0
during the year (note 6) (ffFs6) 22,722 26,519
Decrease arising from lease term HAEBREREELERNF L
modification (4,799) (2,382)
Proceeds from subleases iR ERrEIE (94,177) (73,842)
As at 31 December “+—ZB=+—H 241,266 282,460
Analysed into: DU -
- Current portion (note 22) —BIHAER 3 (Pd5E22) 102,831 88,180
- Non-current portion (note 18) —3JERNERER > (Ff¥EE18) 138,435 194,280
241,266 282,460
Net investments in the subleases represent net investments HIHEKX B FEIEAERE
in the leases by the Group as an intermediate lessor, among ABAENHBANEEREZF
which a long-term portion of RMB138,435,000 (2022: B aEsTAHEMBEENR
RMB194,280,000) was included in other assets and a short- 28 A R #5138,435,00070 (=
term portion of RMB102,831,000 (2022: RMB88,180,000) =~ 4 . AR 194,280,000
was included in prepayments and other receivables. 70) Rt ABMNRERAEM

FEWFIBAI R ER R 5 A R
102,831,00070 (ZEZZ"4F : A
FR #588,180,0007T) ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#r o MBRRMEE (47)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -_=F+_"_A=+—HItFE

13.  LEASES (continued) 13. #HE @
The Group as a lessor (continued) FEBREAHBA @
(g)  Finance leases (continued) lg) HEHE (#E)
As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the undiscounted fixed ATE T —FRIE T F

TZR=t+—R ' FEERRK
REERBEAEBRRBAH

lease payments receivable by the Group in future periods
under non-cancellable finance leases with its tenants are as

follows: B ERERWBBRITIR
BIEHEEMRAT :

2023 2022

RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTFT AE®BFT

Within one year —FRN 117,446 107,979

After one year but within two years —FBERXWEA 87,584 92,515

After two years but within three years MEBBIR=ZFERN 46,636 77,804

After three years but within four years —FEEROEFRA 12,867 38,349

After four years but within five years MEBERAEFER 6,195 7,048

After five years LE® 2,089 6,355

272,817 330,050

In addition to the above, contingent lease payments are bR _ESCRRA SN s SRR E TR

calculated based on a percentage of the relevant financial RIEEMBEE RS 1ILHEA
performance of the tenants pursuant to the relevant rental HEMBEENE—BDL
agreements. &
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MBI RMEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE_Z-_=F+"A=+—HIFFE

14. GOODWILL

The major changes in the carrying amounts of goodwill for the
year ended 31 December 2023 result from the impairment losses
recognised for the underperforming cash generating units of
Jiangxi Parkson Retail Co., Ltd. (2022: Xi'an Lucky King Parkson

Plaza Co., Ltd.).

The net carrying amount of goodwill can be analysed as follows:

14. BHE
BHE_ T _—_F#+_-_HB=+—HL
FE HEREENEAREFHEMH
R IR R LN EEERAT
F ARITEFTRES

— = — —

—

BRRAR) ZRBERENREELEEM

FESBRY BB BFTE -

BENREFEDHOT

2023 2022
—E=HF B F
RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT AR#EF T
At the beginning of year F4)
Gross carrying amount EREAE(E 2,254,533 2,254,533
Accumulated impairment HEtRE (601,573) (562,969)
1,652,960 1,691,564
Net carrying amount at 1 January RN—B—HREREFE 1,652,960 1,691,564
Impairment losses B R E (16,277) (38,604)
Net carrying amount at 31 December R+-_B=+—HMEEFE 1,636,683 1,652,960
At the end of year FxR
Gross carrying amount BREAEE 2,254,533 2,254,533
Accumulated impairment HEtEE (617,850) (601,573)
1,636,683 1,652,960
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#r o MBRRMEE (47)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -_=F+_"_A=+—HItFE

14.

GOODWILL (continued)

The carrying amount of goodwill has been allocated to the
following cash-generating units:

14. B2

(&)
BENRAEEARETIRSE

B

2023 2022
= —E-
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000
M3 EE AREFT AR®FT
Jiangxi Parkson Retail Co., Ltd. VIAEBERAPUMEES
BRAF (i) 365,405 381,682
Asia Advancement International Limited B51SEIFEARA R (ii) 315,225 315,225
Parkson Retail Development Co., Ltd. BRmEZEERRAE (i) 297,097 297,097
Anshan Tianxing Parkson Shopping KRBT EBEYRL
Centre Co., Ltd. BIRAE (iv) 272,743 272,743
Nanning Brilliant Parkson Commercial A EE M0 B B BX o 22
Co., Ltd. BRAF v) 155,066 155,066
Xi'an Lucky King Parkson Plaza Co., Ltd. PFEZRI ZLHERES
BRRE (vi) 66,017 66,017
Mianyang Fulin Parkson Plaza Co., Ltd.  #%[% = R B B E 5
BRRAE (vii) 91,478 91,478
Shenyang Parkson Shopping Plaza Co., &[5 B RBEYIES
Ltd. BREAE (viii) - -
Lung Shing International Investment & [EREREIIREE %R
Development Company Limited ERAE (ix) 59,003 59,003
Parkson Credit Parkson Credit (x) 14,649 14,649
1,636,683 1,652,960

Notes:

B 5E

(1)

(if)

(iif)

(iv)

Jiangxi Parkson Retail Co., Ltd. principally engages in the operation
of one department store in Nanchang, the PRC.

Asia Advancement International Limited and its subsidiaries
principally engage in the operation of one department store in
Kunming, the PRC.

Parkson Retail Development Co., Ltd. principally engages in the
operation of three department stores in Beijing and Harbin, the
PRC.

Anshan Tianxing Parkson Shopping Centre Co., Ltd. principally
engages in the operation of one department store in Anshan, the
PRC.

Nanning Brilliant Parkson Commercial Co., Ltd. principally engages
in the operation of three department stores in Nanning, the PRC.

(i)

(i)

(iif)

(iv)

AABRRFURBEERRATE
ERTEEELE—RBEE-

BEREERERABDRENEAF
FERTEHERKE —RBE
IE o

BERFEERFRABIERS
BEItREkEEERLKE=XBE
Eo

BUREREBYROERAT
FTERFEZLUEE-—RBE
EO

HAERHAERBERRATDEE
RHEEERE=REEE

PARKSON RETAIL GROUP LIMITED BHESXEBBIRAAE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
S MBRRMEE (6F)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE_ZT_=F+_BA=+—HI-FE

14.

GOODWILL (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(vi) Xi'an Lucky King Parkson Plaza Co., Ltd. principally engages in the
operation of one department store in Xi'an, the PRC.

(vii) Mianyang Fulin Parkson Plaza Co., Ltd. principally engages in
the operation of two department stores and one supermarket in
Mianyang, the PRC.

(viii)  Shenyang Parkson Shopping Plaza Co., Ltd. principally engages in
the operation of one department store in Shenyang, the PRC.

(ix) Lung Shing International Investment & Development Company
Limited and its subsidiary principally engage in property
investment and holding in Anshan, the PRC.

(x) Parkson Credit principally engages in the provision of money

lending and credit services in Malaysia.

The recoverable amount of each cash-generating unit has been
determined based on a value in use calculation using cash flow
projections based on financial budgets covering a five-year period
approved by the executive directors. Apart from Parkson Credit, for
which the pre-tax discount rate applied to the cash flow projections
is 24.5% (2022: 24.5%), the pre-tax discount rate applied to the
cash flow projections is 14.0% (2022: 14.0%). Cash flows beyond
the five-year period are extrapolated using a growth rate of 2.0%
(2022: 2.0%), which was the same as the long-term average growth
rate of the industry.

Key assumptions used in the value in use calculation

The following describes the key assumptions of the cash flow
projections:

The bases used to determine the future
earnings are historical sales and average
expected growth rates of the retail market
and credit services in the PRC and Malaysia,
respectively.

Revenue:

Gross margin: Gross margins are based on the average
gross margins achieved in the past few
years immediately before the budget
year, increased for expected efficiency
improvements, and expected market

development.
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V) BRIEFERESARAFDIE
RABEEZEE—RBEEE-

Vi) REEHRABRESARARDEE
RABEGEEEMKBEER—
ENEL

EEERBYESARADEE
RPREGEE—RBEE-

(viii)

(i EEERRBEERARATKRE
MEABEEZRPEZLESEY
EREER-

(x) Parkson CreditEZ R B AR
HRENEREERT

ERSELEBEMMNTWEIEEETHIR
BEEREERREERER/IET
HEREBALREBERITESER
ERERLFHRBNMBBEEEL -
FRParkson Credityh > HIB® R =8
ANBERRAIITIRER2450 (ZF
T 1 245%) IREBRETERAE
BRI EA1400 (2 - _4F:
14.00) - BHAFHABNIRERE
B#Z I8 R 32,000 (ZF — "5 1 2.0%)
HE ZHEHERNRIFHIERZEE
ﬁo

ARt EERHEENETERR
UTRBRMIEEREBANEERRE:
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

14.

oM ImRMEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -_=F+_"A=+—HItFE

GOODWILL (continued)

Key assumptions used in the value in use calculation
(continued)

The bases used to determine the values
assigned are the cost of inventories
purchased for resale, staff costs, depreciation
and amortisation and other operating
expenses. The value assigned to the key
assumption reflects past experience and
management's commitment to maintain the
operating expenses to an acceptable level.

Operating expenses:

Discount rates: Discount rates reflect management's
estimate of specific risks relating to the

relevant units.

Sensitivity to changes in assumptions

With regard to the assessment of values in use of the respective
cash-generating units, management believes that no reasonably
possible change in any of the above key assumptions would cause
the carrying amounts, including goodwill, of the relevant units to
materially exceed their recoverable amounts.

As the carrying value of cash generating unit of Jiangxi Parkson
Retail Co., Ltd. has been reduced to its recoverable amount of
RMB365,405,000 (2022: Xi'an Lucky King Parkson Plaza Co., Ltd.
has been reduced to its recoverable amount of RMB124,138,000)
as at 31 December 2023, the related goodwill impairment loss of
RMB16,277,000 (2022: RMB38,604,000) was recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Apart from the considerations described in determining the value
in use of the cash generating units above, the Group's management
is not currently aware of any other probable changes that would
necessitate changes in its key estimates and could cause the cash
generating units' carrying amounts to exceed their recoverable
amounts.

BE (@
AR EERABENEERR @

KeER%: ARECEEEBERN
HEESHEBEMEBE A
WEEME 8T M
I rEE R BEIH U E
thiEEMX - AFIRTE
BENEZRR NI
BESBREEER
KE B S MERT I R 3
RIKFBYHKEE

FRKR: WHREXRBEEER
HARMELAERBRNG
E R BEHYfh 5 o

BRREESHBRE

MRS REEEEUNEREER
FEHGEEERGE LAETERZR
RUESEAEHREE RER
MEMUREE (BEEHE EBNE
BIE{EIEFER

AR _E_=F+_A=+—
B ImERT UM EERRAT
HNIREEEBNUNEREEERLE
HrT Y [o] 48 A K 1£365,405,0007T
(ZE2EZ 2 ATIEERES
BRABABRLVEETWCIEEEA
EE#£124,138,0007T) * A B 2R,
B8 A\ R #16,277,00070 (ZE -
F . AR 138,604,0007T) BR4EEE
m R PR o

BRYERELAREELTBMUER
BERRENEEBRERIN AEH
EEEBMIERNBETENE
HFEGstUrEENReELE
I AR EE B 48 H AT U [O] & 3R Y (E A
HA eI sEEE) -

PARKSON RETAIL GROUP LIMITED BB X¥£EEABRAT

215



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
SFaMFHmREE (8

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE_Z-_=F+"A=+—HIFFE

15.  OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 15. HftEBEEE
The movements of other intangible assets are as follows: Hth\mEEEENESSHT

Computer Franchise Customer
software Licence* agreement™ Trademark™ relationship™* Total

st Rk RerdEhEe [ 321 a5

RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
ARETR  ARBTR  ARRTz  ARETT  ARETRT  ARETR

At 1 January 2022 RZE-Zf-B—-H
Cost %S 19,420 28,678 6,177 36,009 24,689 114973
Accumulated amortisation and REtEERAE

impairment (19.411) (28,678) (6,177) (36,009) (15,631) (105,906)
Net book amount REFE 9 - - - 9,058 9,067

Year ended 31 December 2022 HE-Z-C

tZA=+-HLEFE
Opening net book amount BREEE 9 - - - 9,058 9,067
Amortisation charge BIHER - - - - (4940) (4940)
Closing net book amount BRREFE 9 = = = 4118 4127
At 31 December 2022 and RZI®ZZ
1 January 2023 +ZA=1+-Hk
ZZ”=%-F-H
Gross carrying amount IREMAE 19,420 28,678 6,177 36,009 24,689 114973
Accumulated amortisation and KSR AE
impairment (19411) (28678) (6,177) (36,009) (20571) (110,846)
Net book amount REZE 9 - - - 4118 4127

Year ended 31 December 2023 HECEC=

tZA=+-H

ILEE
Opening net book amount BREEE 9 = = = 4118 4127
Amortisation charge BHER 9) - - - (418) (4127)
Closing net book amount BRREFE - - - - - -
At 31 December 2023 RZBZ=

+ZA=1+-H
Cost R 19,420 28,678 6,177 36,009 24,689 114,973
Accumulated amortisation and REtEE A

impairment (19,420) (28,678) (6,177) (36,009) (24,689) (114,973)

Net book amount REFE - - - - - -
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sr o MERERMGEE (R)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -_=F+_"_A=+—HItFE

15.  OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued) 15. HthWBEEE &
The amortisation charge for the year was recognised in the FRNNEEERNIESEGRR PR
consolidated statement of profit or loss. o
* "“The Library Coffee Bar", "Quiznos" and "Johnny Rockets" have been * [The Library Coffee Bar J ~ [Quiznos J
fully impaired in prior years. Kzl Johnny Rockets | E i iBF FE
EEURE
* Franchise agreement and trademark were fully impaired in prior o I S R A 2 T e A B (T 4
years. ERERE -
e A subsidiary acquired by the Group in 2018 had established e KEBR _Z—N\FEWEN—X
relationships with its customers through contracts, for a period of Ft B A B iﬁﬂ NEHEZRE
5 years commencing from 2018. The amount represents the fair UG BZE - \FEAHRR
value of the customer relationship acquired by the Group. FoZTRBIEAREBRFTERSER
RGN RREE
16. INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE 16. REEEENEE

2023 2022
—— = e —

—_—— —

RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTRE ARBTT

Cost of investments in joint venture REELENKERE - 10,200
Share of post-acquisition profits and other — FE{L UK &R F A Eth 2 m Uk
comprehensive income, net of dividends A BRI EIN AR B

received - 2,766

- 12,966

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, details of the Group's interest in RIEBE_=FKR_EFE__&F+_4
a joint venture which is an unlisted corporate entity whose quoted =t+—H ' AEER XXt
market price is not available, are as follows: (B—RELER FEL/%%E{EEI’J FEE

mAABRR) HEmBRANT -

Country/place of Particulars of

incorporation and issued and paid % of
Name of joint venture Form of business structure  business up capital interest held Principal activity

AMEIRkER ERTNHE frEts
RELELE EBERT L FEEIR /3 R Bt FEXH

Xinjiang Youhao Parkson Development Co., Ltd. ~ Co-operative joint venture The PRC RMB20,000,000 NJA Deregistered during the year
(*Xinjiang Parkson’) BERELE HE AEE (2022:51) ERFH
MERTEEBXERERAH 20,000,0007% TEH
e =129 CB-—#:
51)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

MBI RMEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE_Z-_=F+"A=+—HIFFE

16. INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE (continued)

Although the Group has ownership of more than half of the voting
power of Xinjiang Parkson, the joint venture agreement establishes
joint control over the subject entity. The joint venture agreement
ensures that no single venture is in a position to control the
activities of the entity unilaterally.

Set out below are the summarised financial information of Xinjiang
Parkson which is accounted for using the equity method:

16.

REEEENKE (B
BEFAEREEAMEBETRNBEFH
BRER GEHRRERLRES
BERERE aEmERFRILES—
GEBHUESEERERERT
o

R mE AR E T BRI
BREHEINNT -

2023 2022
—E-=F B4

RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTRT

Current assets RENE E - 54,778
Non-current assets ERFEE - 4,956
Current liabilities mEaE - (32,691)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE - (1,620)
Net assets BEEFE - 25,423
Included in the above assets: SFALMBEE :

Cash and cash equivalents RERREEEY - 54,772
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
fr o MR (R

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -_=F+_"_A=+—HItFE

16. INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE (continued) 16. MEETENRKRE (B)
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
HE HE
T = =S
+=A +—A
=2 =8
IEEE UEEEE
RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT AR#EF T
Operating revenues L& W - 857
Other income H A 21,518 =
Purchases of goods and changes in REGYREEED
inventories - (19)
Operating expenses KSR 2,853 (2,895)
Finance income RE WA 686 920
Profit/(Loss) before tax MATFIHE, (E58) 25,057 (1,137)
Income tax expense FriSiRf (3.195) (2,242)
Profit/(Loss) and total comprehensive EEANE, (B8 X2\
income/(expense) for the year WA/ (%) 48%8 21,862 (3,379)
Dividends received from the joint venture BeEhEWENEE 24,115 -

2023 2022
—_E-= B2
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT AREFTT
Total net assets of the joint venture EErENEEFELEL - 25,423
Proportion of ownership interests held REBRENFRABEERLLA
by Group - 5100
Carrying amount of the investments in the AR S HAFIRERPNEE B ER
joint venture in the consolidated financial ~ BRI EREE
statements - 12,966

AEBUTREEABENGERE

The Group has not incurred any contingent liabilities or other
commitments relating to its investment in the joint venture (2022:
nil).

PARKSON RETAIL GROUP LIMITED BEBXEESBIRAHE

REMEAHABERREMEE (C

=S S Y

219



220
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MBI RMEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE_Z-_=F+"A=+—HIFFE

17.  INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 117/-

REERBENRE
2023 2022
S ——

—_— —— —_——

RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBFRT AR®ETR

Cost of investments in associates, less REBEQABNKERE  BER
accumulated impairment sHRE 40,253 40,253
Share of post-acquisition profits and other ~ FE{L UK R F M EH M2 mE UK
comprehensive income, net of dividends A BMBRIREINR S
received 11,462 2,930
51,715 43,183

The following list contains only the particulars of associates, which,
in the opinion of the directors, are material to the Group and are
unlisted corporate entities whose quoted market prices are not
available, which in the opinion of the directors principally affected
the results or net assets of the Group as at 31 December 2023 and

TREQSEFIAR/EEEEMS
BEZHNBMEQRTFHB AEFELT
HEZESHHERENIFLTEA
ERBSEIREHAERER"F
T EERTEBCHETRA=T—

2022. ARNEENEEFERETETE-
Country/place of Particulars of
incorporation and issued and paid % of
Name of associate Form of business structure  business up capital interest held Principal activity
AEMMIKRES BERTHMRE EEZY 5
BEAERE ES T i FIEER /2 RAHE AL EEXH
Parkson Newcore Retail Shanghai Ltd. Incorporated The PRC RMB80,000,000 49 Operation of department stores
("Parkson Newcore") SEM AL L HE AR (2022:49) KEFERE
BRATEREEE (L) ARAS 80,000,000 (ZEZZF:
(TE&4AmH) 49)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
sr o MERERMGEE (R)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -_=F+_"_A=+—HItFE

17.

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 17/-

Set out below are the summarised financial information of Parkson
Newcore which are accounted for using the equity method:

REEARNKE (8)
R EARNBERATT BT

BEREZEHIMT -

2023 2022

—E=F 2
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥TT AR¥ET T
Current assets REEE 290,579 218,808
Non-current assets EREEE 198,515 263,741
Current liabilities mEaE (215,910) (166,750)
Non-current liabilities ERFMEE (172,806) (232,573)
Net assets BEFE 100,378 83,226
Revenue Wz 879,732 655,714
Total expenses B (844,204) (661,031)
Profit/(Loss) before tax AR, (518) 35,528 (5317)
Income tax (expense)/credit Frig# (FAsk) iK% (9.913) 1,978

Profit/(Loss) and total comprehensive FEEFNE/ (B8 &2\

income/(expense) for the year WA (B 48%8 25,615 (3,339)
Dividends received from the associate B E AT WERI RS 4,146 6,226
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE_Z-_=F+"A=+—HIFFE

REEARNKE (8)
LM BENREZETRAN @
SREMERNHRNOT :

17.

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

A reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to
the carrying amount of Parkson Newcore is set out below:

17.

2023 2022
—E=F s
RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT AER#EF T
Total net assets of the associate BENBNEEFEEZE 100,378 83,226
Proportion of ownership interests held by —~ ANEBEIFANFTE #E# @ LA
Group 49% 49%
Goodwill E - -
Carrying amount of the investments in REMBRRPREESAE]
associates in the consolidated financial KENREE
statements 49,185 40,781

BRIM S LT EEOHEATNAE
SR

Aggregate information of associates that are not individually
material:

2023 2022

—E-= B4

RMB'000
ARETTT

RMB'000
AR®ETT

222

Aggregate carrying amount of individually

mEMBEREANENMSAE

immaterial associates in the consolidated ENE A ABNREEE
financial statements 2,530 2,402
Aggregate amounts of the Group's share of ~AEBEE(EZEHE QB4R
those associates': LN
- profit before tax — R AIA]HE 229 104
- total comprehensive income —Z2mIRALELE 216 101
The Group has not incurred any contingent liabilities or other REBUWAEEBBERK S AT

commitments relating to its investments in associates.

The Group has not recognised losses amounting to nil for the year
ended 31 December 2023 (2022: RMB1,233,000) for Habitat Blue
Sdn. Bhd., an associate of the Group. The accumulated losses not
recognised were approximately RMB9,191,000 as at 31 December
2023 (2022: RMB9,191,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
fr o MR (R

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -_=F+_"_A=+—HItFE

18. OTHER ASSETS 18. HMEE

2023 2022
—E-= St 3
RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT ANER#EFIT
Long-term rental deposits RIffEEEE 94,211 92,923
Lease prepayments related to variable leases AR EHENHAEBNTH - 55,504
Net investments in the subleases (note 13(g)) B E R & 528 (MF5E13(g)) 138,435 194,280
Others Hith 874 6,993
233,520 349,700

19. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 19. IEERBEEKRERE
The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the BE_E_-—FKF_E-__F+T

B=+—HLEE EBEREBEER
REENEFHWT

years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022 are as follows:

Recognised in
the consolidated
As at statement of As at

1 January profit or loss 31 December
Riz& ®+=AH
®—B—H Bm R =+—H
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®ETFT AEETT AE®FT
2023 ZEI=H§
Deferred tax assets: FRIEMBEE :
Depreciation e 233 (233) -
Accrued other expenses FEst H B 2,268 3,157 5,425

Right-of-use assets and lease FFEEEERAE

liabilities 8fE 186,394 4,379 190,773
Accrued coupon provision fEstBESHE 3,185 146 3,331
Tax losses RIBEE (a) 86,590 (22,625) 63,965

278,670 (15,176) 263,494
Deferred tax liabilities: FERESE .
Depreciation e (2.021) 2,004 (17)
Fair value adjustments WEHBABEL

arising from acquisition of A RBERE

subsidiaries (222,619) 59,811 (162,808)
Right-of-use assets FRESE (78.699) 25,341 (53,358)
Withholding taxes B (b) (11,440) 1,242 (10,198)

(314,779) 88,398 (226,381)
(36,109) 73,222 37,113
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
SFaMFHmREE (8

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE_Z-_=F+"A=+—HIFFE

19. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (continued) 19. RIEMEBEEEREE @)

Recognised in
the consolidated

As at statement of As at
1 January profit or loss 31 December
RExE ®+=8
r—B—H B RED =+—H
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
MyEE AEBTR AEBTR AEBTT
(restated) (restated) (restated)
(&%) (RE51) (KE5)
2022 “E-CF
Deferred tax assets: RIERIEEE .
Depreciation e 466 (233) 233
Accrued other expenses FEstE B 1,795 473 2,268
Right-of-use assets and lease FFAEEERAE
liabilities 8 177,560 8,834 186,394
Accrued coupon provision fEstBESRE 4,045 (860) 3,185
Tax losses RIAEHE (a) 61,913 24,677 86,590
245,779 32,891 278,670
Deferred tax liabilities: ELERIBERE
Depreciation e (4,517) 2,496 (2,021)
Fair value adjustments WERBARMES
arising from acquisition of ~ FJAABEAE
subsidiaries (228,918) 6,299 (222,619)
Right-of-use assets FREEE (115,691) 36,992 (78,699)
Withholding taxes Sisbinki) (b) (12,075) 635 (11,440)
(361,201) 46,422 (314,779)
(115,422) 79,313 (36,109)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#r o MBRRMEE (47)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -_=F+_"A=+—HItFE

19. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (continued)

Notes:

(@)

The Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect of
tax losses arising from overseas subsidiaries of RMB12,234,000
(2022: RMB11,252,000), including amounts of RMB657,000 (2022:
RMB657,000) that will expire within three years, RMB3,152,000
(2022: RMB3,084,000) that will expire within seven years and
RMB8,425,000 (2022: RMB7,511,000) that are available indefinitely
for offsetting against future taxable profits, respectively, or tax
losses arising from the PRC subsidiaries of RMB1,161,146,000
(2022: RMB1,188,301,000) that will expire within the next five
years, as it was not considered probable as at 31 December 2023
that taxable profits would be available against which such tax
losses can be utilised.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding
tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from
the foreign investment enterprises established in the PRC. The
requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to
earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate of
50 may be applied if there is a tax treaty between the PRC and the
jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For the Group, the applicable
rate is 5% or 10%. The Group is therefore liable for withholding
taxes on dividends distributed by those subsidiaries established in
the PRC in respect of earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

As at 31 December 2023, deferred tax liability of RMB10,198,000
(2022: RMB11,440,000) has been recognised for withholding
taxes. Other than that, no deferred tax has been recognised for
withholding taxes that would be payable on the unremitted
earnings that are subject to withholding taxes of the Group's
subsidiaries established in the PRC. In the opinion of the directors,
it is not probable that these subsidiaries will distribute such
earnings in the foreseeable future. The aggregate amount of
temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries
in the PRC for which deferred tax liabilities have not been
recognised totalled approximately RMB5,088,779,000 as at 31
December 2023 (2022: RMB4,898,249,000).

19. RERBEEEREE (@)

B EE

(a)

HRAEER _E_=F+_ ﬁ
=+—HRAEPKEJFEERST
#m%m%&@m%%ﬁﬂﬁ’
WAL R D R FIE N B AT EE
HEEH R AR PE SRR A B RO AR 1B A5 18
AE#12,234000c (B - _£F:
AR #11,252,00070) (BIERKR=
FRNEEHN AR ¥657,0007T (Z
T & . AR¥657,0007T) i
REEAREHH AR 3,152,000
7T (TEZTHF ¢ AK153,084,000
) RERBEAAMNARE
M%WWﬂ_v__E AR
7,511,0007T) ) S7E F BRI B A
SEEBRAKRAERNIHNG
TEESHE A R #81,161,146,0007T (—
%::fﬁ : AR 11,188,301,0007T)
RIEIEIRIBE E o

BEBEREEEMERE RPE
WAL L BY P EIR B R A SN E

KREE SRS R 1008978
R -ZREB_ZEZNE—AF

—HEEM BRAR_ZEZtE
+_A=+—HZBEENR
Mol EAINEKREEFTED
FEEEITARWIHE  BlolE
sl BREBINME - AE R
= BB EA50T10% - F
It » A5 @ B & E 5L A B P i Ak
UHNZERBARNR_EENE
—BA—BHEEENEBATDIKE
& BB TEINM o

ﬁé_v__waL A=+—8">

FEFRTEE E A R #510,198,0007C
(_7__¢ AR 11,440,000
70) ERTEN IR ERERD o BRI =~
4 > 3 4 i (R 7 £ B 54 R R B a2
BB BB A B B S 40 TE 0 7R B9 ok
Eﬁﬁbﬂﬁ'ﬁﬁt‘a‘fﬁﬂﬁé?mﬁﬁﬁw
BIERIB - EERA  ZEW B
NBRKAFER AR KREKDIK
EREEAN - R_BE_=%+_A41
E+_E| ’ﬁiﬁﬁiﬁﬁum F'Lﬁlg
BENTRENNBEASKRERS
B EREZEBENALARE
5,088,779,0007C (ZE - " : A
FR #4,898,249,0007T) ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

MBI RMEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE_Z-_=F+"A=+—HIFFE

20. INVENTORIES

20.

2

2023 2022

—E=F 2
RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT AR#EF T
Merchandise P oh 418,695 497,607
Consumables JHEE SR 3,189 3,510
Less: Impairment B RE (167) (315)
421,717 500,802

The movements in provision for impairment of inventories during
the year are as follows:

ENFERERENESHNT :

2023 2022

RMB'000 RMB'000

AR®TT AREBTT

As at 1 January R—B—H 315 5,301
Reversal of impairment losses recognised, net  $[0] B FE 50 B B k518 F 58 (148) (4,986)
As at 31 December R+ZA=+—H 167 315

Included in the above provision for impairment of inventories is
the provision for individually impaired inventories of RMB69,000
(2022: RMB315,000) with a carrying amount before provision of
RMB315,000 (2022: RMB315,000).

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group reversed
RMB217,000 (2022: RMB4,986,000) of an inventories write down
made in 2022 (2022: 2021) as the Group has sold those goods to
third parties at above cost.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#r o MBRRMEE (47)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -_=F+_"_A=+—HItFE

21. TRADE RECEIVABLES 21. BB ZFHIE
2023 2022
—E= B
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBFT ARB®FT
Current BN &R
Third party B£= 297,582 224,403
Less: Impairment allowance OB E RS (8.367) (3.329)
289,215 221,074
Non-current JEBNHA
Third party B=h 399,828 254916
Less: Impairment allowance B OR B R (7,911) (5,331)
391,917 249,585
681,132 470,659

Trade receivables mainly arise from purchase by customers with
credit cards and credit services arise from loan receivables. The
credit period of trade receivables is generally one month. The Group
seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables and
has a credit control department to minimise credit risk. Overdue
balances are reviewed reqularly by senior management. In view of
the aforementioned and the fact that the Group's trade receivables
relate to a large number of diversified customers, there is no
significant concentration of credit risk. The Group does not hold
any collateral or other credit enhancements over its trade receivable
balances, except for loan receivables which are secured over the
motor vehicles of customers. Among the balance, RMB590,357,000
(2022: RMB405,428,000) are with an interest rate ranging from
7.6% to 16.0% per annum (2022: 7.6% to 18.0% per annum),
depending on the payment term of loan receivables, while others
are interest-free.

As at 31 December 2023, Parkson Credit's trade receivables
of RMB207,850,000 (2022: RMB177,706,000) and unrealised
receivables of RMB78,918,000 (2022: RMB68,285,000) which will be
due within 48 months, were pledged to secure Parkson Credit's bank
loans in Ringgit Malaysia ("RM") (note 29).

PARKSON RETAIL GROUP LIMITED BEBXEESBIRAHE

EREZRBTERERTEUGEH
X AWBERUMEERERRER
NEERK BWESRENEH
H—kAa—ERE AEBHHERHK
BERWRIBE R BREIZES > TR
BEEEEZHMPAUBERGBEER
oA SR EEEEHE
MeZEI MBS ERAERE
WEBSHRBEBXRBEREZTEREE
WU ESEETNEERRK AE
BEuwEREBREZRBERESE
EAEF R EMEERSE MU
B E WA EEIR IR E U E R BR
Gk o #EER R > A R %£590,357,00078 (Z
T~ — & . AR K5405,428,0007T) BY
FEFENF7.60%FE16.0% (ZFE__
& BE76%E18.0%) » ZFFKER
REWRERNERRAR  MEKS
BB e

RZE_=%+"F=+—H">
Parkson CreditfEW B Z B AR
207,850,0007c (ZZ2ZZHF | ARK
177,706,0007T) K K B IR UL IE A
E#78918,0007c (ZEZ"F | AR
#%68,285,0007T) At 481E B A EH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MERRNEE (R)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE_Z-_=F+"A=+—HIFFE

21.

228

TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at 31 December 2023
and 2022, based on the invoice dates and net of ECL allowance, is
as follows:

FEW & 5 #hia (48)

RIEBE_ =B __"F+_"8
= t+—H BEEZEOH RN TER
EEFEEGZEKREBEZAIBE R
BT -

2023 2022

T = ="
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR%TT ARET T
Within 1 year —FEDUA 289,215 221,074
1 to 2 years —EME 172,761 128,190
Over 2 years ML 219,156 121,395
681,132 470,659

The Group applies the simplified approach for impairment of
trade receivables (other than loans receivables). The Group uses a
provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade receivables (other than
loans receivables). The provision rates are based on days past due
for groupings of various customer segments that have similar loss
patterns (i.e., by service type).

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group's historical
observed default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to
adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking
information. For instance, if forecast economic conditions (i.e. gross
domestic product) are expected to deteriorate over the next year
which can lead to an increased number of defaults in the retail
sector, the historical default rates are adjusted. At the end of each
reporting period, the historical observed default rates are updated
and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#r o MBRRMEE (47)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -_=F+_"_A=+—HItFE

21.

TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

The Group applies the general approach for the impairment of loan
receivables. Under the general approach, an impairment analysis
is performed at the end of each reporting period based on three
stages to measure expected credit losses. The Group determines
whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition of loan receivables or whether an asset is
considered to be credit-impaired and, hence, whether it needs to
provide for 12-month ECLs or lifetime ECLs. The calculation reflects
the probability-weighted outcome, the time value of money and
reasonable and supportable information that is available at the
reporting date about past events, current conditions and forecasts
of future economic conditions. Generally, loan receivables are
written off if past due for more than one year and are not subject
to enforcement activity.

In the situation where no comparable companies with credit ratings
can be identified, expected credit losses are estimated by applying
a loss rate approach with reference to the historical loss record of
the Group. The loss rate is adjusted to reflect the current conditions
and forecasts of future economic conditions, as appropriate. Set
out below is the loss rate applied on the Group's trade receivables
where there were no comparable companies:

21.

R E 5 RIE (1)
AEEMEWERRERR—RKRAS
ERB—MRIE REREHARR
BoERRETREI N UFE
BHREEBE -AEEEEBEER
EREWERUREERRES
BEEN AEERCHRRRER
BE HLBEEEEEEZmM 1284
BREEERNFRABRREER
BEHEERF =St ERBEHBRM
BER - BORKEEENRIR
SHHJESAEEBESMH ER
AR TR 3 R R ALE A B TR &
BRASZFNER - BEMES HE
WERBRBE -—FENIETR
HIRITIREN R T LAAKES o

EEERNEBEERAINETEL
BRABMNBERT AE2EELAEER
WELEEGRTE  RABEXRT A
At A EERE HEXTIEHR
B LU BRE A AR 70 Be R BRAS B AR
BFEA NEBA) ~EEFELERA
BINERT  AEEBWE SRR
PREAZEBEERHEIWT :

Simplified
approach General approach
EAR —RA
Lifetime ECLs  Lifetime ECLs
- not credit - credit
impaired impaired
Lifetime financial financial
ECLs assets assets
FRAES ERAEH
FEBE- FEBE-
ERATEER 12EAREE FEERE =ERE
EEER FEHR EREE EREE
2023 k- -
Expected credit loss rate HHEEREEX 0.00% 0.08% 10.02% 61.19% 2.33%
Gross carrying amount REARE 90,775 549,956 36,867 19,812 697,410
Expected credit losses BIEERE - 462 3,694 12,122 16,278
2022 ZTICF
Expected credit loss rate HHEEEBEX 0.00% 0.08% 8.81% 61920 1.81%
Gross carrying amount RERE 65,231 382,096 21,551 10,441 479,319
Expected credit losses BHEEER = 297 1,898 6,465 8,660
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
SFaMFHmREE (8

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE_Z-_=F+"A=+—HIFFE

21.

TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

The movement in the ECL allowance of trade receivables is as

21.

R E %A (&)
BREZRRBAEEGEREREN

follows: BEWT -
Simplified
approach General approach
B{EA —RAR
Lifetime ECLs  Lifetime ECLs
- not credit - credit
impaired impaired
Lifetime 12-month financial lETIE]
ECLs ECLs assets assets
FRAEH FRAES
EEHE- =E5E—
FRATEH 12EREH FEERE =EAE
EEEE FEBEE THEE ETHEE et
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETRT AR%®Tr AR®Tn AR%®Tr ARETR
2023 —E-z=HE
As at 1 January r—A—8 - 297 1,898 6,465 8,660
Amount written off during the year  FE RIS £ 58 - - (5) (12,656) (12,661)
ECL allowance recognised FARINBEHEE
during the year 1B AHE - 165 1,801 18,313 20,279
As at 31 December R+ZA=+—8H - 462 3,694 12,122 16,278
2022 “ETTF
As at 1 January ik=/E=[E - 583 2,010 6,568 9,161
Amount written off during the year —~ FAMEHE4E - - - (7,515) (7,515)
ECL allowance (reversed)/recognised — FER (B[@) /FEE2HY
during the year TIEEEEEE - (286) (12) 7,412 7,014
As at 31 December R+ZBE=+—H - 297 1,898 6,465 8,660
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#r o MBRRMEE (47)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -_=F+_"_A=+—HItFE

22.

PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 22

Lease prepayments related to variable lease 75 B8 B] & FH & =AY

FA A 7RI R H {th FE W R IR
2022

=

— e

RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTRT

payment FEHEE 83,195 44,859
Rental deposits HEZs 95,864 94,082
Advances to suppliers 5] {4 8 7 TR R 25,839 19,155
Operating lease receivables KSR ERKARIE 168,467 94,087
Prepaid tax FAIRIE 10,548 28,104
Interest receivables FE W F] B 3,423 1,756
Other prepayments H a8 31,495 34,439
Net investments in the subleases (note 13(g)) EFHEREF5E (Fi5E13(g)) 102,831 88,180
Other receivables E fthFE W k1B 78,868 72,418

600,530 477,080

Impairment allowance (note) R EEE (FEE) (34,098) (32,809)

566,432 444271

Less: Lease prepayments o AN A (83,195) (44,859)

Less: Advances to suppliers B Bt ERETET (25,839) (19,155)

Less: Prepaid tax B FERT R TE (10,548) (28,104)

Less: Other prepayments A HIERIE (31,495) (34,439)
Financial assets included in other receivables 5t A EfthFE U ZIBRY

EMBEE 415,355 317,714

Note:

The movements in the provision for impairment of prepayments and other
receivables during the year are as follows:

MYE

FAFANRIBE R B A EWRIB R EEH
BB T

2023 2022
—m— = —gn——

—_=—— — e

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARBT T

As at 1 January w—HB—H 32,809 30,881
Impairment for the year FERME 1,289 1,928
As at 31 December R+—B=+—H 34,098 32,809

For financial assets included in other receivables that are credit-
impaired at the reporting date, the loss allowance is measured at
an amount equal to lifetime ECLs. The loss rate are estimated by
applying a loss rate approach with reference to the historical loss
record of the Group or adjusted to reflect the current conditions
and forecasts of future economic conditions, as appropriate. The
loss rate as at 31 December 2023 was 7.6% (2022: 9.4%).

PARKSON RETAIL GROUP LIMITED BEBXEESBIRAHE

MRREABEREERENGT A
HthEWREBENEREEMS ° B
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
S EMBRRME (R

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE_Z-_=F+"A=+—HIFFE

22.

PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

The movement of gross balance of other receivables is as follows:

22.

FAftRIER EthE U TR IE (&)
HMAE W RIEABER SRR E T ¢

Nel Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

F—PEE BB FRE gt

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

AREFR AR®Tn ARETR ARETR

As at 1 January 2022 RZE__&—HF—H 286,506 - 30,881 317,387

Amounts originated during the year FEREE 7 &5 30,551 2,585 - 33,136

Transfer from Stage 1to Stage 2~ A —[EEREREE [ (677) 677 - -

Transfer from Stage 1to Stage 3~ HF—[EEREREE =R (530) - 530 -

Transfer from Stage 2 to Stage 3~ FAS _[EERREREE =R - (708) 708 -

Transfer from Stage 3 to Stage 1 HE = HERERE SR 1,252 - (1,252) -
As at 31 December 2022 and RIZEZZHF+ZA=1t—Hk

1 January 2023 —g-=%-fA-A 317,102 2,554 30,867 350,523

Amounts originated/(received) FREL/ KRR 2 &%

during the year 99,853 (960) 37 98,930

Transfer from Stage 1to Stage 2~ HF—FEERBBEF ML (2,130) 2,130 - -

Transfer from Stage 1to Stage 3~ HF—FEEBREEF =L (609) - 609 -

Transfer from Stage 2 to Stage 3~ HAF —FEERBREF=FEEL - (715) 715 -

As at 31 December 2023 R ZE=F+"A=+—H 414,216 3,009 32,228 449,453
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#r o MBRRMEE (47)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 & ZE —

22.

E_=F+RA=t+—HIEFE

PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) 22. FRA(MIRIAREMEWTRIE (&)
The movement in the ECL allowance of other receivables is as HthE e s 8 E
follows: &S
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
F—PEE -] 21 B st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFR AR®TR AR¥TR
As at 1 January 2022 RZE__&—F—H - - 30,881 30,881
ECL allowance recognised FREINEREEHBEE
during the year 360 1,568 - 1928
Transfer from Stage 1to Stage 2~ FASE—PEEREREE M (63) 63 = =
Transfer from Stage 1to Stage 3~ FASE—PEREREE =M (79) = 9 -
Transfer from Stage 2 to Stage 3~ FA% _[EEREREE =LKL - (354) 354 =
Transfer from Stage 3 to Stage 1~ FAZE = PEEREBBIZ E—PEEL 447 - (447) =
As at 31 December 2022 and B F+ZA=+—Hk
1 January 2023 “T-=F—H—H 665 1277 30,867 32,809
ECL allowance recognised FRABERNEREEREBEE
during the year 6 378 905 1,289
Transfer from Stage 1to Stage 2~ FHASE—PEEREREE _ME (206) 206 - =
Transfer from Stage 1to Stage 3~ S —PEREREE =M (99) - 99 =
Transfer from Stage 2 to Stage 3~ FASE _PEERERIZ B =R - (357) 357 =
As at 31 December 2023 RZEZ=F+"A=+—H 366 1,504 32,228 34,098

PARKSON RETAIL GROUP LIMITED BEBXEESBIRAHE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

MBI RMEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE_Z-_=F+"A=+—HIFFE

23. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR  23.
LOSS

BRAsBESEEHEEHA
HmZzEMEE
2023 2022
o oo

— T —— — e ——

RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETRT ARBTT

Wealth management products It EmM
As at 1 January R—HB—H 108,315 90,644
Addition during the year FARRE 49,403 163,430
Redemption during the year FRNEE (101,007) (146,910
Change in fair value of financial assets at fair 12~ D EETE B HESF)
value through profit or loss (note 6) STABmZEMBEES
~aBEESZS (fiste) 829 1,151
As at 31 December K+ZBA=+—H 57,540 108,315

The wealth management products are managed by licensed
financial institutions in the PRC to invest principally in certain
financial assets, including bonds, trusts, cash funds, bond funds
or unlisted equity investment issued and circulated in the PRC in
accordance with the related entrusted agreements.

The investments are measured at fair value at the end of
the reporting period. The gain on the change in fair value of
RMB829,000 (2022: RMB1,151,000) is credited to “Finance income”
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss (note 6).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#r o MBRRMEE (47)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -_=F+_"_A=+—HItFE

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND TIME DEPOSITS

RERREFEYREHEFR

2023 2022
—— = e —

—_—— — = ——

RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBFRE AREBTRT

Cash and bank balances (including short-term IR R IR1T45 6% (BLIEEE A BS
deposits with original maturity of less than ~ REBZIHEAE=EA MW

three months when acquired) BERERD 1,583,414 1,464,096
Restricted cash ZREIRE 100,191 -
Short-term deposits more than BE=EBAETE—FN

three months and less than one year BEE® 16,563 9,477
Long-term deposits EHIE® 27,202 25,102

1,727,370 1,498,675
Less: NS
- Pledged short-term time deposits for —EB AR IERIE AR E A

performance guarantees F= (1,800) (6,864)
- Pledged long-term time deposits for —(EBARRIEHRRIATE A

performance guarantees F& (25,302) (25,102)
- Non-pledged long-term time deposits —EIRIRRAEIHER (1,900) =
- Non-pledged short-term time deposits with — & A BF/R A ZIH B BB

original maturity of more than three months =1 3 B9 4 1K 1845 8 & HA

when acquired F& (14,763) (2,613)
Cash and cash equivalents HERFEEZEY 1,683,605 1,464,096

The cash and bank balances and time deposits of the Group
denominated in RMB amounting to RMB1,571,797,000 as at 31
December 2023 (2022: RMB1,441,092,000). The RMB is not freely
convertible into other currencies, however, under the PRC's Foreign
Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement,
Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

The cash and bank balances included the short-term deposits with
original maturity of less than three months when acquired of
RMB383,343,000 (2022: RMB291,116,000).

As at 31 December 2023, the Group has pledged deposits of
RMB27,102,000 (2022: RMB31,966,000) held in designated bank
accounts for performance guarantees.

PARKSON RETAIL GROUP LIMITED BEBXEESBIRAHE

R-_E_=%+"8B=+—H">
$$@MAE%HEME$&$

THREUREPEEAAARE
1wwwmwﬂ_v__ﬁ AR
1,441,092,0007T) - ARBEAROTEHER
HAEME AT BIRFPBESH
EERKAREE - EBERVESE
BRE AEEEESRERESE
THEEBNRTRARBERIRA
Hihgiko

REMBTEGEREBARRAZ
HAFAE=EEMNEHERARK
383,343,000 (ZEZZF | AR
291,116,0007T) ©

RIE_=F+"B=+—H'7
EEHEBIRIRERAR®27,102,000
T (ZEZ 2% AK®31,966,000
7T) CRIEERTERAFAE 1FEN
fRER ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
S EMBRRME (R

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE_Z-_=F+"A=+—HIFFE

25.

26.

ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE

25.

DESHARENEE

2023 2022

—E=H S
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR%FT ARBH#FTT
Property, plant and equipment (note 11) MR Kk (BYEE1) - 220,367
Investment properties (note 12) KEME (MIsE12) - 43,721
- 264,088

Note:

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group intended to dispose
certain property, plant and equipment and investment properties located
in Qingdao City, Shandong Province, the PRC, to an independent third
party for considerations of RMB280,000,000 (inclusive of value added
taxes). The properties were previously used by the Group for carpark,
office and business purpose. Impairment loss was recognised prior to
the reclassification of the property, plant and equipment and investment
properties as assets held for sale amounted to RMB11,400,000 (note 11) and
RMB2,263,000 (note 12) respectively. The Disposal is completed during the
year ended 31 December 2023.

TRADE PAYABLES

An ageing analysis of the trade payables, based on the recognition
dates, is as follows:

26.

Fe5E -

HE_E__F#+_RB=+—HIL#E
EAERROBIE=AHELR
FEURESETNETYE BE
REURBREVE REAARE
280,000,0007C (SIEER) - ZEWE L
FEAEEBEEES WMAEKREE
BR -YME BERREURKEYE
BN EATAEGENEE 28D
2 AR #811,400,0007t (FEsEN) R AR
2,263,000z (FF5E12) 2 B E RSB H L A
Do HEZTBEEREBEE_ZE_=F+_
B=+—BHLlEEERNTH-

FEft & B RIE
REDHIHZEMNEZRENRE
DT -

2023 2022
—E”= BT

RMB'000 RMB'000

AREFT AR®EF T

Within 3 months =R (EP=Na 666,107 438,147
4 to 12 months HE+_—{@EAH 14,568 17,744
Over 1 year — & E 21,888 24,534
702,563 480,425

All amounts are short term and hence the carrying amounts of
the Group's trade payables are considered to be a reasonable
approximation of fair value.

2023 ANNUAL REPORT (E[E#RE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#r o MBRRMEE (47)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -_=F+_"_A=+—HItFE

27.

28.

OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 27/

HithEIRIAR Bt HE
2023 2022

—=— = —=— —
—=

—_—— —_——

RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTRT AREBTT

Rental payables FE(TFEE 37,562 9,451
Other tax payables Hh e IR IE 39,810 39,955
Deposits from suppliers HEmZE 157,738 171,179
Construction fee payables FE(T R E 76,627 45,097
Accrued salaries and bonuses & 5137 & R JEAL 44,097 65,656
Accrued interest FEstR B 4,767 5,137
Deposits received G eiEa (a) - 133,333
Other payables and accruals HMENIE R EIER 317,286 297,661
(b) 677,887 767,469

Notes: B 5E
() As at 31 December 2022, RMB140,000,000 (inclusive of value (a) RN _&#+=-B=+—8H"
added taxes), representing 5000 of the total consideration has been AEBEWRBREE MR PE
received by the Group regarding the disposal of properties located LEEZEEMZYWENARK

in Qingdao City, Shandong Province, the PRC in which the details
are set out in note 25 to the consolidated financial statements.

(b) All amounts are short term and hence the carrying amounts of
the Group's other payables are considered to be a reasonable
approximation of fair value.

CONTRACT LIABILITIES 28.

140,000,0007¢ (B (EFR) » (HAEL
BHs500 BRAEBEH N GEH
R FTMIsE250

(b) PRERIEA D EHAMIE Bt

ERHMEARRNREERS
REANBEGEMRS-

BHNEE

2023 2022

—E-= B4

RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTRE AREBTT

Contract liabilities arising from advances ELXfBEBWRERFENRE
received from customers sH8aE 600,991 606,909
Provision for loyalty point programme BB G 8 B A 14,718 14,404
615,709 621,313

Receiving advances from a customer before the Group transfers the
related goods or services will give rise to contract liabilities at the
commencement of a contract.

All contract liabilities are expected to be recognised as revenue
within one year.

EAEESERBE ARS8
WHE B B TR 7GR 72 & A R 4 s
EEBNaR-

FIEGNERREMAN —FRNERS

W o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
SFaMFHmREE (8

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE_Z-_=F+"A=+—HIFFE

29. INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS 29. :tEIERITER

2023 2022
—— =

—_——

RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBFRT AREBTRE

Current B HA
Secured bank loans denominated in RM DM ERsHENE K 70,728 191,630
RITE™
Secured bank loans denominated in A&t (FBrl) sHER
Hong Kong dollars ("HK$") BIRFIRITER 90,622 89,330
161,350 280,960
Non-current JEENEA
Secured bank loans denominated in HK$ HUATEHENEIRIFIRITER 2,190,877 2,248,972
Secured bank loans denominated in RM DME s ENE FHF 139,687 =
BITER
2,330,564 2,248,972
2,491,914 2,529,932
At 31 December 2023 and 2022, the Group's bank loans were NIEBE ="k _E-__F+_H4
repayable as follows: =+—H xEBENRITEREAEU
T A ERE ¢

2023 2022
—— = —m— —

—_—— — R — e

RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBFRT AREBTRE

Carrying amount repayable FEEENIKREE

- Within one year or on demand ——FEREREK 161,350 280,960
- In the second year —FE & 2,252,453 89,330
- In the third to fifth years, inclusive —B=FFEHE (BHEEEME) 78,111 2,159,642
Total carrying amount IREAR(E 2,491,914 2,529,932
Less: e

- Amount due within one year ——FAREANEEE (161,350) (280,960)

Carrying amount shown under non-current  FERENEEIE N3 RPIEREE
liabilities 2,330,564 2,248,972
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

28):

oM ImRMEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -_=F+_"A=+—HItFE

INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS (continued)

Notes:

(a)

Banks' credit facilities amounting to RMB23,123,000 (2022:
RMB26,812,000) had not been utilised as at 31 December 2023.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group's bank loans are secured by:

(i)

(iif)

(iv)

mortgages over the Group's investment property, which
had an aggregate carrying value of RMB544,734,000
(2022: RMB534,870,000) (note 12);

mortgages over the Group's buildings, which had a net
carrying value of approximately RMB1,370,590,000 (2022:
RMB1,415,014,000) (note 11);

mortgages over the Group's leasehold land, which
had an aggregate carrying value of approximately
RMB318,494,000 (2022: RMB331,342,000) (note 13(a));
and

the pledge of trade receivables of RMB207,850,000
(2022: RMB177,706,000) and unrealised receivables of
RMB78,918,000 (2022: RMB68,285,000) which will be due
within 48 months (note 21).

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, items (i), (ii) and (iii) are
provided to secure the Group's bank loans denominated in
HKS$, and item (iv) is provided to secure the Group's bank loans
denominated in RM.

stBIRTTEM (@)

M 5E

(a) RITIEERE AR 123,123,0007T
(=4 . AR¥26,812,000
TR E_=F+_H=+—
HiEREA o

(b) RZZ_=5+"R=+—8"
FEENRITERBUATEREEF
iR -

(i) NEBKEEYENIEFT
HREREA AR
544,734,00050 (& -
F . AR #534,870,0007T)
(Fz£12) 5

(i) AEBEEFNEEF A
REFAEAANARKE
1,370,590,0007% (&~ —
F : AR #81,415,014,0007T)

(fFzE1) 5

(i) NEBEE LAY IE T
HIFEEBEANARE
318,494,00070 (& - —
F . AR#331,342,0007T)
(MF2E13()) 5 &

(iv) AR #207,850,0007T
(ZB2ZZF . AR
177,706,00070) BYFEUL & 5
RIER AR 178,918,000
T (CTEIZF AR
68,285,0007T) HY A &R FE
WFRIE (Bt 48 B P El
) &R (PsE21) ©

RIBEZ=FR-ZTZF+Z
B=+—8>BEB(i) (i) Ki)ZE
HIERAREB LB T ENIRTT
BRER ; RIEB(VERHEE
BAEBUMERHENRTE
FREYIE AR o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MERRNEE (R)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE_Z-_=F+"A=+—HIFFE

30.

Jlc

ISSUED CAPITAL

30.

B#ITRA

Number of
ordinary shares Nominal value
EERHE HfE
‘000 HK$'000 RMB'000
T8 TER ARETFT
Authorised: AIE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.02 each SREBEOETNEER 7,500,000 150,000 156,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRARE
As at 1 January 2022, 31 December RZE-__#-HF—H
2022, 1 January 2023 and “E-"F+"H
31 December 2023 =+—B-Z2-=F
—A—BRZEZ=%F
F—E==E 2,634,532 52,691 55,477

No transactions occurred in the Company's issued share capital
during the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.

RESERVES

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein
for the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on page 114 of the consolidated
financial statements.

(a)

PRC reserve funds

Pursuant to the relevant laws and requlations for Sino-
foreign joint venture enterprises, a portion of the profits of
the Group's joint venture which is established in the PRC
has been transferred to reserve funds which are restricted
to use.

Pursuant to the relevant PRC laws and regulations, Sino-
foreign joint venture companies registered in the PRC are
required to transfer a certain percentage, as approved by
the board of directors, of their profit after income tax, as
determined in accordance with PRC accounting rules and
regulations, to the reserve fund, the enterprise expansion
fund and the employee bonus and welfare fund. These funds
are restricted to use.

2023 ANNUAL REPORT fE[ERE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#r o MBRRMEE (47)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -_=F+_"A=+—HItFE

31. RESERVES (continued)

(a)

(b)

PRC reserve funds (continued)

Pursuant to the relevant PRC laws and regulations, each of
the wholly-owned foreign enterprises (“WOFEs") registered
in the PRC is required to transfer not less than 10% of its
profit after tax, as determined in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles in the PRC (the "PRC GAAP"),
to the reserve funds, until the balance of the funds reaches
50% of the registered capital of that company. WOFEs
registered in the PRC are required to transfer a certain
percentage, as approved by the board of directors, of their
profit after income tax to the employee bonus and welfare
fund. These funds are restricted to use.

In accordance with the relevant PRC laws and regulations,
PRC domestic companies are required to transfer 10% of
their profit after income tax, as determined in accordance
with the PRC GAAP, to the statutory common reserve, until
the balance of the fund reaches 50% of their registered
capital. Subject to certain restrictions as set out in the
relevant PRC regulations, the statutory common reserve
may be used to offset against the accumulated losses, if
any.

Asset revaluation reserve

The asset revaluation reserve represented the fair value
adjustments to the property, plant and equipment,
investment properties and lease prepayments which
were already owned by the Group before the acquisition
of the remaining 44% equity interest in Parkson Retail
Development Co., Ltd. in 2006.

31. f#fE (@)

(a)

(b)

hEAREE (B

RIFAERE P EERRER
RAEEMIS I EmEE b
(M EBELE)) BRiEE
FE AR g ZER (THRER
REETZER)) BENALR
HERMRBFN B 0nEREARE
S BEEETEREIZAT
51 & 250002 L o 5L HR BT 5
M EBECXBREES
BHENER T BBRETER
BAHBEE—ECEPLEEAR
BTEAKREHNES ZEES
B BEREERS -

RIFBEBEPRER AR
FEREAREBRFIRERE
NRBEFEANEENRFAE
MEABI0EREELE AT
2 BHEESHEREIZA
5 5E & 250007 LE o SR
AP BEARFAENE TR
#ll EEATEER BIERHER
FHE51E A) °

BEEEMGLHE

BEESEMHEBRER_-_ZT X
FHEORBELERARR
Bl 8 T 440 tERT > HAEEH
BEEENYE BB KRR
REVERBANEEZHAA
BERREE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SeMBRERNEE (48)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE_Z-_=F+"A=+—HIFFE

32. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY  32.

Information about the statement of financial position of the
Company as at 31 December 2023 and 2022 is as follows:

ERBEMBRRE

AABR - BE-=ER-_S-_fF
+-B=+—BERMBERIEN

ERE
2023 2022
—_E°= =2
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥FT AR¥ET T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERENEE
Investments in subsidiaries RTBATNKRE 2,187,436 2,456,621
CURRENT ASSETS MENEE
Prepayments and other receivables TE(I RRIE A HA R R IR 2,490 2,451
Cash and cash equivalents BERIREEEBY 8,552 6,179
11,042 8,630
CURRENT LIABILITIES RENEE
Other payables and accruals Hh e RIBEKRESTIEE 5,776 5,758
Interest-bearing bank loans FTEIRTTEMR 90,622 89,330
96,398 95,088
Net current liabilities R EFEE (85,356) (86,458)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES #8E E R REI&E 2,102,080 2,370,163
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES EREIEE
Interest-bearing bank loans FTEIRTTEMR 2,190,877 2,248,972
NET (LIABILITIES)/ASSETS (BR) EEFE (88,797) 121,191
EQUITY Em
Issued capital BEITRA 55,477 55,477
Reserves (note) B (%) (144,274) 65,714
(CAPITAL DEFICIT)/TOTAL EQUITY CEA DL LT (88,797) 121,191

Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem
Director

P REBER

EF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 & ZE —

32. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY
(continued)
Note:

A summary of the Company's reserves is as follows:

Fa B ERRINEE (8)
E_=F+_A=t—HItEE
32. HBREMBRREK &)

B 5E
EATHEGREN T :

Exchange Retained
reserve earnings Total
ERfEE RE&RA =k
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARMEFTT ARMEFTT
As at 1 January 2022 A B __&F—F—H (353,395) 559,931 206,536
Total comprehensive expense FEEHEMZARE
for the year (50,730) (90,092) (140,822)
As at 31 December 2022 and R T T F
1 January 2023 —I— B=+—H&
—E=%—HF—H (404,125) 469,839 65,714
Total comprehensive expense FELXERZEEE
for the year (12,997) (170,646) (183,643)
Dividend paid ENKRE = (26,345) (26,345)
As at 31 December 2023 A
+=ZB=+—H (417,122) 272,848 (144,274)
33. COMMITMENTS 33. KiE

(a) The Group had the following capital commitments as at 31
December 2023 and 2022:

Contracted, but not provided for:
- Construction in progress and
leasehold improvement

ARy BARE
—ERIREKEEYREE

@) X®EEFR_ZSE_=FEK_F
“_TE+ZA=+—HEBUX
TEARKIE

2023 2022
—E—= B

RMB'000
AR®BTT

RMB'000
ARBTT

7,814 66,428

(b) The Group has three (2022: one) lease contracts that
have not yet commenced as at 31 December 2023. The
future lease payments for these non-cancellable lease
contracts are RMB105,000 (2022: nil) due within one year,
RMB59,044,000 (2022: RMB27,054,000) due in the second
to fifth years, inclusive, and RMB550,370,000 (2022:
RMB153,287,000) due after five years.

PARKSON RETAIL GROUP LIMITED BEBXEESBIRAHE

by RZBZ=#F+"A=+—
B AEBEE=M (ZZ

—ZF 1 —1p) HARMKAYAE
EGR -ZFEA I MEELY
R—FR-F_EFHF (B

EEREME) RAEREEMN
REEENLRD R A AR
105,0007C (ZEZZF 1 F) ~

AR 859,044,000 (ZE ==
F . AR 1§27,054,0007T) )S’z/\
R #&550,370,0007C (Z &2 ==
& . AR #153,287,0007T) ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MERRNEE (R)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE_Z-_=F+"A=+—HIFFE

34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Group's related parties include its associates and a joint
venture, subsidiaries, fellow subsidiaries and the holding company
of the Group and key management personnel.

BBk 53X 5
AEERABM L EREERERAT R—
REELE -AEENBAST A&
MEBABRERATDUKRETEEE
AB-

34.

A& E B HRE T B S EIEH

Details of the transactions between the Group and its related

parties are summarised below. pAR I
34.1 The Group had the following significant transactions with 341 FR ANEEEREB S ETH
related parties during the year:

BERRZUWT

244

2023 2022

—g=-= —E——
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®T ARETT
Interest income FE WA 0] 13,713 17,391
Property management expenses YESIERX (i) 9,576 9,576
Consultancy income AN (iif) 1,321 1,321
Royalty expenses RS (iv) 1,253 1,837

Notes: MIE :

0] The interest income is received or receivable from Parkson (i) MEWABBEER S

(i)

(iif)

(iv)

Newcore, an associate of the Group. The interest income
is resulted from the finance lease which is leased out
from Shanghai Honggiao Parkson Development Co., Ltd., a
subsidiary of the Group.

The property management expenses are paid or payable to
Shanghai Nine Sea Lion Properties Management Co., Ltd.,
an associate of the Group. The property management fee
was charged according to the underlying contract.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the consultancy
income is received or receivable from Parkson Newcore,
an associate of the Group, amounting to RMB1,321,000
(2022: RMB1,321,000). The consultancy income is
determined according to the underlying contracts.

The royalty expenses are paid or payable to Parkson
Services Pte. Ltd., a fellow subsidiary of the Group, for the
Group's entitlement to use the "Parkson” trademark in the
PRC.

2023 ANNUAL REPORT fE[ERE

(ii)

(iif)

(iv)

NSIEER G Sl e
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NFEERE—REEQE
EENBERMEERR
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=+—HILEEE B
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#r o MBRRMEE (47)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -_=F+_"_A=+—HItFE

34.
34.1

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

The royalty expenses paid or payable to a fellow subsidiary
of the Group constitute connected transaction and
continuing connection transactions as defined in Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. However, as this continuing
connected transaction represent less than 0.1% of
the relevant percentage ratios, pursuant to paragraph
14A.76(1)(a) of the Listing Rules, this continuing connected
transaction is exempted from the reporting, annual review,
announcement and independent shareholders' approval
requirements.

The consultancy income received or receivable from an
associate of the Group, the property management expenses
payable to an associate of the Group, and the interest
income generated from an associate of the Group do not
constitute connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Key management personnel remuneration

Key management of the Group are members of the board of
directors, as well as members of the “management board" of the
parent company. Key management personnel remuneration includes
the following expenses:

34.
34.1

RS X5 (&)

Bz - ()

ENSHENTFEER KR
AWB AR ERE
MEERZ RFERERS
(EERLETHRAUE+M™
AE) o R > AN ZIBERE
HMEXSZNEMBE LR
B50.10% RI|E EHRAE
14A.76(1)(a) ER > R B FF R &
REOERRETHE FESR
B AERBIKREHER
o

FEE-—RHBEAT MR
EABEEHARA BN EER
—RBERTNYEEERM
X RAER—REE QTP
EERF] S WA I 45 B R
R EHRAE+TAE) ©

TEEBEASHMN

FEENTEEEEREFTIMN
B TR RrE EEZE| I NN

J=2

E-FTEEEBASFMEEUTE

2023 2022

RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT AREEFIT

Fees wE 1,296 1,236

Other emoluments: HMiNE :

Salaries, allowances, bonuses and e R TEAL R E @R

other benefits 9,396 9,146

10,692 10,382

PARKSON RETAIL GROUP LIMITED BEBXEESBIRAHE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
S aMBRRMEE (37)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE_Z-_=F+"A=+—HIFFE

35.  DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY 35. HEKBAR
During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group has completed BHE_T__F#+_-_BA=+—HL
the disposal of its entire equity interest in Shanghai Delight Food FE - AEEERABIE=FH
Co., Ltd. to an independent third party, at a consideration of EERN L BEIRERABRATNE
RMB2,400,000. The principal activity of Shanghai Delight Food Co., PG HE > LB A AR 12,400,0007T ©
Ltd. is food operation. LEBRERERRIETERER
O 4R o
OANT &
The major classes of assets and liabilities of Shanghai Delight Food FEBRERERABDNRIZEZ
Co., Ltd. as at 28 March 2022, are as follows: F==A_+ N \HZFEEEKAE
BRI -
RMB'000
AREFT
Property, plant and equipment (note 11) MEE R Rk (BEEE1) 1,362
Right-of-use assets (note 13(a)) EAEEE (FizE13() 7.655
Deferred tax assets RIERIBE & 403
Trade receivables L e=ZE 4
Prepayments and other receivables TEATRIE K H R WA IR 900
Cash and cash equivalents RERREZFEY 33
Lease liabilities (note 13(b)) HEAE FisE130b)) (9,267)
Net assets disposed of HEBEFE 1,090
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary: HE—MRBABMNKE :
Consideration received B2 UWERE 2,400
Net assets disposed of HEEEFE (1,090)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary (note 5) HE—HEWBABNYE (MEEs) 1,310
Net cash inflow on disposal of a subsidiary: HE—HREBATMNIRERAFEE -
Consideration received in cash and cash equivalents BUWIRE&RIBSEBYRE 2,400
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of EERERAEEEY (33)
Net cash inflow on disposal of a subsidiary HE—RBNBRABMNIRERAEEE 2,367
Less: Consideration received during the year ended B | B ZE T _—F+_HA=+—H
31 December 2021 IEFEBWEAE (2,240)
Net cash inflow on disposal of a subsidiary BHE_ T __F#+_A=+—H
during the year ended 31 December 2022 tEEHE—HNBATNIRE
A PEE 127
36. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS 36. FEFHERH
During the year, the Group had non-cash decrease of right- FRNAEBEHEEEETFHEE
of-use assets and lease liabilities of RMB13,874,000 (2022: ZEHNERAEESEELTEESEIIE
RMB85,142,000) and RMB42,830,000 (2022: RMB79,457,000), WE R B2 A K 113,874,0007T
respectively, in respect of lease arrangements for buildings for (ZEZ=F : AR ¥85,142,0007T)
department stores. K N\ #542,830,00070 (ZF - "4 :

AR #879,457,0007T) ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -_=F+_"_A=+—HItFE

37.

RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM 37. EEXBERMEBEEHNEEHK
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
The changes in the Group's liabilities arising from financing rEBESEREITNABEH
activities can be classified as follows: AN FEIE -
Accrued
interest
Interest- included in
bearing Lease other payables
bank loans liabilities and accruals
st AE
FEfI TR IE R
His! FEstIER
RITER fEstFIS st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET AR®BTRT AR®ETRT
1 January 2023 —E”_=%—-HF—H 2,529,932 3,499,654 5,137 6,034,723
Changes from financing cash flows MERERES (66,034) (736,886) (195,568) (998,488)
Non-cash: FHE .
- Entering into new leases —sTuMBEE - 72,755 - 72,755
- Decrease from lease modification and termination —HEEIREIEEEN
B - (117,620) - (117,620)
- Exchange adjustments —-EREE 28,016 2,035 - 30,051
- Interest expense —FIEHE% - 297,625 195,198 492,823
31 December 2023 S =F+"R=+—H 2,491,914 3,017,563 4,767 5,514,244

PARKSON RETAIL GROUP LIMITED HRE#ZEmBERA= 247
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37.

38.

248

RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES (continued)

37.

ELfBMEZFDNAMEHIK

(i

Accrued
interest
MEES included in
bearing Lease  other payables
bank loans liabilities and accruals
5t AEA
HE!
RITER HE&R
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETRT
1 January 2022 —®E-_”“%—-HB—-H 1,921,249 3,931,372 15,142 5,867,763
Changes from financing cash flows MERERED 403,815 (639,140) (134,433) (369,758)
Non-cash: E[35E
- Disposal of a subsidiary —HE—REIBAT
(note 35) (Pif=E35) - (9,267) = (9,267
- Entering into new leases —sJUMEE = 109,815 = 109,815
- COVID-19-related rent concessions from lessors — kB HAAECOVID-19
(note 5) ierEA SR % (iEts) - (57,205) - (57,205
- Decrease from lease modification and —HEBEIRREEEN
termination A - (189,764) - (189,764)
- Exchange adjustments —[ERAE 204,868 9,759 - 214,627
- Interest expense —FERE - 344,084 124,428 468,512
31 December 2022 ZEITEFIRSH-H 0 2509 3,499,654 5,137 6,034,723

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE
MEASUREMENTS

The Group is exposed to financial risks through its use of
financial instruments in its ordinary course of operations and in
its investment activities. The financial risks include market risk
(including foreign currency risk, interest rate risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk.

Financial risk management is coordinated at the Group's
headquarters, in close co-operation with the board of directors.
The overall objectives in managing financial risks focus on securing
the Group's short to medium term cash flows by minimising its
exposure to financial markets. Long term financial investments are
managed to generate lasting returns with acceptable risk levels.

There has been no change to the types of the Group's exposure in
respect of financial instruments or the manner in which it manages
and measures the risks.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#r o MBRRMEE (47)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -_=F+_"_A=+—HItFE

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE

MEASUREMENTS (continued)

38.1

38. Bt

(&
Categories of financial assets and liabilities 38
The carrying amounts presented in the consolidated

statement of financial position relate to the following
categories of financial assets and financial liabilities:

BAREERAABENE

A1 TRMEERKEER
mEMBRNERESHIRE
BEHETIENNEMEEKR
THREEAR :

2023

—_— =

2022

=
S e—

RMB'000
ARETT

RMB'000
ARBFT

Financial assets EREE
Financial assets at amortised cost: g 57= 0Ny
THEE
Trade receivables FEWE 5 =hi1a 681,132 470,659
Financial assets included in SFAHMEWEIER
other receivables TREE 415,355 317,714
Financial assets included in other assets st AEMBEN SRS E 232,646 287,203
Restricted cash ZREIRE 100,191 =
Time deposits EHAFER 43,765 34,579
Cash and bank balances B & RIR1T4E R 1,583,414 1,464,096
3,056,503 2,574,251
Financial assets at fair value: BRDEEFER
Financial assets at fair value through BARBEFTEEEEH)
profit or loss FFABHRZEMEE 57,540 108,315
3,114,043 2,682,566
Financial liabilities EMafE
Financial liabilities at amortised cost: R P K 5 B Y
Trade payables FETE S IE 702,563 480,425
Financial liabilities included in other STAHMBENARIESN
payables B =K 168,222 111,104
Interest-bearing bank loans HEIRTER 2,491,914 2,529,932
Lease liabilities HE&E 3,017,563 3,499,654
6,380,262 6,621,115

PARKSON RETAIL GROUP LIMITED BEBXEESBIRAHE
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE_Z-_=F+"A=+—HIFFE

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE
MEASUREMENTS (continued)

38.2 Foreign currency risk

(&
38.2

Foreign currency risk refers to the risk that the fair value
or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Group's
exposures to currency risk arise from its debt financing
denominated in HK$ and US$, other than the units'
functional currencies.

Since the Group mainly engages in the operation of
department stores in the PRC and provision of credit
services in Malaysia, the transactional currency exposure
arising from sales or purchases in currencies other than
RMB and RM has an immaterial impact on the Group's
profit/(loss) after tax and equity.

3. HBAREERAABENE

S R B

SNEREIEERMIANAR
BEIAKRRERERINE
EXEFHmMELENIHE
% o 7= 55 B [ B AY & 1 L B 2R
B H BT &G 8 LUSNBY
ATRETFHENEBRE -

HARAEEETREEEER
BB EME MR EREER
MEERT HEEUAAR
B MER LN EEETRIH
EURBENRZ AR ARE
EREFE, (BR) RiEm
TERK

2023 ZEIZH
HK$ us$
BT E
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT
Cash and cash equivalents RERIBEEEY 8,279 19,243
Financial liabilities included in other payables &t A EL{t1 & {4 FRIBRY
TRaE (4,767) -
Interest-bearing bank loans SHEIRITEM (2,281,499) -
Lease liabilities HE&RE - (52,636)
Net exposure arising from recognised assets BB EEKMBERESE
and liabilities B9 R b % 2R (2,277,987) (33,393)
2022 -
HK$ us$
BT =TT
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT
Cash and cash equivalents B NRIBEE£HEY 5,740 14,438
Financial liabilities included in other payables &+ A EL fth F& {7 3R IEAHY
Bl =N (5.137) -
Interest-bearing bank loans sEIEITEM (2,338,302) =
Lease liabilities HE&aE = (111,672)
Net exposure arising from recognised assets T FESRE BE fx B2 &P EE AE Y
and liabilities [ K % ER (2,337,699) (97,234)
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -_=F+_"_A=+—HItFE

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE

MEASUREMENTS (continued)

38.2 Foreign currency risk (continued)

38. %?ﬁmﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁi

(&

38.2 YMERME (B

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity as at 31
December 2023 and 2022 to a reasonably possible change
in the HK$ and US$ exchange rates, with all other variables
held constant, of the Group's equity (due to the translation
of the operating results and financial position of each
subsidiary with functional currencies other than RMB into

TER2FMAAhE RS
HRE R T ER=
T__H&+ZA=+—80%
EERENETRETES
BYTT S & IR B O SHELEE (e
RERIE A MAEE %

the presentation currency of RMB used for the consolidated KR A ERANARELU
financial statements of the Group). INNPEE M B A AN E E iR
EHBEREREVINFMANAR
) o
(Decrease)/ (Decrease)/
Increase in Increase in
Sensitivity rate profit or loss equity
B i
SEE (RL) s8m  GRD) /1gm
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET T ARBTFT
2023 —EZ=
HK$ BT 5% (85.425) (85,425)
us$ ETT 5% 722 722
2022 s F
HK$ BT 500 (87,471) (87,471)
Us$ E7T 500 541 541
The same % depreciation in the group entities' functional EEBERMESE BRI

currencies against the respective foreign currencies would
have the same magnitude on the Group's profit for the year
and equity but of opposite effect.

Exposures to foreign exchange rates vary during the
year depending on the volume of overseas transactions.
Nevertheless, the analysis above is considered to be
representative of the Group's exposure to foreign currency
risk.

PARKSON RETAIL GROUP LIMITED BEBXEESBIRAHE

KUMBEHERBDEHNRE Y
75 B B9 F A A B e R
ERREEET BERNF
%,

bE R A & 18 F F A RE S
RZBEMARMARE -EEN
I EF AR A P AR A
E BT AR INE B -
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE
MEASUREMENTS (continued)

38.3

38. 38.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair value or
cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in market interest rates. The Group's interest rate
risk arises primarily from interest-bearing bank loans with
floating interest rates.

The Group manages interest rate risk by monitoring its
interest rate profile as set out below. The Group is exposed
to changes in market interest rates on its bank borrowings,
which are at variable rates.

The effective interest rates of the Group's borrowings at the
end of the reporting period were as follows:

2023
—cm— =

_———

Effective
interest rate

RS

AR REE !

stRIBITER

Variable rate borrowings:

Interest-bearing bank loans 8.05%

ﬂéf};ﬁtl‘ﬁ“‘ﬁ&’&ﬁ%ﬁ%’r%

n

38.3 FIEEK
MERBESRTEMNAR
BEABEERERATENR
BEMEERHNRARE
o AEBAMERRFERE
FEFIERBIRITTER

4 % 5B BB TR
R84 B R R AR o &
£ [ 7 5 17 18 B TR B 7 15
FIEBBER 1L ZE SR
BRI S o

RIS cEBBENE
BRAMZRT

2022
.-

Effective
interest rate

CGE:

RMB'000
AEBTT

RMB'000
ARBTFT

2,491,914 4.54% 2,529,932

The following table illustrates the sensitivity of the Group's
profit after income tax for the year and equity to a possible
change in interest rates with effect from the beginning of
the year. This sensitivity analysis is provided internally to key

TRABEEBFRRAE
Ry 18 F) 7 Ko #E w9 F 4 2 BY
B EM R BB HIGRENE o A8
REDHHRABAEITES

management personnel. BEAERMH-
2023 2022
—E=F -l
(Decrease)/  (Decrease)/  (Decrease)/ (Decrease)/
Increase in Increase in Increase in Increase in
profit or loss equity profit or loss equity
B GRL) #% L) Bz Rl #:m 0ad)
/180 Va1 Vg g
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR AR®BTR ARBTT ARETT
Interest rate: F=
Increase by 5 basis point I AN s{E & 2h (935) (935) (949) (949)
Decrease by 5 basis point B EE RS BL 935 935 949 949

The assumed changes in interest rates are considered to be
reasonably possible based on observation of current market
conditions and represents management's assessment of a
reasonably possible change in interest rate over the next
twelve month period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -_=F+_"A=+—HItFE

38.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE

MEASUREMENTS (continued)

38.3

38.4

Interest rate risk (continued)

The calculations are based on a change in average market
interest rates for each period, and the financial instruments
held at the end of each reporting period that are sensitive
to changes in interest rates. All other variables are held
constant. The sensitivity analysis included in the financial
statements of the year ended 31 December 2023 has been
prepared on the same basis.

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty to a
financial instrument would fail to discharge its obligation
under the terms of the financial instrument and cause a
financial loss to the Group. The Group's exposure to credit
risk mainly arises from granting credit to customers in the
ordinary course of its operations.

() Trade receivables

The Group trades on credit only with third parties
who have an established trading history with
the Group and have no history of default. It is
the Group's policy that new customers who wish
to trade on credit terms are subject to credit
verification procedures. Concentrations of credit risk
are managed by analysis by customer/counterparty.
There are no significant concentrations of credit
risk within the Group as the customer bases of
the Group's trade receivables are widely dispersed.
Further details are set out in note 21 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PARKSON RETAIL GROUP LIMITED

38.

38.3

38.4

MEBERREERANEENE
(&)

FERE (@)

BRGtEDERSRETH
MBI EEHUARNRERE
HARFARNZEEHHPRE
SNEMIAET -FIEEM
BRRFAE -BE_T "=
F+R=T—HLEFEHN
MBREROBHAE DT
B —EERH-

EEAR
ERABENBIANRS
HFHREREMBIAL
FRBTEEE S AEEE
BB AKNER A EEK
fEHEEARIERERE
BEBBRDEESBHH
8o

)  BREZHE
rEBREEFERR
HAxx 5 B I 8 4 X%
ENE=ZHETHREK
R RIBFAEEK
RoARBRRKRRXS
BT R BE AR
EhEERBRER
SRBHEFROWE
Bo-rEEBWEZR
BEREZDE B
BEAREREERR-
E—SaHRENEGES
RSB EE21

BREREEEFRAF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE_Z-_=F+"A=+—HIFFE

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE 38. HMERABEERAAEBENE
MEASUREMENTS (continued) (#)
38.4 Credit risk (continued) 38.4 EERK (&)
(i) Other financial assets at amortised cost (i) ARG EA
Mz EE
Other financial assets at amortised cost include B IE Rt = H
other receivables, time deposits and cash and cash tMEMEESEEM
equivalent. In order to minimise the credit risk of FE WA IE ~ TE HAE R U
other receivables, the management of the Group has RIRERIBEEEY) -

designated a team responsible for determination of
credit limits and credit approvals. The management
would make periodic collective and individual
assessment on the recoverability of other receivables
based on historical settlement records and past
experience and current external information and
adjusted to reflect probability-weighted forward-
looking information, including the default rate
where the relevant debtors operates. Other
monitoring procedures are in place to ensure that
follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, certain
sundry debtors failed to settle the advances which
constituted a default event. Accordingly, ECL is
changed to be measured by lifetime ECL. The gross
balance of other receivables and the corresponding
ECL of RMB2,130,000 and RMB206,000 (2022:
RMB677,000 and RMB63,000), respectively, were
then reclassified from stage 1 to stage 2.

2023 ANNUAL REPORT fEE#RS
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#r o MBRRMEE (47)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -_=F+_"A=+—HItFE

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE
MEASUREMENTS (continued)

38.4 Credit risk (continued)

(i)

Other financial assets at amortised cost (continued)

Certain other receivables which were defaulted by
the sundry debtors for more than 365 days. In the
opinion of the directors, these advances were credit-
impaired. The gross balance of other receivables
and the corresponding ECL of RMB609,000 and
RMB99,000 (202: RMB530,000 and RMB79,000),
respectively, were then reclassified from stage 1 to
stage 3, and RMB715,000 and RMB357,000 (2022:
RMB708,000 and RMB354,000), respectively, were
then reclassified from stage 2 to stage 3.

In the opinion of the directors, risk of default of
other receivables which were defaulted by the
sundry debtors in prior years if settled during
the year ended 31 December 2023 is low after
considering the recovered amounts. ECL will then
change to 12-month ECL accordingly. There was no
such settlement occurred during the year ended 31
December 2023, hence, no reclassification between
stage 3 and stage 1 (2022: the gross balance of
other receivables and the corresponding ECL of
RMB1,252,000 and RMB447,000, respectively, were
reclassified from stage 3 to stage 1).

38. MBRAREERAANEEE

(&)

38.4 EERARE (@

(i)

R AR ERIE
EFEE ()
ETEMEKRRIER
HHEIEER AHEXE
B365H c EEB A Z
ZHEKBFBEHIREE
BB - e W= IE 48
FREE MR AEENTERE
BE#E AET609,000
TR AR #99,0007T
“ET_F AR
#£530,00070 K A R &
79,0007T) > MEEEEHE —
EEREMDEESE =
FEES » e AR #5715,000
TR AR #357,00070
“EZF AR
#708,00070 &2 A R &
354,0007T) BEE B S —
EEREMDEESE =
P ER o

KREERBEWE 8%
BEERA HEWR
B (HEBEEFARBE
FEHEX > BERE
F_E_=F+_H8
=+—HILEFEEE)
BB A R BB o
It > FEER(E BB 18 BE
BEE A28 8 TEH
FEEEBR-REBEE_ZT
===
HIEFE #EEES
&S FAit F=/
BEH—MEEERE
moE(CE_—

Hh W IB48 6558
MERENEHREERS
B9 B A B 1,252,000
TR AR 447,00070
EEE=-EEREND

BEF B -
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38.

256

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE
MEASUREMENTS (continued)

38.4 Credit risk (continued)

(i) Other financial assets at amortised cost (continued)

The credit risks on pledged time deposits and
cash and cash equivalents are considered to be
insignificant because the counterparties are banks/
financial institutions with high credit ratings
assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

38.5 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group will
not be able to meet its obligations associated with its
financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or
another financial asset. The Group is exposed to liquidity
risk in respect of settlement of trade payables and its
financing obligations, and also in respect of its cash flow
management. The Group's objective is to maintain a balance
between continuity of funding and flexibility through the
use of interest-bearing bank loans and lease liabilities. 17%
(2022: 18%) of the Group's lease liabilities and interest-
bearing bank loans would mature in less than one year as at
31 December 2023 based the maturity profile. The directors
have reviewed the Group's liquidity position, working capital
and capital expenditure requirements and determined that
the Group has no significant liquidity risk.

Analysed below is the Group's remaining contractual
maturities for its financial liabilities as at 31 December
2023. When the creditor has a choice of when the liability
is settled, the liability is included on the basis of the earliest
date on when the Group can be required to pay. Where the
settlement of the liability is in instalments, each instalment
is allocated to the earliest period in which the Group is
committed to pay.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -_=F+_"_A=+—HItFE

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE
MEASUREMENTS (continued)

38.5 Liquidity risk (continued)

38.6

The contractual maturity analysis below is based on the
undiscounted cash flows of the financial liabilities.

3. HBAREERAABENE

(&

38.5

REBEZERE (@

TXHNEWEHBDRHE
REREENARFTRESRR

=
EO

Over
1 year but Total
within Over  undiscounted Carrying
Within 1 year 5 years 5 years amount Discount amount
—FENE
—&£HA EELA EENE RFREE iR fREE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AR%ETR ARETT ARETR AR%ETR ARETE
2023 —2-ZfF
Interest-bearing bank loans 5t BIR{TEM 342,896 2,344,635 - 2,687,531 (195,617) 2,491,914
Lease liabilities HESE 890,288 1,885,924 1,652,018 4428230  (1,410,667) 3,017,563
Trade payables e B 550E 702,563 - - 702,563 - 702,563
Financial liabilities included in 5t A E A FETFRIBAY
other payables THEE 168,222 - - 168,222 - 168,222
2,103,969 4,230,559 1,652,018 7986546  (1,606,284) 6,380,262
2022 T CF
Interest-bearing bank loans 5t BIRTEMN 454,884 2,421312 - 2,876,196 (346,264) 2,529,932
Lease liabilities HE&E 923,151 2,358,675 1,436,235 4,718,061 (1,218407) 3,499,654
Trade payables R ER7E 480,425 - - 480,425 = 480,425
Financial liabilities included in 5t A E A FE(TRIBHY
other payables TREE 111,104 - - 111,104 = 11,104
1,969,564 4,779,987 1,436,235 8,185,786 (1,564,671) 6,621,115
The Group considers expected cash flows from financial AEBFEREERBES
assets in assessing and managing liquidity risk, in particular, B EEREEHEE
its cash resources and other liquid assets that readily HFEstIREME 15 R0 B
generate cash. The Group's existing cash resources and HEARTHNREERRE
other liquid assets significantly exceed the cash outflow R EE AERIREFRS
requirements. BRREMABEZE KIRBB
BRERHBR-
Fair value measurements of financial instruments 38.6 TRMITEAEMNAREEE

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value in the
consolidated statement of financial position are grouped
into three levels of a fair value hierarchy. The three levels
are defined based on the observability and significance of
inputs to the measurements, as follows:

° Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets and liabilities.

REMBIRRRPLURRE
BEtENERMEERERS
DRARBESHREBTH
=AMk = ARBRENE
AR REE R ABEN
BEAEEEENT

. F—E RFEER
BENEBTHZRE
(REEFHE) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
S MBRRMEE (6F)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE_ZT_=F+_BA=+—HI-FE

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE 38. MBEMEEERAAEBESE
MEASUREMENTS (continued) (48)

38.6 TR TEAMNAREBEE

38.6 Fair value measurements of financial instruments

(continued)

° Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included
within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly or indirectly, and not using
significant unobservable inputs.

° Level 3: significant unobservable inputs for the asset
or liability.

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the
financial asset or liability is categorised in its entirety is
based on the lowest level of input that is significant to the
fair value measurement.

Management has assessed that the fair values of trade
receivables, financial assets included in prepayments and
other receivables, time deposits, cash and cash equivalents,
trade payables and financial liabilities included in other
payables and accruals approximate to their carrying
amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these
instruments.

The Group's finance department headed by a director is
responsible for determining the policies and procedures
for the fair value measurement of financial instruments.
The director reports directly to the audit committee. At
each reporting date, the finance manager analyses the
movements in the values of financial instruments and
determines the major inputs applied in the valuation. The
valuation is reviewed and approved by the director. The
valuation process and results are discussed with the audit
committee twice a year for interim and annual financial
reporting.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instrument could be
exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties,
other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The following
methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair
values:
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#r o MBRRMEE (47)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -_=F+_"_A=+—HItFE

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE 38. MMEEGEERAAREBEGZ
MEASUREMENTS (continued) (#&
38.6 Fair value measurements of financial instruments 38.6 MTEMNAREESTE

(continued)

The fair values of the non-current portion of time deposits
and interest-bearing bank loans have been calculated by
discounting the expected future cash flows using rates
currently available for instruments with similar terms, credit
risk and remaining maturities. The changes in fair value
as a result of the Group's own non-performance risk for
interest-bearing bank loans as at 31 December 2023 and
2022 was assessed to be insignificant.

The Group invests in unlisted investments, which represent
wealth management products issued by banks in the PRC.
The Group has estimated the fair value of these unlisted
investments by using a discounted cash flow valuation
model based on the market interest rates of instruments
with similar terms and risks.

The financial assets measured at fair value in the
consolidated statement of financial position on a recurring
basis are grouped into the fair value hierarchy as follows:

(&)
EHFER At BIRITEMIE
BMEAER DA R BETBE
M AARBERLUER  EERR
RE RN TANERE
FA#) R B8 3 TR B R 2R B 2 0
EStERE -RZFT=
RZBZ"HF+"RB=+—
B EAAEEASREBIRT
ERTBRORBEENAR
BEEE2FNTHATLAEKR

FEERENIFLHKRE D
FRE A IRITRITHNIRME
o AEEBERBIIRIRER
g%ﬁﬁﬁ&%#&ﬂﬁﬁ
HRNT AT ISH RE5t%
ZILEHRENAANEE

REBHEEEN RSV B

RNRPLUAAREEFENSE
MEERRAABEIREE
BlomT

Significant Weighted
Valuation technique  unobservable average yield
2023 2022 and key inputs inputs rate
HERTREIESR EAFTER T
—BC= “ZCCE AHE BAHE L §7E
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETRT ARETR
Level 3 $=E
Financial assets at fair A ABE 2B HEEE
value through profitor ~ ABZZEREE

loss
- Wealth management
products

—BHER 2.7%
(2022: 2.7%)
(CB--F:
2.7%)

Discounted cash flows

HRRSRE

57,540 108,315 Expected yield rate

BfkER

HE_=T_=H£+_-H1
=t+t—HIEEE  TEF—
BHRE_BBENEER (CST
“TEFIH) o

There were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during
the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: nil).

AR @mERES B AREE
s RZI AR

The higher of the expected yield rate, the higher of the fair
value, and vice versa.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE_Z-_=F+"A=+—HIFFE

39.

260

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The primary objective of the Group's capital management is to
safequard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern and to

SO8

BEXERE
AEREFAEENTEZERRMRE
AEEFEEEEXRTHEIURE

maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and HiEENENERULZFEER &
maximise shareholders' value. EERAKRREE

The Group regularly reviews and manages its capital structure
and makes adjustments to it, taking into consideration changes
in economic conditions, future capital requirements of the Group,
prevailing and projected profitability and operating cash flows,
projected capital expenditures and projected strategic investment
opportunities.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net
adjusted debt divided by the capital plus net adjusted debt. The net
adjusted debt includes interest-bearing bank loans, trade payables,
contract liabilities, lease liabilities, and other payables and accruals
less cash and cash equivalents, time deposits, restricted cash and
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

The net debt to equity ratio at the end of the reporting period was:

FAERERBRIKREEREEALAR
BoRUTREHHETHE | &
BIRIBEME AEBERKERES
ERKBABFEND KERERM
E - BABFARAIRBENEKRE
W e

AEBREFEREXREEHSE
Ao ZEERTDREHEBEHIRU
EAMEHAEZFEHAE - KRHE
FBRERGEEARBBITER - BNHE
ZRAGHNAGB - HEER Hit
BNREREFSEERREERREE
HFEY  ERER RRAIRE K%
AnBEFEEHEEHFTABERZ
TREE-

RE|BEHR > B EPEBEILRS !

2023 2022
—2-= i

RMB'000 RMB'000

AR%TT AREFTT

(restated)

(#R&E5)

Interest-bearing bank loans STEIRTTER 2,491,914 2,529,932

Trade payables FE(TEB Zaia 702,563 480,425

Other payables and accruals Hih eI KR ESTIEE 677,887 767,469

Contract liabilities BHEE 615,709 621,313

Lease liabilities HE&E 3,017,563 3,499,654

Less: Cash and bank balances A IR RIRITAEER (1,583,414) (1,464,096)

Time deposits EMRER (43,765) (34,579)

Restricted cash ZIRHIIRE (100,191) =
Financial assets at fair value through BAnEESEEHEHES

profit or loss SEAEGZ EMEE (57.540) (108,315)

Net adjusted debt EREREY 5,720,726 6,291,803
Capital: equity attributable to owners of BA  AREIME AEGER

the Company 3,244,942 3,249,384

Capital and net adjusted debt ERREHBFES 8,965,668 9,541,187

Net debt to equity ratio BEFEERILE 64% 66%
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